
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 6, 2017 • Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, APRIL 6, 2017 
 

3:30 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday, 
April 6, 2017. 
 

2. Receive a presentation regarding a proposed Outside Agency Funding Policy. 
 

3. Discuss Water System Update and Master Planning. 
 

4. Discuss the possible purchase of approximately 74 acres of land located on Poison Oak Road 
for potential use by the Parks and Recreation Department. 
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property –
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a 
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party. 

 
 

 

 

  



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 6, 2017 • Page 2 of 5 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to three 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council. 
 
III. PROCLAMATIONs & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
3. National Social Work Month – March 2017 

4. Fair Housing Month – April 2017 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 
 
5. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 
 resolutions and ordinances for each of the following: 
  

Minutes 
 

(A) March 16, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
Contracts, Leases, & Bids 

 
(B) 2017-8587-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one Toro 

Groundsmaster 4500-D mower in the amount of $64,338.41 from Professional Turf 
Products, L.P. of Euless. 
 

(C) 2017-8588-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase and installation of 
an emergency generator for City Hall in the estimated amount of $150,000 from Loftin 
Equipment Company, Inc. of Universal City.   



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 6, 2017 • Page 3 of 5 

(D) 2017-8589-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Microsoft Software Enterprise 
Agreement with SHI Government Solutions of Austin, in the amount of $167,897.   
 

(E) 2017-8590-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a geographical information 
system license agreement and maintenance contract with Environmental Systems 
Research Institute, Inc., of San Antonio, in the amount of $50,000. 
 

(F) 2017-8591-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement with 
Knight Security Systems, LLC of Austin for the purchase and installation of 17 
surveillance cameras and the relocation of three existing cameras at the Police Facility in 
the amount of $36,765.32. 
 

(G) 2017-8592-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of four properties 
necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival 
grounds and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchases, in an estimated 
amount of $105,000, relocation benefits in an estimated amount of $32,000, and release 
of liens totaling approximately $6,010. 
 

(H) 2017-8593-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 11 vehicles 
from various vendors, in the amount of $274,380.17. 
 

(I) 2017-8594-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with 
Holy Contractors, LLC of Hewitt, in the amount of $34,999.99, for drainage improvements 
at the Summit Recreation Center.    
 

(J) 2017-8595-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into 
a contract between the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers to reimburse the City for salary and benefit expenses and vehicle cost related 
to police patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 6, 2017 through September 4, 2017. 
 

(K) 2017-8596-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a First Amendment to the 
Development Agreement between the City of Temple and John Earl Fielding to allow a 
subdivision of property without requiring voluntary annexation. 
 

(L) 2017-8597-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Mutual Aid Agreement 
between the Fort Hood Fire Department and City for mutual aid by the respective fire 
departments at various locations. 
 

(M) 2017-8598-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal agreement with the 
Texas Department of State Health Services for the provision of on-line computer services 
including access to Texas Electronic Registration Remote System for vital records 
through August 31, 2019. 
   

 Misc. 
 

(N) 2017-8599-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the rejection of all bids received 
on February 24, 2017, for a 1-ton crew cab and chassis, dual rear wheels with utility body 
truck. 
  
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 6, 2017 • Page 4 of 5 

(O) 2017-8600-R: Consider adopting a resolution suspending the April 21, 2017 effective date 
of Oncor Electric Delivery Company’s requested rate change and approving cooperation 
with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor to hire legal and consulting 
services and to negotiate with Oncor and direct any necessary litigation and appeals. 
 

(P) 2017-8601-R: Consider adopting a resolution setting rates and associated fees for 
recycling processing and collection services and authorizing the City Manager to establish 
processing fees and rebate schedules as needed to support operation of the recycling 
program.   
 

(Q) 2017-8602-R: Consider adopting a resolution appointing Brynn Myers as the interim City 
Manager and setting compensation for the position. 
 

(R) 2017-8603-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 
year 2016-2017. 
 

V. REGULAR AGENDA 

ORDINANCES – SECOND READING/PUBLIC HEARING 

6. 2017-4833: SECOND READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-03: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance authorizing a rezoning from the Neighborhood Services zoning district to the 
 Planned Development Neighborhood Services zoning district and site/development plan on 
 3.5718 +/- acres, proposed for a nonresidential subdivision for a mini-storage facility, which is a 
 reduced scope from the original 7.35 +/- acres request, situated on a portion of 1-lot, 1-block, 
 RVOS addition, located at 5785 South 31st Street, Temple, Texas. 

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING 

7. 2017-4836: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-19: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to General Retail zoning district 
 on 3.91 +/- acres, Lot 1 Block 1, Fernandez Addition, located at 430 Hilliard Road, Temple, 
 Texas. 

8. 2017-4837: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-20: Consider adopting an 
 ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Single Family-Three, 
 General Retail, and Office-Two zoning districts on 81.173 +/- acres, situated in the B. Stracener 
 Survey, Abstract No. 746, Bell County, Texas, located at 3131 Lower Troy Road. 

9. 2017-4838: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
 amendments the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project 
 Plans to align with the 2022 Master Plan for years FY 2017-2019. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
10. 2017-8604-R: I-FY-17-02: Consider adopting a resolution approving an appeal of standards 
 to Sec. 6.7 of the Unified Development Code related to I-35 Corridor Overlay Zoning District in 
 Freeway Retail/Commercial Sub District requirements for landscaping, lighting and architecture 
 for a redeveloped car dealership (new Garlyn Shelton BMW) at 5420 Midway Drive. 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 6, 2017 • Page 5 of 5 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
1:30 PM, on Friday, March 31, 2017. 
 
 
_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(A) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
  

(A) March 16, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
March 16, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 

  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director 
Jeff Ward, Director of Golf 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one Toro 
Groundsmaster 4500-D mower in the amount of $64,338.41 from Professional Turf Products, L.P. of 
Euless. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Currently, the Sammons Golf Course has a 2007 Toro Groundsmaster mower that 
has been identified for replacement. This piece of equipment is used to cut the largest amount of 
acreage at the golf course (approximately 65 acres twice per week). This mower is used daily from 
March through October during the growing season.  
 
Professional Turf Products has been awarded contract #447-14 by BuyBoard, a governmental 
purchasing cooperative, which supports this purchase.  Contracts awarded through BuyBoard have been 
competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement rules for Texas municipalities.    
 
Staff has used Professional Turf Products in the past and finds them to be a responsive and responsible 
vendor.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the purchase of the Toro Groundsmaster Mower is available in account 
110-5931-551-6222, project #101635, in the amount of $64,339 as follows: 
 

   
Project Budget  $65,000 

Profession Turf Products   
                                 

(64,339) 
Remaining Project Funds  $661 

 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE TORO GROUNDSMASTER 4500-D 
MOWER IN THE AMOUNT OF $64,338.41, FROM PROFESSIONAL TURF 
PRODUCTS, LP, OF EULESS, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, the Sammons Golf Course has a 2007 Toro Groundsmaster mower that has been 
identified for replacement, and is used daily from March through October to cut the largest amount 
of acreage at the golf course; 
 
 Whereas, Professional Turf Products, LP has been awarded a BuyBoard Governmental 
Purchasing Cooperative contract, which supports this purchase - contracts awarded through 
BuyBoard have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement rules for Texas 
municipalities;   
 
 Whereas, Staff has used Professional Turf Products in the past and finds them to be a 
responsive and responsible vendor;   
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of one Toro Groundsmaster 
4500-D mower in the amount of $64,338.41, from Professional Turf Products, LP of Euless, Texas 
utilizing BuyBoard Government Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 447-14;  
 

Whereas, funding for this purchase is available in Account No. 100-5931-551-6222, 
Project No. 101635; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of one Toro Groundsmaster 4500-D 
mower in the amount of $64,338.41, from Professional Turf Products, LP of Euless, Texas 
utilizing BuyBoard Government Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 447-14. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  

 
 



2 
 

 
 
 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase and installation of an 
emergency generator for City Hall in the estimated amount of $150,000 from Loftin Equipment 
Company, Inc. of Universal City.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of the purchase and installation of a new 100 kw diesel generator with 
400-amp automatic transfer switch will provide for the replacement of a generator that has exceeded 
its useful life and has become unreliable.  This City Hall generator is key to the protection of the City’s 
data center that provides computing, network and telecommunications services for all City departments.  
 
City Hall recently experienced a catastrophic power outage causing City Hall to lose power for two 
hours.  Typically this is not an issue for our data center since we have an automated transfer switch 
that will bypass the electrical panels in the building and transfer power to a 75 kw generator that is at 
City Hall, but when the 25-year old generator failed to start up, it put the City data center at risk of losing 
significant pieces of computer equipment and data.  Though the city has an uninterruptible power supply 
(UPS) that provides power to our servers and communications for 45 minutes, unfortunately the power 
coming into City Hall was unavailable for two hours and when the generator failed to power up and 
after 45 minutes, we experienced a complete power failure to the data center.    
 
Staff is very concerned about another power outage and the generator not working properly. The one 
occurrence caused damaged to several components and disabled staff from functioning using any 
technology resources for several days as the data was restored.  Staff has evaluated the risks of 
another power failure and has concluded that another major electric outage could put at risk over 
$2,000,000 worth of servers, telecommunications and network equipment in the data center, not to 
mention the possible loss of data.   
 
Per the requirement of the Texas Engineering Practices Act, staff has administratively engaged 
Rabroker & Associates, a local electrical engineering firm, to assist with the evaluation and design of a 
generator replacement.  In addition, staff is also working closely with Loftin Equipment Company, Inc. 
(Loftin), the City’s annual contract holder for generator maintenance and repair.  Loftin has stated that 
they cannot guarantee that the generator will operate properly due to the age of the equipment and 
mechanical issues such as water in the oil.  

 



 04/06/17 
Item #5(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Staff is recommending the purchase of a new 100 kw generator at an estimated cost of $31,000. The 
equipment purchase is supported under the Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments (H-GAC) 
contract GE02-16 awarded to Loftin. The services portion of the contract in the estimated amount of 
$119,000 is not supported under the H-GAC contract; however, because of the time sensitivity in getting 
a reliable generator in place, staff is recommending that Loftin be used to install and startup the 
generator using the bidding exemption under the Local Government Code §252.022(a)(3), a 
procurement necessary because of unforeseen damage to equipment.   
 
If authorized by Council, Loftin will begin preparatory work for the project in April with the anticipated 
arrival of the generator, which has a six to eight week delivery lead time, in May.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding for the purchase and installation of an emergency generator for City Hall, 
in the estimated amount of $150,000 is partially available in the FY2017 Operating Budget. A budget 
adjustment is being presented to Council to appropriate the additional funding needed by reallocating 
funds from projects originally funded from Limited Tax Notes that will now be funded from the Lone Star 
Energy Loan, as shown below:  
 

 110-5924-519-6222 364-2400-519-6222 Total 
 101639 101639  

Project Budget  $                    61,871                                  -     $       61,871  
Budget Adjustment                                 -                         88,129            88,129  

Encumbered/Committed to Date                                 -                                    -                       -    
Loftin Equipment Company                       (61,871)                       (88,129)        (150,000) 

Remaining Project Funds  $                           -     $                           -     $              -    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
  



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2017
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

364-2400-519-62-22 101639
364-2011-521-63-10 101568 69,519        
364-3800-519-63-10 101403 18,610        

TOTAL…………………………………………………………………………………… 88,129$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

To reallocate funding for the purchase a replacement emergency generator for City Hall.  Funding is available from Limited Tax Notes' 
projects that will now be funded through the LoanSTAR loan program.

4/6/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

88,129$      

INCREASE

88,129$      
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Cap Bldg & Grnds / Emer Generator
Cap Bldg & Grnds / Upgrade Lighting
Cap Bldg & Grnds / Updt Exter Lighting

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF AN EMERGENCY 
GENERATOR FOR CITY HALL, IN THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $150,000 
FROM LOFTIN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC. OF UNIVERSAL CITY, TEXAS; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
  
 Whereas, the City recently experienced a catastrophic power outage at City Hall when the 
25-year old generator failed to start up, putting the City data center at risk of losing significant 
pieces of computer equipment and data; 
 
 Whereas, the City has an uninterruptible power supply that provides backup power to City 
servers and communications for 45 minutes, however on this day, the aged generator failed to 
power up and the City experienced complete power failure to the data center;    
 

Whereas, the aged generator has exceeded its useful life, has become unreliable and cannot 
be guaranteed that it will continue to operate properly; 
 
 Whereas, per the requirement of the Texas Engineering Practices Act, Staff engaged 
Rabroker & Associates and Loftin Equipment Company, Inc., (“Loftin”), the City’s annual 
contract holder for generator maintenance and repair, to assist with the evaluation and design of a 
replacement generator; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase and installation of a new 
emergency generator for City Hall, in the estimated amount of $150,000 from Loftin Equipment 
Company, Inc. of Universal City, Texas, utilizing a Houston-Galveston Area Council of 
Governments (HGAC) contract GE02-16; 
 

Whereas, the services portion of this contract is not supported under the HGAC contract, 
however, because of time sensitivity, Staff recommends Loftin be used to install and startup the 
generator using the bidding exemption under the Local Government Code §252.022(a)(3), a 
procurement necessary because of unforeseen damage to equipment; 

 
 Whereas, contracts awarded through Houston-Galveston Area Cooperative contract have 
been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities;   
 
 Whereas, funding is available in the fiscal year 2017 Operating Budget, however a budget 
adjustment needs to be approved to appropriate additional funding needed by reallocating funds 
from projects originally funded from Limited Tax Notes that will now be funded from the Lone 
Star Energy Loan in Account No. 110-5924-519-6222 and Account No. 364-2400-519-6222, 
Project No. 101639; 



2 
 

 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase and installation of an emergency 
generator for City Hall in the estimated amount of $150,000, from Loftin Equipment Company, 
Inc. of Universal City, Texas, utilizing a Houston-Galveston Area Council of Governments 
contract. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 

 
Part 4:  The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2017 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

04/06/17 
Item #5(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Microsoft Software Enterprise 
Agreement with SHI Government Solutions of Austin, in the amount of $167,897.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this software agreement will provide for the continued use of 
Microsoft office applications from May 1, 2017 through April 30, 2018.   

The City currently uses Microsoft for all of our office applications, as well as database servers, 
throughout the City. The primary Microsoft applications currently used include the following:  Microsoft 
Word, PowerPoint, Excel, Sharepoint, Outlook, and Publisher, as well as Enterprise solutions for 
servers and operating systems.   

After reviewing some of the volume licensing programs that were presented, we decided to request a 
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement that covers Microsoft Office Professional and the Microsoft Core Client 
Access License (CAL) Suite—including the Windows Server® 2012 operating system, Microsoft 
Exchange Server, Microsoft Systems Management Server, and Microsoft Office SharePoint® Portal 
Server—for all of the City computers. The agreement also covers a wide variety of additional 
technologies including Windows Server, Exchange Server, Internet Security and Acceleration Server, 
SQL Server™, and Microsoft Operations Manager licenses for 25 servers.  

This year we would like to move to Office 365 so that all employees have the ability to work across 
multiple devices, from anywhere, and have a consistent, clean, and fast experience. It will enable staff 
to establish settings that roam with the employee so files are up to date and ready to pick up right where 
the employee left the file, no matter what device is being used. This also will give us new access for 
online collaboration and meeting tools instead of having to go through a hosted service such as Webex 
or Go-To-Meeting.  In addition, Office 365 will provide for simplified legal compliance by using in-place 
legal holds which will be hosted by Microsoft, allowing our staff more time to concentrate on security 
compliance.  



04/06/17 
Item #5(D) 

Consent Agenda 
   Page 2 of 3 

In summary, Office 365 will provide the following: 

Advanced email 

Use archiving and legal hold capabilities, plus unlimited storage, for 
compliance needs. And use data loss prevention (DLP) policies and 
policy tips that educate your users for additional compliance enforcement 
in email.  

Document and 
email access 
control  

Rights Management Services enables you to restrict access to 
documents and email to specific people and to prevent anyone else from 
viewing or editing them, even if they are sent outside the organization.  

Online 
conferencing 

Host online meetings with audio and video using one-click screen sharing 
and HD video conferencing.  

Instant messaging 
and Skype 
connectivity

Connect with other Lync users via instant message, voice calls, and video 
calls, and let people know your availability with your online status. Share 
presence, IM, and audio calling with Skype users. 

File storage and 
sharing  

OneDrive for Business gives each user 25 GB of personal cloud storage 
that can be accessed from anywhere and that syncs with their PC for 
offline access. Easily share documents with others inside and outside the 
organization and control who can see and edit each file.  

Team sites 

Enable easy access and sharing of documents with 10 GB of baseline 
storage plus 500 MB of storage per user. Share insights through 
interactive reports with Excel Services and Visio Services, and view them 
on mobile device browsers that support HTML5. 

Site mailboxes 

Make it easier for teams to collaborate. Store and share email and 
documents in project-specific folders, so everyone on the team can find 
the information they need fast. 

Yammer Enterprise 

Keep ideas and work moving with enterprise social networking that makes 
collaborating with the right people easy and that comes with advanced 
support, security, administration, and integrations. 

Office Online 

Create and edit Word, OneNote, PowerPoint, and Excel documents from 
a browser.  

Mobility

Sync email, calendar, and contacts; access SharePoint sites; view and 
edit Office documents with Office Online using a browser on Windows 
Phone, iOS, and Android devices.  

http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102996964.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX102997013.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/XT104193899.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX100996074.aspx
http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/business/redir/FX010246245.aspx


04/06/17 
Item #5(D) 

Consent Agenda 
  Page 3 of 3 

This is the eighth year of the City’s Enterprise Agreement and through the Enterprise Agreement we 
are able to more effectively standardize software across all desktops and take advantage of many of 
the included software assurance benefits, including New Version Rights, Desktop Deployment Planning 
Services, Training Vouchers, Microsoft eLearning, Home Use Program, 24x7 Problem Resolution 
Support, a TechNet Plus subscription, and Extended Hotfix’s. The pricing has increased by $40,000 
based on the fact that our original license agreement was based on 500 users, but we now have close 
to 750 users citywide. 

Prior to 2010, it was the Information Technology Department’s practice of purchasing new licenses 
every three to four years through a select agreement program because we felt the Enterprise 
Agreement was more expensive over the three to four year period, but the pricing now has reversed in 
the sense that it is less costly to go through a yearly Enterprise Agreement. We also felt that the cycle 
for software upgrades by Microsoft was about every three to four years but that has changed in the 
past four years in that software upgrades are on a more frequent basis. This also helps solve a problem 
in that we would be on the same Enterprise Agreement with many other State and local agencies that 
currently upgrade their software on a more frequent basis. 

SHI Government Solutions has been awarded a Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 
contract #DIR-SDD-2503, which this purchase is recommended for awarded under.  Contracts awarded 
by DIR have been competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities.     

FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being presented to Council to appropriate funding for the 
purchase of the Microsoft Enterprise Agreement License and Software with SHI Government Solutions 
in the amount of $167,897 in the technology fund account 351-1900-519-2515. This is the eighth year 
of this Enterprise Agreement. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Adjustment 
Enrollment Agreement - to be provided
Resolution 



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2017
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER
PROJECT 

# DECREASE
351-1900-519-25-15
351-0000-490-25-82
110-0000-351-09-43 167,897      
110-9100-591-81-51

TOTAL………………………………………………………………………………… 167,897$    

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No
DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

X Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

2017 Microsoft Annual EA Agreement 

4/6/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

503,691$    

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Desg Capital- Technology Replacement

INCREASE

Transfer In- Desg Capital Proj Fund 167,897$    
Other Services- Dues & Subscriptions 167,897$    

167,897      Transfer Out- Desg Captial Proj Funds

Do Not Post

Date

3/20/2017
Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A MICROSOFT SOFTWARE ENTERPRISE 
AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $167,897, WITH SHI GOVERNMENT 
SOLUTIONS OF AUSTIN, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, the City of Temple currently uses Microsoft software for all office 
applications as well as database servers throughout the City; 

 
Whereas, Staff reviewed several Volume Licensing programs and ultimately chose 

Microsoft Enterprise Agreement which covers Microsoft Office Professional, Microsoft Core 
Access License Suite, Windows Server 2012 operating system, Microsoft Exchange Server, 
Microsoft Systems Management Server, and Microsoft Office SharePoint Portal Server for 
all City computers; 

 
Whereas, Staff is interested in acquiring Office 365 so all employees have the ability to 

work across multiple devices, at any location, and continue to have consistent, clean, and a 
fast computing experience; 

 
Whereas, Office 365 provides new access for online collaboration and meeting tools, 

as well as providing simplified legal compliance by using in-place legal holds which is 
hosted by Microsoft, allowing Staff to concentrate on security compliance; 

 
Whereas, SHI Government Solutions has been awarded a Texas Department of 

Information Resources (“DIR”) contract - contracts awarded through DIR have been 
competitively procured and meet the statutory procurement requirements for Texas 
municipalities; 

 
Whereas, this is the eighth year the City has used the Microsoft Software Enterprise 

Agreement, and Staff recommends Council authorize this agreement in the amount of 
$167,897, with SHI Government Solutions of Austin, Texas, utilizing DIR Contract No. DIR-
SDD-2503; 

 
Whereas, funds are available for this agreement, but an amendment to the fiscal year 

2017 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 351-1900-519-2515; 
and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval 

as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a Microsoft Software Enterprise Agreement in the 
amount of $167,897, with SHI Government Solutions of Austin, Texas, utilizing DIR Contract 
No. DIR-SDD-2503. 

 
Part 3: The City Council approves an amendment to the fiscal year 2017 budget, 

substantially in the form of the copy attached as Exhibit ‘A,’ for this purchase.  
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
         THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               

        DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
  
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson       Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(E) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Alan DeLoera, Information Technology Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a geographical information system 
license agreement and maintenance contract with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc., of 
San Antonio, in the amount of $50,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this purchase will allow for the continued use of Environmental 
Systems Research Institute’s (ESRI’s) Geographical Information Systems (GIS) software from May 7, 
2017 to May 6, 2018. The GIS software is used to integrate hardware, software, and data for capturing, 
managing, analyzing, and displaying all forms of geographically referenced information by the following 
departments:  Information Technology, Public Works, Parks, Police, Police, and Fire. GIS allows staff 
to view, understand, question, interpret, and visualize data in many ways that reveal relationships, 
patterns, and trends in the form of maps, globes, reports, and charts. 
 
GIS is used for many purposes such as crime analyses, water/wastewater, transportation, parcel 
studies, 911, planning, zoning, parks, infrastructure, political boundary, topographical, hydrological and 
census analysis and management. In addition, the GIS software is used for information sharing on our 
City website. 
 
This Enterprise Licensing Agreement allows the City to take advantage of unlimited licensing and 
maintenance which will provide the following benefits: 

• A lower cost per unit for the  licensed software, 
• Substantially reduced administrative and procurement expenses, 
• Maintenance on all ESRI software deployed under this agreement, and  
• Complete flexibility to deploy software products when and where needed. 

 
ESRI is the sole provider of maintenance for the ArcGIS applications software, which the City has been 
using for three years.  Changing GIS software would be cumbersome, and therefore, staff is requesting 
that this purchase be made from ESRI as the sole source provider.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the GIS license agreement and maintenance contract has been 
appropriated in the FY17 Information Technology Department operating budget in account 110-1900-
519-2338 in the amount of $50,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.      

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM 
LICENSE AGREEMENT AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $50,000 FROM ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH 
INSTITUTE, INC. OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, Geographical Information System (“GIS”) software is used to integrate 
hardware, software, and data for capturing, managing, analyzing, and displaying all forms of 
geographically referenced information through multiple departments throughout the City; 
 
 Whereas, GIS allows Staff to view, understand, question, interpret, and visualize data in 
ways which reveal relationships, patterns, and trends in the form of maps, globes, reports, and 
charts as well as being used for many purposes such as crime analyses, water/wastewater, 
transportation, parcel studies, 911, planning, zoning, parks, infrastructure, political boundary, 
topographical, hydrological and census analysis and management; 
 
 Whereas, the Enterprise Licensing Agreement allows the City to take advantage of 
unlimited licensing and maintenance which will provide a lower cost per unit for licensed 
software, substantially reducing administrative and procurement expenses, maintenance on all 
ESRI software deployed under this agreement and complete flexibility to deploy software products 
when and where needed; 
 
 Whereas, Environmental Systems Research Institute (“ESRI”) is the sole provider of 
maintenance for the ArcGIS applications software and changing software would be cumbersome - 
therefore, Staff requests this purchase be made through ESRI as the sole source provider;    
 
 Whereas, funding for this license agreement and maintenance contract has been 
appropriated in the fiscal year 2017 Information Technology Department’s operating budget in 
Account No. 110-1900-519-2338; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
Geographical Information System license agreement and maintenance contract in the amount of 
$50,000, with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. of San Antonio, Texas.  



2 
 

 
 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Floyd O. Mitchell, Chief of Police 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement with Knight 
Security Systems, LLC of Austin for the purchase and installation of 17 surveillance cameras and the 
relocation of three existing cameras at the Police Facility in the amount of $36,765.32. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this purchase will improve security measures at the Police Facility 
through the installation of 17 additional IP surveillance cameras and the strategic relocation of three 
pre-existing cameras.  All cameras will be high definition with various angle views depending on their 
location and monitoring responsibility, and the cameras will all interface with the video surveillance 
system already in use at the Police Facility.    
 
Knight Security Systems, LLC has been awarded Contract #DIR-TSO-3230 by the Texas Department 
of Information Resources (DIR), which this services agreement is being recommended under.  
Contracts awarded by DIR have been competitively procured and meet the statutory requirements for 
Texas municipalities.   
 
Knight Security Systems, LLC installed the current video surveillance system at the Police Facility and 
staff was pleased with the quality of their work.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the cameras, install, hardware, system licenses, programming, and 
configuration, is appropriated in accounts as shown below: 

Account Project # Description Available 
    

110-2011-521-2229  Funds taken out of state seized funds  $     18,154 

260-2000-521-2211  
Remaining funds from JAG 2015 and 

the entire funds from JAG 2016   $     18,612  
  Total Funding Available  $     36,766  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 







1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO.      

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM 
LICENSE AGREEMENT AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACT, IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $50,000 FROM ENVIRONMENTAL SYSTEMS RESEARCH 
INSTITUTE, INC. OF SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, Geographical Information System (“GIS”) software is used to integrate 
hardware, software, and data for capturing, managing, analyzing, and displaying all forms of 
geographically referenced information through multiple departments throughout the City; 
 
 Whereas, GIS allows Staff to view, understand, question, interpret, and visualize data in 
ways which reveal relationships, patterns, and trends in the form of maps, globes, reports, and 
charts as well as being used for many purposes such as crime analyses, water/wastewater, 
transportation, parcel studies, 911, planning, zoning, parks, infrastructure, political boundary, 
topographical, hydrological and census analysis and management; 
 
 Whereas, the Enterprise Licensing Agreement allows the City to take advantage of 
unlimited licensing and maintenance which will provide a lower cost per unit for licensed 
software, substantially reducing administrative and procurement expenses, maintenance on all 
ESRI software deployed under this agreement and complete flexibility to deploy software products 
when and where needed; 
 
 Whereas, Environmental Systems Research Institute (“ESRI”) is the sole provider of 
maintenance for the ArcGIS applications software and changing software would be cumbersome - 
therefore, Staff requests this purchase be made through ESRI as the sole source provider;    
 
 Whereas, funding for this license agreement and maintenance contract has been 
appropriated in the fiscal year 2017 Information Technology Department’s operating budget in 
Account No. 110-1900-519-2338; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
Geographical Information System license agreement and maintenance contract in the amount of 
$50,000, with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. of San Antonio, Texas.  



2 
 

 
 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2  
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of four properties 
necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds and 
authorizing closing costs associated with the purchases, in an estimated amount of $105,000, 
relocation benefits in an estimated amount of $32,000, and release of liens totaling approximately 
$6,010.  
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The development of the Santa Fe Market Trail project is in conjunction with the 
recently developed Downtown Master Plan. The Santa Fe Market Trail project will extend from the 
future Santa Fe Plaza east to Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive. 
 
In February 2016, Council entered into a services agreement with Stateside Right of Way Services, 
LLC (“Stateside”) for land acquisition and relocation services for approximately 20 tracts of land.  As 
the design phase of this project progressed, the Parks & Recreation Department and the Project 
Committee for the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board requested that six additional parcels be acquired 
for use in the project. Council entered into a second services agreement for these six parcels in 
December 2016.   
 
Appraisals have been performed on all of the parcels and the City has made offers to the owners. Two 
of the six properties have been acquired. Stateside has been actively negotiating with the remaining 
owners. An agreement has been reached with one of the remaining owners and agreements for the 
remaining three properties are anticipated. One of the remaining property owners is entitled to 
relocation benefits in the estimated amount of $32,000. In addition to property acquisition, Staff is 
seeking authorization to release approximately $6,010 in mowing liens on the properties.   
 
 

 
 



04/06/17 
Item #5(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
Staff is seeking authorization to complete the purchase of the following properties and pay necessary 
closing costs, in an estimated amount of $105,000, payment of relocation benefits in the estimated 
amount of $32,000, as well as releasing approximately $6,010 in liens.  The properties to be acquired 
are: 
 

204 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #27862) 
208 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #98288) 
214 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #126317) 
220 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #12648). 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the costs associated with acquisition expenses of the above 
listed properties, which is necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK 
Fields festival grounds, in an amount of $143,010 in account 795-9500-531-6566, project #101262.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF FOUR PROPERTIES 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED SANTA FE 
MARKET TRAIL/MLK FIELDS FESTIVAL GROUNDS; AUTHORIZING 
CLOSING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASES IN AN 
ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $105,000; AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF 
RELOCATION EXPENSES IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $32,000; AND 
RELEASING LIENS IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $6,010; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the development of the Santa Fe Market Trail project is in conjunction with the 
recently developed Downtown Master Plan and will extend from the future Santa Fe Plaza east 
to Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive; 
 
 Whereas, in February 2016, Council entered into a services agreement with Stateside 
Right of Way Services, LLC (“Stateside”) for land acquisition and relocation services for 
approximately 20 tracts of land; 
 
 Whereas, as the design phase progressed, the Parks & Recreation Department and the 
Project Committee for the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board requested 6 additional parcels be 
acquired for use in the project – Council entered into a second services agreement for these 6 
additional parcels in December 2016; 
 

Whereas, appraisals have been performed on all of the parcels, the City has made offers 
to the owners, and two of the six properties have been acquired - Stateside Right of Way 
Services is actively negotiating with the remaining property owners; 

 
Whereas, an agreement has been reached with one of the remaining property owners and 

agreements with the remaining three are anticipated soon – one of the remaining property owners 
is entitled to relocation benefits in the estimated amount of $32,000 and in addition to the 
acquisition of this property, Staff recommends Council authorize the release of approximately 
$6,010 in mowing liens; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of the following properties, 
authorize the payment of necessary closing costs in an estimated amount of $105,000, authorize 
the payment of relocation benefits in the estimated amount of $32,000 and authorize the release 
of mowing liens in the estimated amount of $6,010: 

 
204 S. Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive 208 S. Martin Luther King Jr. Drive 
214 S. Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive 220 S. Martin Luther King Jr. Drive 

 
 Whereas, funding is available for the purchase of these properties in Account No. 795-
9500-531-6566, Project No. 101262; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

 



2 
 

 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of four properties located at 204, 208, 
214 & 220 S. Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, Temple, Texas, authorizes the payment of closing 
costs associated with the purchases in an estimated amount of $105,000, authorizes the payment 
of relocation benefits in an estimated amount of $32,000, and authorizes the release of mowing 
liens in an estimated amount of $6,010.  
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for these 
purchases and the release of liens. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
04/06/17 

Item #5(H) 
 Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 4 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Kirk Scopac, Fleet Services Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 11 vehicles from 
various vendors, in the amount of $274,380.17: 
 

(1) Four 5-passenger midsize sedan (Ford Fusion SE) from Caldwell Country Ford of Caldwell in 
the amount of $74,740 (Bid Tabulation A); 

(2) One 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Pickup (Ram 1500) from Mac Haik Dodge of Temple in the 
amount of $22,920 (Bid Tabulation B);     

(3) Two 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Economy Pickups (Ram 1500) from Mac Haik Dodge of 
Temple in the amount of $45,840 (Bid Tabulation C);  

(4) One 3/4-Ton Light Duty Full Size Pickup (F-250) from Silsbee Ford of Silsbee in the amount of 
$29,847.17 (Bid Tabulation D); 

(5) One 3/4-Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup/Bed Delete with Utility Body (F-250 EXT) from 
Silsbee Ford of Silsbee in the amount of $30,846 (Bid Tabulation E);  

(6) One 1-Ton Diesel Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body (Ram 3500 Crew 
Cab) from Mac Haik Dodge of Temple in the amount of $48,490 (Bid Tabulation G); and 

(7)  One 6/7 Passenger Van (Grand Caravan) from Mac Haik Dodge of Temple in the amount of 
$21,697 (Bid Tabulation H). 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Approval of these vehicle purchases will allow replacement of four older City 
vehicles as well as the addition of seven vehicles to the City vehicle fleet. 
  
On February 24, 2017, five vendors submitted pricing on eight independent vehicle bids.   
 
Staff recommends award of the following bid to Caldwell Country Ford. Caldwell Country Ford took 
no exception. The City has done business with Caldwell Country Ford in the past and finds them to be 
a responsible vendor.  
 
 
 
 
 

 



04/06/17 
Item #5(H) 

 Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 
Bid Tabulation #A – 5-Passenger Midsize Sedan: 

Bid 
Tab 

# Description Qty Account Project # Budget 
Recommended 

Bid 
A Police (addition to 

fleet) 
1 110-2011-521-6213 101539 $25,000.00   $18,685.00  

A Police (addition to 
fleet) 

1 110-2011-521-6213 101540 $25,000.00 $18,685.00 

A Police (addition to 
fleet) 
 

1 110-2011-521-6213 101542 $25,000.00 $18,685.00 

A Police (replaces 
Asset # 12150) 

1 110-5900-521-6213 101544 $25,905.00 $18,685.00 

Subtotal for four (4) five passenger midsize sedans $100,905.00  $74,740.00 
 
 

  

******************************************************************************************************************* 
 
Staff recommends award of the following four bids to Mac Haik Dodge of Temple. Mac Haik Dodge 
took no exceptions. The City has done business with Mac Haik Dodge in the past and finds them to be 
a responsible vendor. 
 
Bid Tabulation #B – 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Pickup with 8’ Bed: 

Bid 
Tab 

# Description Qty Account Project # Budget Recommended Bid 
B Inspections/Permit 

(addition to fleet) 
1 110-5947-519-6213 101525  $ 26,000.00   $22,920.00 

Subtotal for light duty economy full-size pickup  $26,000.00  $22,920.00  
 
 
Bid Tabulation #C – ½-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Economy Pickups: 

Bid 
Tab 

# Description Qty Account Project # Budget 
Recommended 

Bid 
C Parks(addition to 

fleet) 
1 110-3595-552-6213 101537 $22,920.00 $22,920.00  

C Water Distribution 
(addition to fleet) 
 

1 520-5200-535-6213 101567 $28,000.00 $22,920.00 
 

Subtotal for two (2) ½-ton light duty full-size pickups  $50,920.00  $45,840.00 
 
 
 

 



04/06/17 
Item #5(H) 

 Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
Bid Tabulation #G – 1-Ton Diesel Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body: 

Bid 
Tab 

# Description Qty Account Project # Budget 
Recommended 

Bid 
G Street (replaces 

Asset#12194) 
1 110-5900-531-6213 101554 $49,750.00 $48,490.00 

 

Subtotal for 1-ton diesel crew cab and chassis  $49,750.00  $48,490.00 
 
Bid Tabulation #H -6/7 Passenger Van: 

Bid 
Tab 

# Description Qty Account Project # Budget 
Recommended 

Bid 
H Airport (replaces 

Asset #10650) 
1 110-5900-560-6213 101573 $27,000.00 $21,697.00 

Subtotal for one (1) 6/7-passenger van $27,000.00 $21,697.00 
 
******************************************************************************************************************* 
Staff recommends award of the following two bids to Silsbee Ford. Exceptions by Silsbee Ford were 
routine in nature and did not impact the overall quality of the vehicles; accordingly, staff is willing to 
accept their exceptions.  The City has done business with Silsbee Ford in the past and finds them to 
be a responsible vendor. 
 
Bid Tabulation #D – ¾-Ton Light Duty Full Size Pickup: 

Bid 
Tab 
# Description Qty Account Project # Budget 

Recommended 
Bid 

D Solid Waste(replaces 
Asset #12141) 

1 110-5900-540-6213 101551 $30,875.00 $29,847.17 
 

Subtotal for one (1) ¾- Ton Light Duty Full Size Pickup $30,875.00 $29,847.17 
 
 

Bid Tabulation #E – ¾ -Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup/Bed Delete with Utility Body: 
Bid 
Tab 
# Description Qty Account Project # Budget 

Recommended 
Bid 

E Parks (addition to 
fleet) 

1 110-5935-552-6213 101538 $35,000.00 $30,846.00 
 

Subtotal for one (1) ¾- Ton Light Duty Full Size Pickup $35,000.00 $30,846.00 
 
 

 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:  The vehicles scheduled for replacement have been evaluated to ensure 
the most sustainable and fuel efficient vehicles that meet the needs of each department are being 
purchased.  The evaluation for the vehicles were focused on right-sizing the vehicles and fuel 
options.  The vehicles provided have been right-sized for the intended use, have a high MPG and utilize 
the best fuel option for current costs and availability.  
 



04/06/17 
Item #5(H) 

 Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is appropriated for the purchase in the amount of $274,381 of the eleven 
vehicles identified above in the FY2017 Operating Budget as shown below: 
 

  
Purchase Ford 

Fusion 
(Addition to 

Fleet) 

 
Purchase Ford 

Fusion 
(Addition to 

Fleet) 

 
Purchase Ford 

Fusion 
(Addition to 

Fleet) 

 Replace 2005 
Dodge Stratus 

   

 

  
110-2011-521-

6213  
110-2011-521-

6213  
110-2011-521-

6213  
110-5900-521-

6213  Total 
 

 
Project 
101539 

Project 
101540 

Project 
101542 

Project 
101544 

 
 

Project Budget 
 

$25,000  
 

$25,000  
 

$25,000  
 

$25,905  
 

$100,905   
 

Caldwell Country 
Ford                                     

(18,685) 
                                    

(18,685) 
                             

(18,685) 
                                    

(18,685) 
                          

(74,740) 
 

 
Remaining Project 

Funds  
$6,315   $6,315   $6,315   $7,220   $26,165   

 

             

  
Purchase 
RAM 1500 

(Addition to 
Fleet) 

 
Purchase 
RAM 1500 

(Addition to 
Fleet) 

 
Purchase 
RAM 1500 

(Addition to 
Fleet) 

 
Replace 2005 

Chevy 
Silverado  

 Replace 2000 
Dodge Caravan 

  

  
110-5947-519-

6213  
110-3595-552-

6213  
520-5200-535-

6213  
110-5900-531-

6213  
110-5900-560-

6213 
 

Total Project 
101525 

Project 
101537 

Project 
101567 

Project 
101554 Project 101573  

Project Budget 
 

$26,000  
 

$22,920  
 

$28,000  
 

$49,750  
 

$27,000  
 

$153,670  
Mac Haik Dodge of 

Temple                                     
(22,920) 

                                    
(22,920) 

                             
(22,920) 

                                    
(48,490) 

                          
(21,697) 

              
(138,947) 

Remaining Project 
Funds  

$3,080   $0   $5,080   $1,260   $5,303   $14,723  

             

  Replace 2005 
Ford F150 

 
Purchase 
Ford F250 

(Addition to 
Fleet) 

  

      

  
110-5900-540-

6213  
110-5935-552-

6213  Total       
Project 
101551 

Project 
101538       

Project Budget 
 

$30,875  
 

$35,000  
 

$65,875  
      

Silsbee Ford                                     
(29,848) 

                                    
(30,846) 

                             
(60,694)       

Remaining Project 
Funds  

$1,027   $4,154   $5,181  
      

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulations (7) 
Resolution 
 
  



Bid "A" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 4 $18,988.00 $75,952.00 No Bid No Bid $18,685.00 $74,740.00

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 4 $17,964.28 $71,857.12 No Bid No Bid

Did Not Meet Model Specification

Recommended for Council Award

Ford Fusion S

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

Four (4) 5-Passenger Midsize Sedan

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 120 days?

Caldwell, TX 

No Bid

None

No

Yes

2017 Ford Fusion SE

No Bid

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

No Bid

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

Yes

None

No

No

Yes

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 120 days?

Exceptions?

Chevrolet Malibu LS

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Credit Check Authorization

Yes

Yes No Bid

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX 

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX 

MacHaik Dodge

Temple, TX



Bid "B" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $20,335.00 $20,335.00 $21,537.00 $21,537.00 $21,677.00 $21,677.00

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $21,941.56 $21,941.56 $19,920.00 $19,920.00

$1,275 + $60 $86.95 + $72

Recommended for Council Award

$26,045.00$26,069.00

$2,295.00

$280.00

$698.00

$462.00

$138.00

$495.00

Yes

No

$1,585.00

$466.00

$670.00

$260.00

$50.00

$563.50 + $36

$2,625.00

$456.00

$115.00

$400.00

$660.00

$276.00

Yes

Included in Bid Price

Spray-on Bed liner

Back up alarm

Headache Rack

Toolbox

Full length entry steps on both sides 
Unit Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options

2017 RAM1500Ford F150 Reg Cab

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Pickup

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 180 days?

$436.00

Light Bar 

Yes

None

No

Yes

2017 Ford F150

None

Ford F150

Exceptions?

Light Bar 

Yes

$22,920.00                           
(includes discount)

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

Yes

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TXCaldwell, TX 

$122.00

Credit Check Authorization

Yes

Local Preference?

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

Yes

None

No 

No

Yes

$425.00

$1,950.00

Exceptions?

Back up alarm

Headache Rack

Toolbox

Full length entry steps on both sides $148 + $60

$305.10 + $36

$350.00

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX

Mac Haik Dodge

Temple, TX 

$698.00

$24,104.00

$462.00

Chevrolet 1500 Silverado             

4X2 Reg Cab

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Yes Yes

Spray-on Bed liner

Unit Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options $24,984.11

$140.00



Bid "C" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 2 $19,989.00 $39,978.00 $20,892.00 $41,784.00 $21,279.00 $42,558.00

$23,758.00 $47,516.00 $25,424.00 $50,848.00 $25,647.00 $51,294.00

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 2 $22,188.56 $44,377.12 $19,920.00 $39,840.00

$1,275 + $60 $86.95 + $72

$25,231.11 $50,462.22

$22,920.00  
(includes 

discount) $45,840.00

Recommended for Council Award

$350.00

$50.00

$148 + $60

$305.10 + $36

Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options

Included with Bid Price

$140.00

$670.00

$260.00

$425.00

$495.00

$138.00

$698.00

$280.00

$462.00

$2,295.00

$456.00

$115.00

$660.00

$276.00

$400.00

$2,625.00

$436.00

$122.00

$698.00

$466.00

$462.00

$1,585.00

Back up alarm

Low profile toolbox

Full length entry steps on both sides 

Headache Rack

Light Bar

Sprayed-on bed liner

Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options

2017 Ram 1500Ford F150 Reg Cab

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

Two (2) 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Economy Pickup

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Caldwell, TX

Sprayed-on bed liner 

Yes

None

No

Yes

2017 Ford F150

Yes

$1,950.00

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

Yes

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

Yes

None

No

No

Yes

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Exceptions?

Low profile toolbox

Full length entry steps on both sides 

Headache Rack

Light Bar

Yes

Yes

No

None

Ford F150 

Credit Check Authorization

Yes

Back up alarm

Chevrolet Silverado 1500 

Regular Cab 4X2

$563.50 + $36

Yes Yes

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX 

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX 

Mac Haik Dodge

Temple, TX 



Bid "D" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 No Bid No Bid $23,775.00 $23,775.00 $23,923.00 $23,923.00

$10,900.00            
17 Gal.

$11,900.00      
23 Gal.

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add 
Alternate Options

$41,933.00        
17 Gal

$42,933.00     
23 Gal

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $24,934.12 $24,934.12 $27,918.00 $27,918.00

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add 
Alternate Options

Recommended for Council Award

Hydraulic utility body lift gate

Hydraulic utility body lift gate

Yes Yes

No

None

Ford F250

Credit Check Authorization

Yes

Sprayed-on bed liner

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX  

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX

Mac Haik Dodge

Temple, TX

Yes

Yes

No

No Bid

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Exceptions?

Back up alarm

Hearache Rack

Full length entry steps on both sides

CNG/Propane Bi-Fuel Conversion with 
tanks and fueling moduel

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

Yes

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Light Bar

Yes

No

No

Yes

2017 Ford F250

Yes

CNG/Propane Bi-Fuel Conversion with 
tanks and fueling moduel

2017 RAM2500 TradesmanFord F250 Reg Cab

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 3/4-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Pickup

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Caldwell, TX 

No Bid

$208.00

$341.10

No Bid

Sprayed-on bed liner

Back up alarm

Hearache Rack

Full length entry steps on both sides
Factory CNG/Propane Gaseous Engine 
Prep Package

Light Bar

$128.00

$400.00

$295.00

$289.00

Factory CNG/Propane Gaseous Engine 
Prep Package

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

$375.00

$140.00

$2,295.00

$495.00

$138.00

$462.00

$280.00

$299.00

$2,625.00

$456.00

$11,900.00

$2,576.00

$42,368.00No Bid

$3,065.00

$260.00

No Bid

$350.00

$1,493.95 $1,950.00

N/C

N/C

$2,475.00

$33,543.00

$50.00

$29,847.17

$2,470.00

$10,900.00

$289.00

$425.00



Bid "E" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid $37,263.00 $37,263.00

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $26,495.00 $26,495.00 $25,672.00 $25,672.00

Bid Price + 

Aftermarket Add Alternate Options:

$3,500.00

Recommended for Council Award

NOTE: Propane Unit add $3,500 to 

both unit numbers.

$299.00No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

2017 RAM2500 Crew Cab

Yes

No 

$280.00

$138.00

No Bid No Bid $55,751.00

$2,295.00

$2,576.00

$12,900.00

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Full length entry steps on both sides
Factory CNG/Propane Gaseous Engine 
Prep Package

CNG or Propane Bi-fuel conversion, 
complete install with fueling moduel and 
tanks (min 19 gal cap)

Hydraulic Utility body lift gate

Light Bar

Back up alarm

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options:

Credit Check Authorization

Ford F250 Ext

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 3/4-Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup / Bed Delete with Utility Body

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Caldwell, TX

Back up alarm

Yes 

Yes

2017 Ford F250

Yes 

$43,497.00 (with Propane Unit 

cost)

$39,997.00 (without Propane 

unit cost)

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

No Bid

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No

No Bid

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Exceptions?

Factory CNG/Propane Gaseous Engine 
Prep Package

$2,600.00

CNG or Propane Bi-fuel conversion, 
complete install with fueling moduel and 
tanks (min 19 gal cap)

Hydraulic Utility body lift gate

Light Bar

$208.00

$289.00

$10,900.00

$140.00

$260.00

$9,500.00

Full length entry steps on both sides

$2,475.00

No Bid

No Bid

NoneNone

N/C

$1,950.00$1,493.00

$30,846.00

Yes Yes 

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX 

Mac Haik Dodge

Temple, TX 

$50.00

No Bid



Bid "G" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid $49,427.00 $49,427.00

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 

Options

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $49,495.00 $49,495.00

$29,955.00 + 

$18,535 (Utility 

Body)

$48,490.00 
(price includes 

all add alternate 

options)

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 

Options

Recommended for Council Award

$51,196.95

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Temple, TX 

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

$2,295.00

$280.00

No Bid No Bid $52,002.00

Ford F350

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.
One (1) 1-Ton Diesel Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Caldwell, TX 

Light Bar

Full length entry step on each side

None

No

Yes

2017 Ford F350 Chassis 

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Light Bar

No

No Bid

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Exceptions?

Full length entry steps on both sides

Credit Check Authorization

$1,493.95

$208.00

Yes Yes

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX 

Mac Haik Dodge

None

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

Note: Unit Price $29,955 did not 

include Utility Body. Utility Body 

Cost: $18,535.

$1,950.00

$260.00

None

Yes

Yes

2017 RAM 3500 Crew Cab

$48,490.00



Bid "H" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $29,953.00 $29,953.00 $25,799.00 $25,799.00 $25,871.00 $25,871.00

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $25,671.00 $25,671.00 $21,697.00 $21,697.00

Recommended for Council Award

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX 

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX 

Mac Haik Dodge

Temple, TX

Chevrolet Traverse LT

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

Yes

Ford Explorer

Credit Check Authorization

No

Yes YesCredit Check Authorization

Yes

Yes

No

No

Yes

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 120 days?

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Exceptions?

Yes

Yes

NoLocal Preference?

Yes

None No

No

Yes

2017 Ford Explorer

2017 Dodge Grand CaravanFord Explorer

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 6/7 Passenger SUV

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 120 days?

Caldwell, TX 

Yes



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 11 VEHICLES FOR VARIOUS 
DEPARTMENTS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $274,380.17; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, on January 21, 2016, the City received six bids for the replacement of seven older 
City vehicles as well as the addition of four vehicles as follows: 
 

• Four 5-passenger midsize sedans (Ford Fusion SE) from Caldwell Country Ford 
of Caldwell, Texas, in the amount of $74,740; 

• One 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Pickup (Ram 1500) from Mac Haik Dodge of 
Temple, Texas, in the amount of $22,920; 

• Two 1/2-Ton Light Duty Full-Size Economy Pickups (Ram 1500) from Mac 
Haik Dodge of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $45,840;  

• One 3/4-Ton Light Duty Full Size Pickup (F-250) from Silsbee Ford of Silsbee, 
Texas, in the amount of $29,847.17; 

• One 3/4-Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup/Bed Delete with Utility Body (F-
250 EXT) from Silsbee Ford of Silsbee in the amount of $30,846; 

• One 1-Ton Diesel Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body 
(Ram 3500 Crew Cab) from Mac Haik Dodge of Temple, Texas, in the amount 
of $48,490.00; and 

• One 6/7 Passenger Van (Grand Caravan) from Mac Haik Dodge of Temple, 
Texas, in the amount of $21,697; 

 
 Whereas, Staff recommends award of the four bids to Caldwell Country Ford of Caldwell, 
Texas – Caldwell Country Chevrolet took no exceptions and the City has done business with Caldwell 
Country Ford in the past and finds it to be a responsible vendor; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends award of the five bids to Mac Haik Dodge of Temple, Texas –
Mac Haik Dodge took no exceptions and the City has done business with Mac Haik Dodge in the past 
and finds it to be a responsible vendor; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends award of the two bids to Silsbee Ford of Silsbee, Texas - the 
exceptions by Silsbee Ford were routine in nature, did not impact the overall quality of the vehicles, 
and Staff is willing to accept their exceptions; 
 

Whereas, the City has done business with Silsbee Ford in the past and finds it to be a 
responsible vendor; 
 

Whereas, the vehicles scheduled for replacement have been evaluated to ensure the most 
sustainable and fuel efficient vehicles which will meet the needs of the department for which they are 
being purchased; 
 

Whereas, the evaluation for the vehicles was focused on right-sizing the vehicle and fuel 
options - the above listed vehicles have been right-sized for the intended use, have a high MPG and 
utilize the best fuel option for current costs and availability; 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

Whereas, funding for the purchase of eleven vehicles was included in the Council adopted 
fiscal year 2017 budget in Accounts outlined below: 

 
• Police – Account No. 110-2011-521-6213, Project No. 101539; 
• Police – Account No. 110-2011-521-6213, Project No. 101540; 
• Police – Account No. 110-2011-521-6213, Project No. 101542; 
• Police – Account No. 110-5900-521-6213, Project No. 101544; 
• Inspections/Permits – Account No. 110-5947-519-6213, Project No. 101525; 
• Parks - Account No. 110-3539-552-6213, Project No. 101537; 
• Water Distribution – Account No. 520-5200-535-6213, Project No. 101567;  
• Solid Waste – Account No. 110-5900-540-6213, Project No. 101551; 
• Parks – Account No. 110-5935-552-6213, Project No. 101538; 
• Streets – Account No. 110-5900-531-6213, Project No. 101554;  
• Airport – Account No. 110-5900-560-6213, Project No. 101573; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of 11 vehicles for various departments as 
outlined above, in the amount of $274,380.17, from Caldwell Country Ford of Caldwell, Texas, Mac 
Haik Dodge of Temple, Texas, and Silsbee Ford of Silsbee, Texas. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for these purchases. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Director of Parks & Recreation 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
 ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Holy 
Contractors, LLC of Hewitt, in the amount of $34,999.99, for drainage improvements at the Summit 
Recreation Center.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this construction contract will provide for much needed drainage 
improvements on the north side of the Summit Recreation Center, located at 620 Fryers Creek Drive. 
See attached aerial drawing. The drainage improvements involve upsizing the storm drainage system 
to prevent water penetration issues into the facility.    
 
As shown on the attached letter of recommendation and bid tabulation prepared by Clark & Fuller, on 
March 23, 2017, five bids were received for this project with bids ranging from $34,999.99 to $68,490. 
Staff and Clark & Fuller are recommending award of the construction contract to Holy Contractors, LLC, 
the low bidder, in the amount of $34,999.99. Both Clark & Fuller and the City have had positive 
experiences working with Holy Contractors on previous projects.   
 
The construction of this project will be completed by May 26, 2017.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being presented to Council to appropriate the additional 
funding needed for the construction contract with Holy Contractors in the amount of $34,999.99.  
Funding is appropriated in account 361-3250-551-6978, project #101623, as follows: 

 
  Project Budget  $             34,198  
  Encumbered/Committed to Date  $                 (183) 
  Budget Adjustment  $                1,835  
  Holy Contractors, LLC  $            (35,000) 
  Remaining Funds Available  $                   850  

 
 
  
 



04/06/17 
Item #5(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Aerial Drawing 
Clark & Fuller Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
  



S.
 1

3T
H

 S
TR

EE
T

FRYERS CREEK DR.

SUMMIT FITNESSCENTER



City of Temple - Summit Fitness Center Phase II-Drainage Improvements – Letter of Recommendation Page 1 
 

 
 

 
 

215 North Main Street 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 (254) 899-0899 
Fax (254) 899-0901 

www.clark-fuller.com 
Firm Registration No: F-10384 

 
  

 
 
 
March 23, 2017 
 
 
City of Temple Purchasing 
Belinda Mattke 
3210 East Avenue H, Building C 
Temple, Texas 76501 
 
 
Re: City of Temple - Summit Fitness Center Phase II-Drainage Improvements 
  
 
Dear Mrs. Mattke,  
 
On March 23rd, we received five (5) bids for the City of Temple - Summit Fitness Center Phase 
II-Drainage Improvements. We have reviewed each bid for accuracy and completeness.  Holy 
Contractors submitted a Base Bid totaling $34,999.99, making them the apparent low bidder.  
Please see the enclosed Bid Tabulation Sheet and Bid Schedule Breakout for detailed 
information.   
 
The engineers project estimate, for the Phase II Drainage Improvements, was $34,198.00. 
 
We are recommending that you award the contract to Holy Contractors. We believe, through 
personal experience, that Holy Contractors is qualified and is capable of providing the City of 
Temple - Summit Fitness Center Phase II-Drainage Improvements and we look forward to 
working with them on this project. 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Monty Clark, P.E., CPESC 
 

http://www.clark-fuller.com/�


No. Item Description Est. Quan. UOM Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

1 Site R.O.W. Preparation & Clearing 100% LS 2,350.00$        2,350.00$              5,275.00$      5,275.00$             9,200.00$      9,200.00$        4,000.00$      4,000.00$              7,500.00$      7,500.00$                
2 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits, & Insurance 100% LS 3,000.00$        3,000.00$              1,600.00$      1,600.00$             3,000.00$      3,000.00$        4,000.00$      4,000.00$              9,000.00$      9,000.00$                
3 New 12" HDPE Storm Sewer 110 LF 80.00$             8,800.00$              41.00$           4,510.00$             110.00$         12,100.00$      105.00$         11,550.00$            70.00$           7,700.00$                
4 New 8" HDPE Storm Sewer 10 LF 75.00$             750.00$                10.00$           100.00$                48.70$           487.00$           105.00$         1,050.00$              50.00$           500.00$                   
5 New 12" x 8" HDPE Tee 1 EA 1,000.00$        1,000.00$              210.00$         210.00$                600.00$         600.00$           300.00$         300.00$                 800.00$         800.00$                   
6 New 15" Circular Drain Basin with Heavy Duty Galvanized Pedestrian Grate 5 EA 700.00$           3,500.00$              1,600.00$      8,000.00$             2,000.00$      10,000.00$      300.00$         1,500.00$              1,000.00$      5,000.00$                
7 New Trench Drain with Heavy Duty Ductile Iron Slotted Longitudinal Drain 30.5 LF 160.00$           4,880.00$              210.00$         6,405.00$             150.00$         4,575.00$        250.92$         7,653.06$              180.00$         5,490.00$                
8 Cored Connection to Existing Retaining Wall 1 EA 1,000.00$        1,000.00$              1,000.00$      1,000.00$             3,000.00$      3,000.00$        1,200.00$      1,200.00$              3,500.00$      3,500.00$                
9 Connection to Existing Roof Drain Downspout 3 EA 500 00$ 1 500 00$ 333 33$ 999 99$ 1 200 00$ 3 600 00$ 350 00$ 1 050 00$ 1 000 00$ 3 000 00$

Walenta's Construction, LLC

Bid Tabulation Sheet
Summit Fitness Center Phase II-Drainage Improvments

Bid Date: March 23, 2017

Wilson Construction Services Holy Contractors Bell Contractors TCB Construction Inc.

9 Connection to Existing Roof Drain Downspout 3 EA 500.00$          1,500.00$             333.33$        999.99$               1,200.00$     3,600.00$        350.00$         1,050.00$             1,000.00$     3,000.00$               
10 Saw Cut, Remove, and Replace Existing Concrete Flatwork 50 SY 180.00$           9,000.00$              90.00$           4,500.00$             88.00$           4,400.00$        180.00$         9,000.00$              380.00$         19,000.00$              
11 Remove, Adjust, and Relocate Existing Pool Feed Return Lines 100.00% LS 2,000.00$        2,000.00$              2,400.00$      2,400.00$             11,300.00$    11,300.00$      500.00$         500.00$                 7,000.00$      7,000.00$                

37,780.00$          34,999.99$           62,262.00$      41,803.06$            68,490.00$              Total Base Bid



Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2017
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

361-3250-551-69-78 101623
361-1600-512-69-79 101624 1,835          

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………………………… 1,835$        

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

To appropriate additional funding for drainage improvements for Summit Fitness Center in an estimated amount of $1,835 from the remodel to 
Legal's office suites.

4/6/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased account are 
available.

1,835$        

INCREASE

1,835$        
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

Capital- Bonds / Summit Fitness
Capital- Bonds / Legal

Date

Date

Date

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH HOLY 
CONTRACTORS, LLC OF HEWITT, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$34,999.99, FOR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS AT THE SUMMIT 
RECREATION CENTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Summit Recreation Center is in need of drainage improvements on the 
north side of the building that involves the upsizing of the storm drainage system to prevent 
water penetration issues into the facility located at 620 Fryers Creek Drive; 
 
 Whereas, on March 23, 2017, five bids were received for this project with the low bidder 
being Holy Contractors, LLC of Hewitt, Texas in the amount of $34,999.99 – Staff and Clark & 
Fuller have had positive experiences working with Holy Contractors on previous projects; 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract with Holy 
Contractors, LLC of Hewitt, Texas in the amount of $34,999.99, for drainage improvements at 
the Summit Recreation Center; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this construction contract is available, but an amendment to the 
fiscal year 2017 budget needs to be approved to transfer these funds in to Account No. 361-
3250-551-6978, Project No. 101623; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Holy Construction, LLC of 
Hewitt, Texas in the amount of $34,999.99, for drainage improvements at the Summit Recreation 
Center. 
 
 Part 3:  The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2017 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 

Part 4:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 
contract between the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers to reimburse 
the City for salary and benefit expenses and vehicle cost related to police patrols at Temple Lake Park 
from May 6, 2017 through September 4, 2017. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple and the US Army Corps of Engineers have identified a need for 
increased law enforcement services for Temple Lake Park on Lake Belton during the late spring and 
summer months.  This contract will provide for the city to be reimbursed for up to 508 hours of additional 
police patrols within the park and vehicle cost.  We have provided this service for the last four years 
that resulted in positive outcomes for both the City of Temple and the Corps of Engineers. 
 
TERM OF AGREEMENT: This contract shall commence on May 6, 2017 and end on September 4, 
2017.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Per the contract, the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers will reimburse 
approximately $28,880 in police officer salaries and benefits, and $10,160 in vehicle costs based on 
508 hours of additional police patrols at Temple Lake Park. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF 
THE ARMY, CORPS OF ENGINEERS, TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR 
SALARY, BENEFIT EXPENSES, AND VEHICLE COSTS RELATED TO 
POLICE PATROLS AT TEMPLE LAKE PARK FROM MAY 6, 2017 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 4, 2017; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers have 

identified the need for increased law enforcement services at Temple Lake Park on Lake Belton 
during the late spring and summer months; 

 
 Whereas, Temple Police have provided this service for the past 4 years and it has 
resulted in positive outcomes for both the City of Temple and the Corps of Engineers – the new 
contract will begin on May 6, 2017 and end on September 4, 2017; 

 
Whereas, the Army Corps of Engineers will reimburse the City for up to 508 hours of 

additional police patrols within Temple Lake Park as well as vehicle costs; 
 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a contract with the Department of the 

Army, Corps of Engineers, to reimburse the City for salary and benefit expenses, and vehicle 
costs related to patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 6, 2017 through September 4, 2017;  

 
 Whereas, per the contract with the Department of the Army, the Corps of Engineers will 
reimburse approximately $28,880 in police officer salaries and benefits, and $10,160 in vehicle 
costs based on 508 hours of additional police patrols at Temple Lake Park; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to enter into a contract with the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers for reimbursement to the City for salary, benefit expenses and vehicle costs related to 
police patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 6, 2017 through September 4, 2017. 

 
 Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Brian Chandler, Planning Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a First Amendment to the 
Development Agreement between the City of Temple and John Earl Fielding to allow a subdivision of 
property without requiring voluntary annexation.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: In 2007, the City entered into a “Development Agreement” (“Agreement”) with John 
Earl Fielding, the owner of property located on Cedar Creek Road and designated by the Bell County 
Appraisal District as property number 35358. At the time of the Agreement, the City had initiated 
annexation proceedings on all or a portion of Mr. Fielding’s property. Pursuant to Texas Local 
Government Code Sections 43.035 and 212.172, Mr. Fielding decided to enter into the Agreement with 
the City to have his property remain in the extraterritorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”). The property will remain 
in the ETJ for a period of 12 years from the date of the Agreement, unless the property owner files a 
subdivision plat or takes any action to subdivide the property that would require a plat to be filed. If such 
actions are taken, the plat would serve as a voluntary petition for annexation.  
 
Mr. Fielding’s property is approximately 69 acres. Mr. Fielding is interested in selling a 75-foot strip of 
land on the east side of his property to a neighboring property owner to be used for access. This 
subdivision would require a plat to be filed with the City and would trigger annexation of the 75-foot strip 
pursuant to the Agreement. However, Mr. Fielding has requested that the City consider entering into a 
First Amendment to the Agreement to waive the annexation requirement at this time.  
 
If the First Amendment is approved, Mr. Fielding would still be required to plat the property, but 
voluntary annexation would not be triggered. However, any future subdivisions of the property would 
require voluntary annexation.  
 
Staff has discussed the requested First Amendment and is comfortable moving forward with the 
subdivision of the property without triggering voluntary annexation.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The property covered by the Agreement is located in the ETJ and is not subject to 
City taxation. If the First Amendment is authorized and executed, the property will remain in the ETJ.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 



 

      
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH JOHN EARL FIELDING TO ALLOW A SUBDIVISION OF 
PROPERTY WITHOUT REQUIRING VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

                
 

Whereas, in 2007, the City entered into a Development Agreement (“Agreement”) with 
John Earl Fielding, the owner of property located on Cedar Creek Road and designated by 
the Bell County Appraisal District as Property No. 35358; 

 
Whereas, at the time of the Agreement, the City had initiated annexation proceedings 

on all or a portion of Mr. Fielding’s property and pursuant to Texas Local Government Code 
Sections 43.035 and 212.172, Mr. Fielding decided to enter into the Agreement with the City 
to have his property remain in the extraterritorial jurisdiction (“ETJ”); 

 
Whereas, the property will remain in the ETJ for a period of 12 years from the date of 

the Agreement, unless the property owner files a subdivision plat or takes any action to 
subdivide the property that would require a plat to be filed - if such actions are taken, the plat 
would serve as a voluntary petition for annexation;  
 

Whereas, Mr. Fielding’s property is approximately 69 acres and he is interested in 
selling a 75-foot strip of land on the east side of his property to a neighboring property owner 
to be used for access – this subdivision would require a plat to be filed with the City and 
would trigger annexation of the 75-foot strip pursuant to the Agreement; 

 
Whereas, Mr. Fielding has requested that the City instead consider entering into a First 

Amendment to the Agreement to waive the annexation requirement at this time; 
 
Whereas, upon approval, Mr. Fielding will be required to plat the property, but 

voluntary annexation would not be triggered; however, any future subdivisions of the 
property would require voluntary annexation;  
 

Whereas, Staff has discussed the requested First Amendment and is comfortable moving 
forward with the subdivision of the property without triggering voluntary annexation; 

 
Whereas, the property covered by the Agreement is located in the ETJ and is not subject 

to City taxation and if the First Amendment is authorized and executed, the property will remain 
in the ETJ; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 



 

 
 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 

to form by the City Attorney, to execute a First Amendment to the Development Agreement 
with John Earl Fielding to allow a subdivision of property without requiring voluntary 
annexation. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

  
 
              

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Chief Mitch Randles, Fire Chief 
Charla Thomas, Deputy City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Mutual Aid Agreement between 
the Fort Hood Fire Department and the City for mutual aid by the respective fire departments at various 
locations. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This Mutual Aid Agreement will allow Temple Fire Department to provide and receive 
mutual aid fire services with Fort Hood Fire Department throughout the City of Temple, and Fort Hood 
Military complex for fire protection and prevention services, including, but not limited to, emergency 
services, including basic and advanced life support, hazardous materials containment and confinement, 
special rescue events, and specialized rescue incidents as deemed necessary by the respective Fire 
Chiefs. City firefighters will perform fire services and respond with appropriate/designated fire 
equipment and will receive reciprocal mutual aid. Each party shall bear their own costs in the fulfillment 
of this agreement, to include personnel, equipment, insurance and liability. 
 
The Mutual Aid Agreement will be effective until terminated by either party in writing but may be 
reviewed and amended from time to time as needed. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Each party identified in the Mutual Aid Agreement will be responsible for their own 
costs associated with fulfillment of the agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



  
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE FORT HOOD 
FIRE DEPARTMENT AND THE TEMPLE FIRE DEPARTMENT FOR MUTUAL 
AID BY RESPECTIVE FIRE DEPARTMENTS AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  

 Whereas, an Interlocal Agreement between the Fort Hood Fire Department and the Temple 
Fire Department will allow the Temple Fire Department to provide and receive mutual aid emergency 
services with Fort Hood Fire Department throughout the City of Temple, and Fort Hood Military 
Installation for emergency incidents as deemed necessary by the respective Fire Chiefs; 

 
 Whereas, City of Temple firefighters will perform fire services and respond with 
appropriate/designated fire equipment and will receive reciprocal mutual aid from Fort Hood Fire 
Department - all parties shall bear their own costs in the fulfillment of this agreement, to include 
personnel, equipment, insurance and liability; 

 
 Whereas, this Agreement will be effective until terminated in writing by either party, but will 
be reviewed annually and amended from time to time as needed; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 
factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as to 

form by the City Attorney, to enter into an Interlocal Agreement between the Fort Hood Fire 
Department and the Temple Fire Department for mutual aid by respective fire departments at various 
locations. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 

was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
               

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

   ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 

04/06/17 
Item #5(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal agreement with the 
Texas Department of State Health Services for the provision of on-line computer services including 
access to Texas Electronic Registration Remote System for vital records through August 31, 2019. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: For several years, the City Secretary’s Office has been utilizing certain online 
services provided by the Texas Department of State Health Services (“DSHS”). DSHS provides vital 
records information, including access to birth certificates for births outside of the City. The current 
agreement between the City and DSHS regarding these services was signed in September, 2015, and 
will expire in August, 2017.  
 
In March 2015, the City Council adopted an amendment to the DSHS agreement that added a “Data 
Use Agreement” through which the City must agree to follow certain procedures when handling 
confidential information obtained through DSHS.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available as allocated in the FY2017 Operating Budget in the amount of 
$8,000 in account 110-1400-511-2623.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

     
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES FOR ONLINE COMPUTER 
SERVICES, INCLUDING ACCESS TO TEXAS ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION 
REMOTE SYSTEM FOR VITAL RECORDS THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2017; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

                             
 

 Whereas, for several years, the City Secretary’s Office has been utilizing online services 
provided by the Texas Department of State Health Services (“DSHS”) which provides vital 
records information, including access to birth certificates for births outside of the City; 

 
 Whereas, the City Council adopted an amendment to the DSHS agreement that added a 
“Data Use Agreement” through which the City must agree to follow certain procedures when 
handling confidential information obtained through DSHS;  

 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas 
Department of State Health Services for the provision of online computer services including 
access to Texas Registration Remote System for vital records through August 31, 2107, in the 
amount of $8,000; 

 
Whereas, funding for this agreement is available in the fiscal year 2017 Operating Budget in 

Account No. 110-1400-511-2623 for; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
  Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas Department of 
State Health Services for online computer services including access to Texas Registration Remote 
System for vital records through August 31, 2107, in the amount of $8,000. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

  
               

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
04/06/17 

Item #5(N) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
Kirk Scopac, Fleet Services Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the rejection of all bids received on 
February 24, 2017, for a 1-ton crew cab and chassis, dual rear wheels with utility body truck.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On February 24, 2017, three vendors submitted bids on a 1-ton diesel crew cab and 
chassis, dual rear wheels with utility body truck. The bids are shown on the attached bid tabulation 
sheet.   
 
Staff recommends Council reject the three bids received for the truck.  It was discovered after the bids 
were opened that all bids were over budget, with the exception of one vendor which specified the wrong 
vehicle.  
 
Staff is researching the option of purchasing this vehicle through a cooperative contract.  Staff 
anticipates coming back to Council at a later date with a recommendation for award of the truck’s 
purchase.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  



Bid "F" Tabulation

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 No Bid No Bid No Bid No Bid $41,923.00 $41,923.00

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options:

Description Qty Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price

Total Bid Price 1 $42,521.12 $42,521.12 $36,597.00 $36,597.00

Bid Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options:

$208.00Full length entry steps on both sides

Yes Yes

Caldwell Country Ford

Caldwell, TX 

Silsbee Ford

Silsbee, TX 

Mac Haik Dodge

Temple, TX 

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

Yes

Yes

Credit Check Authorization

Local Preference?

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

Credit Check Authorization

None

Light Bar

No

No Bid No Bid

Jim Bass Ford, Inc.

San Angelo, TX 

Local Preference?

Exceptions?

YesDelivery within 180 days?

Exceptions?

Caldwell, TX 

$10,900.00

CNG or Propane Bi-fuel conversion, 
complete install with fueling moduel and 
tanks (min 19 gal cap)

Light Bar

Yes

None

No

Yes

2017 Ford F350 Chassis Cab

Tabulation of Bids Received

on February 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 1-Ton Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body

Bid# 13-10-17

YesDelivery within 180 days?

No Bid

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid

No Bid No Bid

Factory CNG/Propane Gaseous Engine 
Prep Package

CNG or Propane Bi-fuel conversion, 
complete install with fueling moduel and 
tanks (min 19 gal cap)

Full length entry step on each side

No Bid 

$2,295.00

$299.00

$12,900.00

$280.00

$57,697.00

$289.00

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

$1,493.95

Recommend Rejection of all Bids; All bids received are over budget.

$55,412.07

Not Avaliable 

$1,950.00

Not Avaliable 

$260.00

$38,807.00

Factory CNG/Propane Gaseous Engine 
Prep Package

2017 RAM 3500 Crew Cab 4X2Ford F350 Crew



 
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, REJECTING ALL BIDS RECEIVED ON FEBRUARY 24, 2017 FOR 
A 1-TON CREW CAB AND CHASSIS, DUAL REAR WHEELS WITH 
UTILITY BODY TRUCK; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, on February 24, 2017, the City received three bids for a 1-ton diesel crew 

cab and chassis, dual rear wheels with utility body truck; 
 
Whereas, immediately after bids were opened, Staff realized all bids were over budget 

with the exception of one vendor which specified the wrong vehicle; 
  

 Whereas, per the Local Government Code §252.043(f), the governing body is the 
designated authority to reject any and all bids;  

 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council reject the bids received on February 24, 2017 for 

a 1-ton crew cab and chassis, dual rear wheels with utility body truck – the rejection of these 
bids will allow Staff time to research the option of purchasing this vehicle through a 
cooperative contract; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they 
are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety.  

 
Part 2: The City Council rejects the bids received on February 24, 2017 for a 1-ton 

crew cab and chassis, dual rear wheels with utility body truck. 
 
Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

      DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(O) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2  
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution suspending the April 21, 2017 effective date of 
Oncor Electric Delivery Company’s requested rate change and approving cooperation with the Steering 
Committee of Cities Served by Oncor to hire legal and consulting services and to negotiate with Oncor 
and direct any necessary litigation and appeals.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Oncor Electric Delivery Company ("Oncor" or "the Company") filed an application 
on or about March 17, 2017 with cities retaining original jurisdiction (which includes the City of Temple) 
seeking to increase system-wide transmission and distribution rates by $317 million or approximately 
7.5% over present revenues. The Company asks the City to approve an 11.8% increase in residential 
rates and a 0.5% increase in street lighting rates. If approved, a residential customer using 1000 kWh 
per month would see a bill increase of about $6.68 per month.  
 
This proposed resolution would suspend the April 21, 2017 effective date of the Company's rate 
increase for the maximum period permitted by law to allow the City, working in conjunction with the 
Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor, to evaluate the filing, determine whether the filing 
complies with law, and if lawful, to determine what further strategy, including settlement, to pursue.   
 
The law provides that a rate request made by an electric utility cannot become effective until at least 
35 days following the filing of the application to change rates. The law permits the City to suspend the 
rate change for 90 days after the date the rate change would otherwise be effective.  If the City fails to 
take some action regarding the filing before the effective date, Oncor's rate request is deemed 
administratively approved.   
 
The City of City is a member of a 156-city coalition known as the Steering Committee of Cities Served 
by Oncor ("Steering Committee"). The Steering Committee has been in existence since the late 1980s. 
It took on a formal structure in the early 1990s when cities served by the former TXU gave up their 
statutory right to rate case expense reimbursement in exchange for higher franchise fee payments. 
Empowered by city resolutions and funded by per capita assessments, the Steering Committee has 
been the primary public interest advocate before the Public Utility Commission, the Courts, and the 
Legislature on electric utility regulation matters for the last 30 years.  
 
 



04/06/17 
Item #5(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
Although Oncor has increased rates many times over the past few years, this is the first comprehensive 
base rate case for the Company since January, 2011.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City receives a franchise fee from Oncor quarterly.  Per the current franchise 
agreement with Oncor Electric Delivery, the amount of the franchise fee is based on the total kWh 
delivered to retail customers within the City limits at a factor rate of .002652.  Changes in the rate do 
not impact the amount of the franchise fee paid by Oncor to the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
 
 
  



 1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
SUSPENDING THE APRIL 21, 2017 EFFECTIVE DATE OF ONCOR ELECTRIC 
DELIVERY COMPANY’S REQUESTED RATE CHANGE TO PERMIT THE 
CITY TIME TO STUDY THE REQUEST AND ESTABLISH REASONABLE 
RATES; APPROVING COOPERATION WITH THE STEERING COMMITTEE 
OF CITIES SERVED BY ONCOR TO HIRE LEGAL AND CONSULTING 
SERVICES; TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE COMPANY AND DIRECT ANY 
NECESSARY LITIGATION AND APPEALS; FINDING THAT THE MEETING 
AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS 
REQUIRED BY LAW; REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 
COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL FOR THE STEERING COMMITTEE. 

                
 

 Whereas, on or about March 17, 2017, Oncor Electric Delivery Company (“Oncor”), 
pursuant to PURA §§ 33.001 and 36.001 filed with the City of Temple, a Statement of Intent 
to increase electric transmission and distribution rates in all municipalities exercising original 
jurisdiction within its service area effective April 21, 2017; and 
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple is a member of the Steering Committee of Cities Served 
by Oncor (“Steering Committee”) and will cooperate with the 156 similarly situated city 
members and other city participants in conducting a review of the Company’s application 
and to hire and direct legal counsel and consultants and to prepare a common response and to 
negotiate with the Company prior to getting reasonable rates and direct any necessary 
litigation; and 
 
 Whereas, PURA § 36.108 grants local regulatory authorities the right to suspend the 
effective date of proposed rate changes for ninety days after the date the rate change would 
otherwise be effective;  
 

Whereas, the City receives a franchise fee from Oncor quarterly and per the current 
franchise agreement with Oncor Electric Delivery, the amount of the franchise fee is based 
on the total kWh delivered to retail customers within the City limits at a factor rate of 
.002652 - changes in the rate do not impact the amount of the franchise fee paid by Oncor to 
the City;  
 
 Whereas, PURA § 33.023 provides that costs incurred by Cities in ratemaking 
proceedings are to be reimbursed by the regulated utility; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 



 2 

 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The City Council hereby suspends the April 21, 2017 effective date of the 
rate request submitted by Oncor on or about March 17, 2017, for the maximum period 
allowed by law to permit adequate time to review the proposed changes and to establish 
reasonable rates. 
 

Part 3:  As indicated in the City’s resolution approving membership in the Steering 
Committee, the Executive Committee of the Steering Committee is authorized to hire and 
direct legal counsel and consultants, negotiate with the Company, make recommendations 
regarding reasonable rates, and to intervene and direct any necessary administrative 
proceedings or court litigation associated with an appeal of a rate ordinance and the rate case 
filed with the City or Public Utility Commission. 
 
 Part 4:  That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed by Oncor. 
 

Part 5:  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 
 Part 6:  A copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Oncor, Care of Howard Fisher, 
Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC, 1616 Woodall Rodgers Freeway, Dallas, Texas 
75202 and to Thomas Brocato, Counsel to the Steering Committee, at Lloyd Gosselink 
Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., P.O. Box 1725, Austin, Texas 78767-1725. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
  
 
              

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(P) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, Public Works Director 
Lisa Sebek, Solid Waste Services Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution setting associated fees and rebates for recycling 
processing and authorizing the City Manager to amend the fees and rebates as needed to support 
operation of the recycling program.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.  
 
BACKGROUND:  On April 1st, 2017, the City of Temple transitioned recycling processing services to 
City operations, which includes transfer of single stream curbside recycling materials along with 
brokerage sale of individual marketable commodities.   
 
The City of Temple facility will process all residential single stream curbside material (RSS) in order to 
continue the recycling services currently provided to City of Temple residents. The facility will also 
accept RSS and mixed plastics from other entities and will charge a processing fee based on the net 
costs associated with the processing and transferring of these materials. Under the services agreement 
authorized at the March 16, 2017 Council Meeting, these materials will be transferred to Balcones 
Resources for further processing and marketing. 
 
Commercial businesses in the area can deliver, or have the City pickup, sorted and clean individual 
marketable commodities to the facility. These commodities include, but are not limited to, old corrugated 
cardboard (OCC), sorted office paper (SOP), old newspaper (ONP), and mixed paper (MXP). Under 
the services agreement authorized at the March 16, 2017 Council Meeting, Balcones Resources will 
act as a broker to assist with the sale of these commodities in an effort to offset the cost of operating 
the facility. The City will offer a monthly rebate to customers based on both volume delivered and the 
monthly published market index price per ton (Pulp&Paper Week), as shown below:   
 

Monthly Market Index  Customer Rebate Schedule  
Commodity $/TN - February 2016  TN/Month Delivered % index 

OCC $80  <1 0% 
SOP $120  <2 35% 
ONP $55  <12 45% 
MXP $50  >12 55% 

  



04/06/17 
Item #5(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
The City reserves the right for recycling personnel to reject any load they deem mixed or contaminated.   
 
Staff will provide the City Council with an annual updated fee and rebate schedule each September 
with a summary of changes adopted during the previous year. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Based on historical data provided by Balcones, commercial customers account for 
2,100 tons of marketable commodities received annually at the recycling facility.  Provided the City 
maintains these current customer volumes and market rates remain steady, the City would receive 
$200,000 annually from the sale of commodities.  This estimate is subject to the volatility of both these 
variables.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

      
RESOLUTION NO.    

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
SETTING RATES, ASSOCIATED FEES AND REBATES FOR RECYCLING 
PROCESSING; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND THE FEES 
AND REBATES AS NEEDED TO SUPPORT OPERATIONS OF THE 
RECYCLING PROGRAM; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

                
 

Whereas, on April 1, 2017, the City of Temple transitioned recycling processing 
services to City operations, which includes the transfer of single stream curbside recycling 
materials along with brokerage sales of individual marketable commodities; 

 
Whereas, the facility will process all residential single stream curbside material (RSS) in 

order to continue the recycling services currently provided to City of Temple residents; 
 
Whereas, the facility will accept RSS and mixed plastics from other entities and will 

charge a processing fee based on the net costs associated with the processing and transferring 
of these materials; 

 
Whereas, under the services agreement authorized by Council on March 16, 2017, these 

materials will be transferred to Balcones Resources for further processing and marketing and 
Balcones Resources will act as a broker to assist with the sale of these commodities in an effort 
to offset the cost of operating the facility;   

 
Whereas, commercial businesses in the area can deliver, or have the City pickup, sort 

and clean individual marketable commodities to the facility - these commodities include, but 
are not limited to, old corrugated cardboard (OCC), sorted office paper (SOP), old newspaper 
(ONP), and mixed paper (MXP); 

 
Whereas, the City will offer a monthly rebate to customers based on both volume 

delivered and the monthly published market index price per ton, as shown below: 
 

Monthly Market Index 
 

Customer Rebate Schedule  
Commodity $/TN - February 2016 

 
TN/Month Delivered % index 

OCC $80 
 

<1 0% 
SOP $120 

 
<2 35% 

ONP $55 
 

<12 45% 
MXP $50 

 
>12 55% 

 
Whereas, the City reserves the right for recycling personnel to reject any load they deem 

mixed or contaminated; 



2 
 

 
 
 
Whereas, based on historical data provided by Balcones, commercial customers account 

for 2,100 tons of marketable commodities received annually at the recycling facility - provided 
the City maintains these current customer volumes and market rates remain steady, the City 
would receive $200,000 annually from the sale of commodities, subject to the volatility of both 
these variables; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 

to authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager to amend the fees and rebates as 

needed to support operations of the recycling program.   
 

  Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
  
 
             

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
04/06/17 

Item #5(Q) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
  
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution appointing Brynn Myers as the interim City 
Manager and setting compensation for the position.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On February 28, 2017, Jonathan Graham submitted his letter of intent to retire as 
the City Manager of Temple effective close of business on Friday, June 23, 2017. The proposed 
resolution would appoint Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager, to serve as the Acting City Manager for 
a period of time beginning Friday, April 14, 2017 through June 23, 2017.  As of June 24, 2017, Mrs. 
Myers will serve as the Interim City Manager. 
 
The proposed resolution appoints Mrs. Myers as both the acting and interim City Manager and sets her 
compensation at $185,000 annually. The appointment of Mrs. Myers will be effective Friday, April 14, 
2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the compensation is available in the FY 2017 Operating Budget.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPOINTING BRYNN MYERS AS INTERIM CITY MANAGER, 
SETTING HER COMPENSATION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
  

Whereas, on  February 28, 2017, Jonathan Graham submitted his letter of intent to 
retire as City Manager of the City of Temple effective close of business Friday, June 23, 
2017; 
 

Whereas, the appointment of Brynn Myers, Assistant City Manager, to serve as the 
Acting City Manager will be for a period of time beginning Friday, April 14, 2017 through 
June 23, 2017 and as of June 24, 2017, Mrs. Myers will then serve as Interim City Manager; 
 

Whereas, Council confirms the appointment of Mrs. Myers as both the acting and 
interim City Manager and sets her compensation at $185,000 annually; 
 

Whereas, funding for this appointment is available in the fiscal year 2017 Operating 
Budget; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council confirms the appointment of Brynn Myers as Interim City 
Manager and sets her compensation at $185,000. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

   
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

04/06/17 
Item #5(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2016-2017. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2016-2017 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The total amount of budget amendments is $24,550. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 
  



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

April 6, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-1800-525-2221 Capital < $5,000 / Computer Equipment 3,760$           
110-0000-452-0455 Administrative Fees / Technology Fee 3,760$           

To appropriate Court Technology Fees for the replacement of three Quick Scan Scanners,
two wireless keyboard-mouse combos, and one Surface Pro 3.

260-2300-540-2649 Contracted Services / Landfill Tipping Fees 9,425$           
260-0000-431-0261 State Grants / State Grants 9,425$           

110-2057-521-2121 Supplies / Firearms/Munitions 10,365$         
110-0000-442-0720 Police Revenue / Police Revenue 10,365$         

110-4000-555-2225 Capital < $5,000 / Books & Periodicals 1,000$           
110-0000-461-0841 Other / Donations/Gifts 1,000$           

To appropriate a donation received from the Tocker Foundation for the purchase of books
for early childhood and adult literacy.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 24,550$         24,550$         
Reconciliation

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 5,257$           
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                    
Taken From Judgments & Damages -                    
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 5,257$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 560,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 560,000$       

Net Balance Council Contingency 565,257$       

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                  
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                    
Taken From Budget Sweep -                    
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

To appropriate grant proceeds made available to the Central Texas Council of
Governments (CTCOG) from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (grant #
582-16-60648). On August 6, 2015, Council adopted a resolution authorizing the City to
apply for the grant though an interlocal agreement with CTCOG to perform a household
hazardous waste collection event in Temple.  The event was held on October 8, 2016.

To appropriate a credit received from GT Distributors, Inc. for the trade in of retired
firearms and ammunition. The credit will be used for the future purchase of replacement
firearms.

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

April 6, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Taken From Contingency (41,558)         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 8,442$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 112,500$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 112,500$       

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 120,942$       

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 28,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 28,300$         

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 28,300$         

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 24,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 24,300$         

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 24,300$         

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Carry forward from Prior Year 14,947           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 22,397           
Taken From Contingency -                    

Net Balance Fed/State Grant Fund Contingency 37,344$         

2



 
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2016-2017 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 26th day of August, 2016, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2016-2017 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2016-2017 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 
correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, 
Texas, and they are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution 
as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council approves amending the 2016-2017 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 8 

DEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Dessie Redmond, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-03: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from the Neighborhood Services zoning district to the Planned 
Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district and site/development plan on 3.5718 +/- acres, 
proposed for a nonresidential subdivision for a mini-storage facility, which is a reduced scope from the 
original 7.35 +/- acres request, situated on a portion of 1-lot, 1-block, RVOS addition, located at 5785 
South 31st Street, Temple, Texas. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their February 6, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted two to six to deny a motion for approval of the proposed rezoning. 
Therefore, the motion to approve failed.  
 
A super-majority vote is required by Council for approval of the proposal. This requirement is triggered 
by a Protest per Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 3.3.4 which states “A Zoning District Map 
Amendment application requires a three-fourths vote of the City Council in order to be approved if a 
written protest has been signed and submitted by the owners of a minimum of 20 percent.” 
Approximately 48 percent of the area of the properties within 200 feet of the subject properties are in 
opposition to the proposal.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval with conditions for 
a rezoning from the NS zoning district to the PD-NS zoning district for the following reasons: 

1. That the proposed Development Plan/Site Plan has demonstrated compliance with the 
provisions of the Planned Development Criteria as required by Unified Development Code 
(UDC) Section 3.4.5; 

2. That the request complies with UDC, Section 5.3.8 that states for a mini-storage facility the 
size of each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 

3.  (No longer applicable);The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
Auto-Urban Commercial character district designation; 

4. The proposed zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning and anticipated retail and service 
uses along this section of South 31st Street;  

5. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan and Trails Master Plan; and   
6. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.  

 
The following recommendations are proposed for the 3.5718 +/- acre portion of Lot 1, Block 1, 
RVOS Addition. Staff recommends approval of the request, subject to the following conditions:  

 



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 8 

 
1. Substantial compliance with the amended Development/Site Plan;  
2. Substantial compliance with the amended Landscape Plans and Elevations; 
3. That the remaining portion of the 3.7776 acres of the subject property will remain as is in the 

Neighborhood Services zoning district. ;   
4. Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 
5. A six foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along South 31st Street prior to the opening of 

the business; 
6. Outward-facing building facades (as shown in attachment: Outward-Facing Building Facades 

Graphic) related to the mini-storage buildings shall have exteriors containing a combination 
of EIFS, split-faced CMUs, brick and accent metal panels as shown in the Elevations 
submittal; 

7.  (No longer applicable) (No longer applicable)A continuous 20 foot wide landscape buffer is 
required along the Georgetown Railroad that should consist of the preservation of existing 
trees.  

8.  All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 7.4 Landscaping; 
9.  Any fencing along South 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 
10.  This PD runs with the land and is not affected by future change of ownership; 
11.  The maximum building wall height is 21 feet (top of wall and per submitted elevations); 
12.  The applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 

requirements; and 
13. All lighting associated with the proposal shall be shielded to prevent light trespass.  

 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant, Joshua Valenta with Matkin-Hoover Engineering, Donald Jones with 
Donald Jones Consulting and Wes Jackson of RVOS Farm Mutual Insurance (property owner), 
requests a rezoning from the NS zoning district to the PD-NS zoning district for a mini storage facility. 
The subject property is 3.5718 +/- acres and undeveloped (attachments: Site and Surrounding Photos) 
and currently in the NS zoning district. There are residential and non-residential uses that are permitted 
by right in the NS zoning district. A summary table of the uses permitted, but not limited to, is in the 
attachments (Summary of Uses Permitted in the NS Zoning District).  
 
March 2, 2017 Council Meeting 
At the March 2, 2017 City Council meeting, Council voted unanimously to table the proposed rezoning 
request to the April 6, 2017 meeting. The applicant had originally requested a rezoning for the entire 
7.35 +/- acres of the subject property. The applicant has since reduced his request and is now 
requesting a rezoning for 3.5718 +/- acres, a portion of Lot 1, Block 1. The remaining portion of Lot 1, 
Block 1 will remain in the NS zoning district. The scope of the project was reduced based on feedback 
from the surrounding property owners.  
 
Project History 

February 6, 2017 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 
During the meeting the Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Commissioners deliberated on my topics 
including drainage, site characteristics, future development in the area, history of the site and 
the abutting Georgetown Railroad. The applicant explained the project and the process his team 
has taken with the project. During the public hearing, many citizens expressed opposition to the 
project. A motion for approval, per staff recommendation, was made. However, the motion failed 
with a 2:6 vote (attached DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt).  

 



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 8 

 
February 2, 2017 
Based on feedback from staff and the surrounding property owners, the applicant submitted 
revised documents including a site plan, elevations and landscape plans (see attachments). The 
applicant also submitted a rendering of the project (attachments: Temple Storage Rendering).  
 
January 18, 2017 Public Meeting 
On January 18, 2017 staff facilitated a public meeting between the applicant and property 
owners. At this meeting, approximately 12 people signed the attendance sheet (attachments: 
Public Meeting – January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet). The applicant presented revised plans and 
a Preliminary drainage study (this study is available for review in the Planning Department). 
 
December 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting 
Z-FY-017-03 was heard at the December 6, 2016 Planning & Zoning (P&Z) Commission 
meeting. During this meeting there was discussion on the site characteristics and how the 
proposal works with the constraints (easements) on the property. There was also discussion on 
tree preservation and lighting. A public hearing was opened and several of the property owners 
around the subject property spoke in opposition of the project (attachments: December 6, 2016 
Meeting Minutes). The P&Z Commission made a motion to continue the case until February 6, 
2017 and directed Staff to work with the applicant and property owners.  

 
Site Characteristics 
There are several easements within the subject property (attachment: Surveyor’s Sketch). These 
easements restrict the site from many uses that are allowed by right or with a conditional use permit in 
the NS zoning district. Staff believes that the mini-storage facility use is a compatible use with the 
existing constraints and easements on the site.  
 
Drainage 
Many property owners spoke in opposition to the project due to existing drainage problems in the 
surrounding area. Property owners also voiced concern about how they thought additional development 
will worsen the drainage issues. In response to these concerns, the applicant completed a preliminary 
drainage report (due to its large size it is available for review in the Engineering Department and not as 
an attachment). This was presented at the January 18, 2017 public meeting. On March 13, Mr. Wilson 
explained that after reviewing the drainage calculations provided by the applicant’s engineer, Public 
Works determined that a culvert can and will be installed under the existing dirt road. Mr. Wilson’s 
stated the culvert will be installed even if the proposed development does not occur. The drainage 
swale on the north side of the tracks near the road will also be regraded to remove the washout at the 
tracks (attachment: Richard Wilson email).  
 
Proposal 
In the UDC, Section 11.2 defines a mini-storage facility as “a building or group of buildings consisting 
of individualized shelters of various sizes for rent or lease for the purpose of providing protection of 
commodities stored in the mini-storage warehouse.” UDC, Section 5.3.8 states that for a mini-storage 
warehouse the size of each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet.   
 
 
 

 



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 8 

 
This proposal includes a mini-storage facility as defined by the UDC, Section 11.2 and does not include 
storage units greater than 2000 cubic feet and therefore, is compliant with UDC, Section 5.3.8. The 
proposal includes a range of units between 25 square feet and 200 square feet in either climate 
controlled or non-climate controlled capacities. With the revised proposal here will be a total of three 
buildings with approximately 49,460 square feet. The amount of each size of unit has not yet been 
determined. The original proposal included a Phase I and a Phase II with a total of approximately 73,085 
square feet but the scope of the project has been revised to include only Phase I. There is approximately 
3.775 acres remaining within the parcel that is no longer included in this project and will remain in the 
NS zoning district.   
 
Planned Development 
UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a PD as: “A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique 
development proposals, special design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation 
of land use relationships to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  
 
Per UDC Section, 3.4.3.A, a PD is subject to review and approval by City Council as part of the 
rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, conditions of approval can be included into the rezoning 
Ordinance. The Development/Site Plan that has been submitted, provides the boundaries and the 
layout for the proposed building footprints for the mini-storage facility, parking and traffic circulation 
areas. 
 
Enhancements are typically an expectation of a PD to off-set the unique manner of the request. While 
staff has worked closely with the applicant, enhancements for the site are in the form of screening, 
buffering, landscaping, enhanced exterior building materials and have been discussed and agreed 
upon with the applicant and are described as follows: 

 
Screening / Buffering: A continuous 20 foot wide landscape buffer along the inactive Georgetown 
Railroad is proposed (attachment: Revised Development/Site Plan). The City owns an easement 
along the Georgetown Railroad with future plans of a “rails to trails” amenity to the city’s trail system. 
This landscape buffer is in addition to any UDC, Section 7.7 Screening or Buffering requirements.  
 
Landscaping: UDC, Section 7.4.4 states that a developer is required to provide a minimum 
landscaped area of five percent of a lot. This proposal includes approximately 29.8 percent of the 
3.5718 acres of the site to be landscaped and thus significantly exceeds the percentage required 
by the UDC. The Landscape Plan also includes 8 frontage trees along with other trees, shrubs, 
groundcovers and ornamental grass, which also exceed requirements (attachments: Revised 
Landscape Plans).  
 
Exterior Building Materials: Exterior building materials are proposed which provide close to 100% 
masonry. Materials consist of a combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), which 
meets the approved listing of standard building materials listed in UDC Sec. 7.8.3F, as well as brick, 
split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs) and accent metal paneling. The applicant submitted 
elevations with varying amounts of masonry accent (attachment: Revised Elevations). In order to 
maintain a consistent architectural design throughout, a recommended condition of approval is: “All 
exterior building facades related to the mini-storage buildings shall have exteriors containing a 
combination of EIFS, split-faced CMUs, brick and accent metal panels as shown in the Elevations 
submittal.” 



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 8 

 
Texas Department of Transportation 
The applicant has been in preliminary discussions with Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), 
which included the existing non-access easement required by TxDOT as shown on the final plat 
(attachment: RVOS Addition Final Plat). The final plat also shows two possible 50 foot access points 
along South 31st Street. However, this Development/Site Plan is only utilizing one access to the north. 
The applicant has stated this curb cut will align with Blue Meadow Drive. Additionally, the applicant is 
aware that a Driveway Permit Package in coordination with TxDOT is required. A recommended 
condition of approval includes: “The applicant shall comply with all TxDOT requirements.” 
 
Traffic Impact 
Within the current Neighborhood Services (NS) zoning district, the following uses and their relative 
traffic impacts would be allowed: 
 

 
 
In summary, the mini-storage project as proposed would produce comparable traffic to an office about 
1/7th its size, a medical or dental office about 1/14th its size, a shopping center about 1/20th  its size or 
a convenience store (no pumps) about 1/276th its size. 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND USES: A table in the attachments provides the surrounding 
properties, FLUM designations, existing zoning and current land uses (attachment: Surrounding 
Properties & Uses Table). 
 
SCREENING / BUFFERING  
Due to the reduced scope of the project, there are no existing residences that abut the amended 
proposal. Therefore, a continuous buffer along the north boundary of the project is no longer required.  
 
There are some mature, healthy trees existing within the proposed area . Preservation of these trees 
within the 20 foot landscape buffer along the Georgetown Railroad provides significant buffering and 
screening from the single-family homes nearby. A recommended condition of approval includes: 
“Preservation of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and interior), based on variety and 
maturity, must be considered.” 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan. A summary table of 
the CP compliance is located the attachments: Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table. 
 
 

Zoning District
ITE Peak Hour Trip Rates 
(Per 1000 Square Feet)

Trip Comparison 
(per Square Feet) Peak Hour Trips

Mini-Storage PD-NS or C 0.26 49,460 sf 12
Office (general) NS 1.55 7,742 sf 12
Office (medical or dental) NS 3.46 3,468 sf 12
Shopping Center NS 4.89 2,454 sf 12
Convenience Store (no pumps) NS 67.03 179 sf 12



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 6 of 8 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
In the FLUM, the subject property is designated as the Auto-Urban Commercial character district. This 
district is intended for commercial uses and generally concentrated at intersections versus strip 
development along the major roads. The use of a higher landscape surface area, better landscaping 
along frontages and around and within parking areas. Other signage and design standards would 
significantly enhance the appearance of these areas.  
 
The proposal is in compliance with the FLUM as it includes a proposed commercial use and a high 
landscape surface area as described in the “Enhancements” section of this report.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from South 31st Street, which is designated as a major arterial in the 
Thoroughfare Plan. This designation requires a six foot wide sidewalk on both sides and is noted on 
the Landscape Plan. Therefore, this request is compliant with the Thoroughfare Plan. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing eight inch sewer line along South 31st 
Street. Water is available through an existing 12 inch waterline along South 31st Street. Both water and 
sewer lines will require extensions to the subject property from their current location.  
 
Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan identifies a proposed local connector trail along South 31st Street. A note on the 
Landscape Plan requiring a six foot wide sidewalk is provided. Therefore, this request is compliant with 
the Trails Master Plan. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE: As required by UDC, Section 3.4.2 B, the Development/Site 
Plan for the proposed mini-storage facility was reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) 
on November 21, 2016.  Site characteristics such as the easements and preservation of mature trees 
were discussed. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Currently, the property can be developed with uses permitted by 
right that would not require a public process. A table in the attachments (attachment: UDC Standards 
Comparison Table) compares how the site could be developed (in the NS zoning district) versus how 
the applicant is proposing to develop the site (in the PD-NS zoning district). The table shows this 
proposal is exceeding side and rear setbacks, buffering and screening, landscaping, masonry and code 
other requirements. This proposal also includes tree preservation and architectural elements, which 
are not required by code. Further, this proposal’s maximum building wall height is 21 feet (per condition 
of approval #13); code allows for 28.75 feet.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: The original public notice for the 7.35 acres included 25 notices mailed to property 
owners within the 200 feet buffer area of the subject property. The notices included information on the 
public hearing as required by State Law and City Ordinance. Staff received two notices in agreement 
with the proposal. One of these is from the current property owner of the subject property. Staff received 
17 notices in disagreement of the proposal.  
 
 
 



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 7 of 8 

 
UDC, Section 3.3.4 Protest states that a Zoning district map amendment application requires a three-
fourths vote of the City Council in order to be approved if a written protest has been signed and 
submitted by the owners of a minimum of 20 percent of the area of the properties immediately adjoining 
the area covered by the proposed changed and extending 200 feet from that area. This threshold is 
exceeded with 48 percent in opposition to the proposal (attachment: Z-FY-17-03 Opposition Area). 
Therefore, a protest is triggered.  
 
Also, letters were submitted from the Bentwood Professional Property Owners Association, from 
residents at the Creeks at Deerfield and from another property owner outside of the 200’ buffer area 
(the Applicant responded to these comments, which can also be found in the attachments). A 
representative from the Deerfield Estates submitted a petition. These were all in disagreement of the 
proposal. All public comment is included in the attachments: Returned Property Owner Notices – Within 
the 200’ Buffer Area, Public Comment – Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area and Applicant’s Response to 
Property Owner Comments Outside the 200’ Buffer Area. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on November 24, 2016 in accordance with state 
law and local ordinance. 
 
A second public notice was sent that included the amended development/site plan. Due to the scope 
and the overall acreage being reduced there were fewer property owners within the 200 foot buffer. 
The reduced scope includes 17 property owners. As of March 27, 2017 Staff received nine notices in 
disagreement and one notice in agreement of the amended proposal. As a courtesy, Staff did send a 
notification to the eight property owners who were in the original notification area but were technically 
no longer within the 200 foot notification area due to the reduced project scope.  
 
The opposition consisted of approximately 43 percent of the area of the properties within 200 feet of 
the subject properties are in opposition to the proposal. The new calculations with the revised scope 
still trigger a super-majority vote by Council. 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE: This request is scheduled for a first reading on April 6, 2017 
and a second reading on April 20,  2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Temple Storage Rendering 
Revised Development/Site Plan_reduced scope 
Revised Landscape Plans_reduced scope 
Revised Elevations_reduced scope 
Aerial Map / Utility Map 
Zoning Map / Future Land Use and Character Map 
Thoroughfare & Trails Map / Notification Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Summary of Uses Permitted in the NS Zoning District 
December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes 
Public Meeting – January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet 
Surveyor’s Sketch 



04/06/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 8 of 8 

 
Richard Wilson email 
RVOS Addition Final Plat 
Surrounding Properties & Uses Table / Comprehensive Plan Compliance Summary Table 
UDC Standards Comparison Table 
Opposition Area (original request) 
Returned Property Owner Notices (original request) - Within 200’ Buffer Area 
Public Comment (original request) – Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area 
Applicant’s Response to Property Owner Comments Outside the 200’ Buffer Area 
Opposition Map (reduced scope) 
Returned Property Owner Notices (reduced scope) – Within 200’ Buffer Area 
Public Comment (reduced scope) – Outside of the 200’ Buffer Area 
Outward-Facing Building Facades Graphic 
DRAFT February 6, 2017 P&Z Excerpt 
Ordinance 
 

  



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsTemple Storage Rendering



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsRevised Development/Site Plan



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

PRO
PERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

GATE & FENCE, REF. ARCH.

20' P.U.E.
25' BUILDING

 SETBACK

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

25' BUILDING
 SETBACK

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

20' P.U.E.

25' BUILDING
 SETBACK

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

20' P.U.E.

25' BUILDING
 SETBACK

BACK OF CURB

G
ATE & FENCE,
REF. ARCH.

FENCE, REF. ARCH.

PROPERTY SETBACK

P.U.E.

PROPERTY LINE

6' W
ID

E S
ID

EW
A
LK

EX
IS

TIN
G

 TR
EE, TYPIC

A
L

//

//
////

//

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

OELx
OELx

OELxOELx
OELx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

ELx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx

OELx

OELx

OELx

OELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

OELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELx

DRAW
ING

 INFO
.

PRELIM
INARY

LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP 1.1

REVISIO
NS

1)2)3)4)5) DATE: 2016-11-16
FILE NAM

E: 16424

N

W
W

W
.DO

UBLEBLANDDESIG
N.CO

M

Double B Design owns the rights to this drawing
and under no circum

stances m
ay this drawing

be reproduced, altered, replicated or m
odified

by any party without the express written consen
and perm

ission of Double B Design.  Plans are
for review purposes only and not for perm

it or
construction set.

P.O
. BO

X 340443
Austin, TX  78734   |  512.740.9323

0
10'20'

40'
80'

O
W

NER INFO
.

DO
NALD JO

NES CO
NSULTING

N
O

TE
:  P

LA
N

S
 A

R
E

 FO
R

E
 P

R
E

LIM
IN

A
R

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

 O
N

LY
.  P

LA
N

S
A

R
E

 N
O

T FO
R

 P
E

R
M

IT, C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TIO

N
 O

R
 B

ID
D

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

.

10521 BEAR CREEK TRAIL
FO

RT W
O

RTH, TEXAS 46244
TEL:

817-944-3411

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
E

N
TS:

TO
TA

L LO
T S

IZE
 (S

F)                                                          155,590  S
F

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

 A
R

E
A

 (5%
)                                 7,779 S

F
TO

TA
L LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

 A
R

E
A

46,350 S
F

*O
N

E
 2" C

A
LIP

E
R

 TR
E

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 FO
R

 E
V

E
R

Y
 40' O

F LIN
E

A
R

 S
TR

E
E

T
FR

O
N

TA
G

E

TO
TA

L LIN
E

A
R

 FE
E

T O
F S

TR
E

E
T FR

O
N

TA
G

E
                     565.4 LF

TO
TA

L N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F FR

O
N

TA
G

E
 TR

E
E

S
 

   8
P

E
R

 C
O

D
E

 S
E

C
TIO

N
 7.4.4.F W

E
 S

A
TIS

FIE
D

 TH
E

 FR
O

N
TA

G
E

 TR
E

E
R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

TS
 W

ITH
 S

U
B

S
TITU

TIN
G

 IN
 E

X
C

E
S

S
 O

F (45) 5 G
A

LLO
N

S
H

R
U

B
S

 .

G
E

N
E

R
A

L LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 N
O

TE
S:

A
LL R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 TO

 B
E

 M
A

IN
TA

IN
E

D
 A

T A
LL TIM

E
S

 IN
 A

LIV
IN

G
 A

N
D

 G
R

O
W

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

ITIO
N

.

O
W

N
E

R
 TO

 R
E

P
LA

C
E

, W
ITH

IN
 30 D

A
Y

S
, A

N
Y

 P
LA

N
T M

A
TE

R
IA

L TH
A

T
IS

 D
IS

E
A

S
E

D
, D

E
TE

R
IO

R
A

TE
D

 O
R

 D
E

A
D

.  TH
E

 D
IR

E
C

TO
R

 O
F

P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 M
A

Y
 IS

S
U

E
 U

P
 TO

 A
 90 D

A
Y

 E
X

TE
N

S
IO

N
 O

F TH
E

 TIM
E

 FO
R

R
E

P
LA

C
E

M
E

N
T D

U
R

IN
G

 D
R

O
U

G
H

T O
R

 S
U

M
M

E
R

 M
O

N
TH

S
.

A
LL R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 M

U
S

T B
E

 IR
R

IG
A

TE
D

 B
Y

 A
N

A
U

TO
M

A
TIC

 S
P

R
IN

K
LIN

G
 S

Y
S

TE
M

 O
R

 H
A

V
E

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 TO
 A

 H
O

S
E

C
O

N
N

E
C

TIO
N

 W
ITH

IN
 100' O

F A
LL LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
 N

O
TE

S
:

P
LA

N
TIN

G
 A

N
D

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
D

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 M
A

TE
R

IA
L S

C
R

E
E

N
IN

G
A

D
JA

C
E

N
T R

E
S

ID
E

N
TIA

L LO
TS

 A
N

D
 A

D
JA

C
E

N
T R

A
ILR

O
A

D
 TO

 B
E

IM
P

LE
M

E
N

TE
D

 A
N

D
 IN

S
TA

LLE
D

 A
T A

 FU
TU

R
E

 D
A

TE
 A

N
D

 TIM
E

 A
N

D
TO

 B
E

 W
O

R
K

E
D

 O
U

T W
ITH

 TH
E

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

E
R

.

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

D
 A

R
E

A
S:

H
A

TC
H

 IN
D

IC
A

TE
S

 A
R

E
A

 TO
 B

E
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
D

2017-2-2 - PLANTING
2017-2-25 - PLANTING
2017-3-1 - PLANTING
2017-3-27 - PLANTING
2017-3-28 - NO

TES

Revised Landscaping Plan Overall



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

GATE & FENCE, REF. ARCH.

20' P.U.E.
25' BUILDING

 SETBACK

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

25' BUILDING
 SETBACK

BACK O
F CURB

PRO
PERTY LINE

20' P.U.E.

25' BUILDING
 SETBACK

BACK OF CURB

G
ATE & FENCE,
REF. ARCH.

FENCE, REF. ARCH.

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T,

TYPIC
A
L A

S
IN

D
IC

A
TED

 B
Y H

A
TC

H

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

C
EN

TU
R
Y PLA

N
T

R
ED

B
U

D

TEX
A
S
 S

A
G

E

TEX
A
S
 S

A
G

E

PU
R
PLE H

EA
R
T

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

R
O

S
EM

A
R
Y

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

K
N

O
C
K
O

U
T R

O
S
E

B
IG

M
U

H
LY

R
ED

 YU
C
C
A

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

R
ED

 YU
C
C
A

B
IG

M
U

H
LY

PU
R
PLE

H
EA

R
T

TU
R
F, TYPIC

A
L

EX
IS

TIN
G

V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 TO

R
EM

A
IN

, V
ER

IFY
A
C
TU

A
L LIM

ITS
IN

 FIELD

PU
R
PLE H

EA

B
IG

 M
U

H
LY

R
O

S
EM

A
R
Y

2' M
O

W
S
TR

IP
6' W

ID
E S

ID
EW

A
LK

EX
IS

TIN
G

 TR
EE,

TYPIC
A
L

EX
IS

TIN
G

 V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 TO

 R
EM

A
IN

,
V
ER

IFY A
C
TU

A
L LIM

ITS
 IN

 FIELD

EX
IS

TIN
G

 V
EG

ETA
T

V
ER

IFY A
C
TU

A
L LIM

C
R
A
PE M

YR
TLE

C
R
A
PE M

YR
TLE

//
//

//

//
//

//
//

//

//

//

//

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

ELx
OELxOELx

OELxOELx
OELx

OELxOELx
OELx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

Lx
O

E
Lx

O
E

DRAW
ING

 INFO
.

PRELIM
INARY

LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP 1.2

REVISIO
NS

1)2)3)4)5) DATE: 2016-11-16
FILE NAM

E: 16424

W
W

W
.DO

UBLEBLANDDESIG
N.CO

M

Double B Design owns the rights to this drawing
and under no circum

stances m
ay this drawing

be reproduced, altered, replicated or m
odified

by any party without the express written consent
and perm

ission of Double B Design.  Plans are
for review purposes only and not for perm

it or
construction set.

P.O
. BO

X 340443
Austin, TX  78734   |  512.740.9323

0
5'

10'
20'

40'

O
W

NER INFO
.

DO
NALD JO

NES CO
NSULTING

N
O

TE
:  P

LA
N

S
 A

R
E

 FO
R

E
 P

R
E

LIM
IN

A
R

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

 O
N

LY
.  P

LA
N

S
A

R
E

 N
O

T FO
R

 P
E

R
M

IT, C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TIO

N
 O

R
 B

ID
D

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

.

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
ITE

 P
LA

N
1

S
C

A
LE

: 1" = 20'

N

10521 BEAR CREEK TRAIL
FO

RT W
O

RTH, TEXAS 46244
TEL:

817-944-3411

M
A

TC
H

LIN
E

. 1/LP
 1.3

2017-1-11 - TREE SURVEY
2017-2-2 - PLANTING
2017-2-25 - PLANTING
2017-3-1 - PLANTING

Revised Landscaping Plan Detail - West Side



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY SETBACK

P.U.E.

PROPERTY LINE

EX
IS

TIN
G

 V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 TO

 R
EM

A
IN

,
V
ER

IFY A
C
TU

A
L LIM

ITS
 IN

 FIELD

EX
IS

TIN
G

 TR
EE,

TYPIC
A
L

EX
IS

TIN
G

 V
EG

ETA
TIO

N
 TO

 R
EM

A
IN

,
V
ER

IFY A
C
TU

A
L LIM

ITS
 IN

 FIELD

TU
R
F

TU
R
F

OELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

O
ELx

OELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELxOELx

TREES
 SYM

BO
L

PLANT NAM
E

SIZE

SHRUBSPLANT NAM
E

SIZE

G
RO

UNDCO
VER

PLANT NAM
E

SIZE

BIG
 M

UHLY

CRAPE M
YRTLE

TEXAS SAG
E

PURPLE HEART

KNO
CKO

UT RO
SE

RED YUCCA

RO
SEM

ARY

TURF
PLANT NAM

E
SIZE

CO
M

M
O

N BERM
UDA

NO
TES

15 G
AL M

IN.

TEXAS REDBUD
15 G

AL. M
IN.

M
ULTI - TRUNK, CO

NTAINER G
RO

W
N,

PLANT PER PLAN

3 G
AL.

PLANT PER PLAN

M
ULTI- TRUNK, CO

NTAINER G
RO

W
N,

PLANT PER PLAN

 SYM
BO

L

 SYM
BO

L

 SYM
BO

L

PLANT PER PLAN

PLANT PER PLAN

PLANT PER PLAN

PLANT PER PLAN

PLANT 24" O
.C.

PLANT PER PLAN.  SO
LID SO

D M
UST BE

USED IN SW
ALES, BERM

S AND ANY
O

THER AREAS SUBJECT TO
 ERO

SIO
N

PER CITY CO
DE.

HYDRO
M

ULCH &
SO

D - REF. NO
TES.

3 G
AL.

1 G
AL.

5 G
AL.

3 G
AL.

1 G
AL.

CENTURY PLANT AG
AVE

5 G
AL.

PLANT PER PLAN

NO
TES

NO
TES

NO
TES

Q
TY.

823461945

155

1154

39,711

DRAW
ING

 INFO
.

PRELIM
INARY

LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP 1.3

REVISIO
NS

1)2)3)4)5) DATE: 2016-11-16
FILE NAM

E: 16424

W
W

W
.DO

UBLEBLANDDESIG
N.CO

M

Double B Design owns the rights to this drawing
and under no circum

stances m
ay this drawing

be reproduced, altered, replicated or m
odified

by any party without the express written consent
and perm

ission of Double B Design.  Plans are
for review purposes only and not for perm

it or
construction set.

P.O
. BO

X 340443
Austin, TX  78734   |  512.740.9323

0
5'

10'
20'

40'

O
W

NER INFO
.

DO
NALD JO

NES CO
NSULTING

N
O

TE
:  P

LA
N

S
 A

R
E

 FO
R

E
 P

R
E

LIM
IN

A
R

Y
 R

E
V

IE
W

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

 O
N

LY
.  P

LA
N

S
A

R
E

 N
O

T FO
R

 P
E

R
M

IT, C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TIO

N
 O

R
 B

ID
D

IN
G

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
S

.

P
R

E
LIM

IN
A

R
Y

 LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 S
ITE

 P
LA

N
1

S
C

A
LE

: 1" = 20'

N

10521 BEAR CREEK TRAIL
FO

RT W
O

RTH, TEXAS 46244
TEL:

817-944-3411

P
LA

N
TIN

G
 P

LA
N

2

M
A

TC
H

LIN
E

. 1/LP
 1.2

2017-1-11 - TREE SURVEY
2017-2-2 - PLANTING
2017-2-25 - PLANTING
2017-3-1 - PLANTING

Revised Landscaping Plan Detail - East Side



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsElevations

D
A

TE
:

S
H

E
E

T N
U

M
B

E
R

:

NO.

REVISIONS:
DESCRIPTION DATE

S
H

E
E

T TITLE
:

PR
ELIM

IN
A

R
Y

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 - N
O

T FO
R

C
O

N
STR

U
C

TIO
N

ISSU
ED

 FO
R

 ZO
N

IN
G

C
ITY

 R
EV

IEW
 A

N
D

O
W

N
ER

 A
PPR

O
V

A
L.

M
IC

H
A

EL D
. M

A
U

LD
IN

TEX
A

S #16733



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Aerial Map

Utility Map

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Zoning Map

Future Land Use Character Map

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond

5901

2

2017

6003

5

58

590

5608

5612

5604

2603
2607

2611

2615

2616

2612
2608 2604

2603

2607

2611

2608

2604
5785

2205
2207

2209
2211

2213
2305

5904

2214

2210

2206

5905
5913

2600

2601

5621

5804

5929

6006

5914

5910

5818

5814

5720

571

2

5732

2584

2566

2526

2552

2582

5513
5511

5507 5503

551255145608

2603

2607

5627

2316

2312

2400

6016

2401

2307
2309

2311

23132315

6008

6004

2204
2206

2208
2210

2212
2304

2306
2310

2312

6005

5936

5932

5928

5924

5920

5916

5912
5908

5808

2217

2213

2209

2205 5909

5905

5901

5819

5815

5803

5515

5822

5906

2534

5720

5505

52

5807

5811

5810

5504

2304

2308

5913

5917

5918

5245

6012

6320

5508

5900

S 
31

ST
 S

T 
(F

M
 1

74
1)

W
O

O
D

ED
 C

R
EE

K
 C

V

LE
G

A
C

Y 
O

A
K

S 
D

R

FAWN
MEADOWS DR

BLUE MEADOW DR

TU
R

TL
E 

C
R

EE
K

 T
R

L

MEADOW WOOD DR

MISTY MORNING LN

PHEASANT RUN LN

G e o r g e t o w n  R R

G e o r g e t o w n  R R



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Thoroughfare & Trails Map

Notification Map

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

5901

5608

5612

5604

2603
2607

2611

2615

2616

2612
2608 2604

2603

2607

2611

2608

2604
5785

2205
2207

2209
2211

2213
2305

5904

2214

2210

2206

5905
5913

2600

2601

5621

5804

5929

6006

5914

5910

5818

58

5732

2584

2566

2526

2552

2582

5513
5511

5507 5503

551255145608

2603

2607

5627

2316

2312

2400

6016

2401

2307
2309

2311

23132315

6008

6004

2204
2206

2208
2210

2212
2304

2306
2310

2312

6005

5936

5932

5928

5924

5920

5916

5912
5908

5808

2217

2213

2209

2205 5909

5905

5901

5819

5815

5803

5515

5822

5906

2534

5720

5505

5807

5811

5504

2304

2308

5913

5917

5918

6012

6320

5508

5900

S 
31

ST
 S

T 
(F

M
 1

74
1)

W
O

O
D

ED
C

R
E

LE
G

A
C

Y 
O

A
K

S 
D

R

FAWN
MEADOWS DR

BLUE MEADOW DR

TU
R

TL
E 

C
R

EE
K

 T
R

L

MEADOW WOOD DR

MISTY MORNING LN

PHEASANT RUN LN

G e o r g e t o w n  R R

G e o r g e t o w n  R R

590190901590590190190190001010101010

5901
PropID:
147178

2603
PropID:
317521

2607
PropID:
317522

2611
PropID:
317523

2612
PropID:
317533

2608
PropID:
317534

2604
PropID:
317535

2603
PropID:
317536

2607
PropID:
317537

2604
PropID:
317551 5785

PropID:
403015

2207
PropID:
239875

2209
PropID:
239876

2211
PropID:
239877

2213
PropID:
239878

2305
PropID:
239879

5904
PropID:
350636

2214
PropID:
350653 2210

PropID:
350654 2206

PropID:
350655

5905
PropID:
350656

5913
PropID:
350657

2600
PropID:
317535

2601
PropID:
317536

5621
PropID:
47392

5804
PropID:
368915

5929
PropID:
368918

5914
PropID:
385547

5732
PropID:
332658

2584
PropID:
332651 2566

PropID:
332653

2526
PropID:
332655

2552
PropID:
332656

2582
PropID:
332657

5513
PropID:
317505

5511
PropID:
317506

5507
PropID:
317507

5503
PropID:
317508

2603
PropID:
317552

5627
PropID:
187657

2316
PropID:
196467

2312
PropID:
196468

6016
PropID:
207012

2307
PropID:
239880

2309
PropID:
239881

2311
PropID:
239882

2313
PropID:
239883

2315
PropID:
239884

6008
PropID:
239886

6004
PropID:
239887

2204
PropID:
239888

2206
PropID:
239889

2208
PropID:
239890

2210
PropID:
239891

2212
PropID:
239892

2304
PropID:
239893

2306
PropID:
239894

2310
PropID:
239895

2312
PropID:
239896

5936
PropID:
350627

5932
PropID:
350629

5928
PropID:
350630

5924
PropID:
350631

5920
PropID:
350632

5916
PropID:
350633

5912
PropID:
350634

5908
PropID:
350635

5808
PropID:
350637

2217
PropID:
350640 2213

PropID:
350641

2209
PropID:
350642 2205

PropID:
350643

5909
PropID:
350645

5905
PropID:
350646

5901
PropID:
350647

5819
PropID:
350648

5815
PropID:
350649

5515
PropID:
188663

2534
PropID:
332654

5720
PropID:
318048

5505
PropID:
193413

5913
PropID:
350644

5917
PropID:
239900

5918
PropID:
385546

6400
PropID:
26401

5900
PropID:
96776

6012
PropID:
239885

5091-A

5093-A

5096-A

5091B-A

5091D-A

S 
31

ST
 S

T 
(F

M
 1

74
1)

LE
G

A
C

Y 
O

A
K

S 
D

R

TU
R

TL
E 

C
R

EE
K

 T
R

L

BLUE MEADOW DR

FAWN
MEADOWS DR

MISTY MORNING LN

PHEASANT RUN LN

G e o r g e t o w n  R R

G e o r g e t o w n  R R

2612
ÜÜ

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond

Zoning Case:
Z-FY-17-03

NS to PD-NS

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

NOTIFICATION MAP

er

a e rea

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond

Address:
(portion of) 5785 S. 31st St

Date: 3/13/2017
 dredmond



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Location of sign posting along S. 31st Street.

Looking south down S. 31st Street.

Site Photos

subject property

subject property S. 31st St



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Property to the south and west: Bentwood neighborhood.

Georgetown Railroad abuts the property to the south.

Site Photos

S. 31st St

S. 31st St

Georgetown RR



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Existing
NS

Residential Uses
*Group home
Single family

Agricultural Uses Farm, ranch, orchard
Commercial Uses none

Education & Institutional

Museum
*Cemetery
Place of Worship
School, business
*Community Center
Pre school/ elementary school

Industrial Uses *Laboratory medical, dental
Office Uses Office

Overnight Accommodations none

Entertainment/Recreational
Uses

*Alcoholic beverage sales for on premise consumption: beer & wine only less
than 75% revenue from alcohol
(restaurant)
Park or playground
*Playfield or stadium
Theater or playhouse (indoor)

Restaurant Uses Restaurant (not drive in)

Retail & Service Uses

Antique shop
Bank
Drug store or pharmacy
Greenhouse
Food or beverage sales store without fuel
Bakery or confectionary shop
Barber shop or beauty shop
*Exercise gym
Florist or garden shop
Laundry and cleaning (self service)
Office supply store
Retail shop, gift, apparel, acessory and similar items
Travel agency

Vehicle Service Uses *Fuel sales

Summary of Uses Permitted in the NS Zoning District

*Conditional Use Permit required



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

1

A A D Z
D B 6 016

5 30

A A D Z B
Chair Greg Rhoads 

Bryant Ward Omar Crisp 
Lydia Alaniz Jeremy Langley 

Lee Armstrong David Jones 
Derek Marshall 

B AB
Lester Fettig 

AFF
Brian Chandler, Director of Planning 
Lynn R. Barrett, Asst. Director of Planning 
Trudi Dill, Deputy City Attorney 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
Dessie Redmond, Planner 
Leslie Evans, Planning Technician 
Kelli Tibbit, Administrative Assistant 

he a en a th s meet n as ste n the et n a at the n c a
B n Decem e 016 at 4 30 m n c m ance th the en eet n s

a

The following is a summary of the proceedings of this meeting.  It is not intended to be a 
verbatim translation. 

Chair Rhoads called Meeting to Order at 5:30 P.M. 
Invocation by Commissioner Jones; Pledge of Allegiance by Commissioner Ward. 

A

tem 1 A a n tes Work session and the regular meeting of November 21, 
2016.

Approved by general consent. 

B A

tem D-FY-17-01 Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action to 
amend Ordinance No. 2016-4749, for a TMED Planned Development District 
site plan on .85 +/- acres, Lot 11, Block 1, Highline Addition, to allow for a drive-

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

2

through restaurant located at 2110 South 31st Street, as well as to amend the 
overall development site plan to consider allowing a public sidewalk in lieu of a 
private trail.

Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, stated there were two parts to this request. The 
first part is to allow a drive-through at the subject property location (Lot 3B platted as Lot 
11) by approving an amendment to the original site plan.

The site plan with building footprint shown. The building is 6,600 square feet and will be 
occupied by multiple tenants. 

Another site plan is shown with an outdoor patio space of greater than 1,500 square feet 
which exceeds the Planned Development District Ordinance. 

Current aerial site plan is shown. 

The applicant will need to comply with the landscaping and proposed architectural 
standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and as approved in the Planned 
Development District Ordinance. 

Part two of the request is a public sidewalk in lieu of a private trail. 

Aerial site plan is shown for with the proposed private trail which would essentially 
connect the 200 plus apartment project with the South 37th Street stub-out road adjacent 
to the Candlewood Suites Hotel.

Another aerial shows what the area looks like currently with the preserved trees and the 
drainage easement. Whether developed as a trail or not, the trees are to remain.

The applicant is proposing a sidewalk in lieu of the proposed trail for connectivity. A six 
foot sidewalk is proposed along Scott Boulevard (in orange) for pedestrian connectivity 
all the way to the drainage area, which requires a Waters of the US Permit. The 
applicant has received this permit through the Army Corps of Engineers for the detention 
pond and the drainage work (indicated in the red-lined area).

The drainage portion (blue-lined area) requiring a Waters of the US Permit that would be 
outside of the scope of what the developer is requesting. 

The green-lined area abuts another lot and upon future development a sidewalk will be 
required there. The City would need to provide pedestrian crossing from that sidewalk 
down to the leg of the Jaycee Park. 

This proposal would implement the Trails Master Plan (TMP) as part of the Temple 
Medical Education District (TMED) standards for new development. The TMP does show 
a trail along Scott Boulevard connecting to Jaycee Park. 

Cost estimates have been provided by the applicant/developer comparing the trail costs 
of $80,000 for a decomposed granite trail, tree work, etc., and the sidewalk construction 
of $100,000 which is higher than the actual trail costs due to unknown expenditures for 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

3

the reconstruction of driveways for Candlewood Suites and the office building to the west 
to meet ADA requirements. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates Scott Boulevard as a collector which requires a four-
foot wide sidewalk, except in TMED it requires a six-foot wide trail.

Jaycee Park Master Plan is shown. Jaycee Park is funded for bond improvements ($1.1 
million estimate).

Additional view of the “Trail” and Candlewood Suites and how the connectivity would be 
proposed. 

The office building located at 2002 Scott Boulevard would also be affected, if approved. 

Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed this site plan on November 21, 2016 
and the applicant has adequately addressed all comments. 

Seven notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with zero 
notices returned in agreement or in disagreement. 

Staff recommendation is approval with the following conditions: 
That the sidewalk is six-feet wide for consistency with: 

The other Scott Boulevard sidewalk required by the developer; and 
The Trails Master Plan minimum width; and 

That the length of the sidewalk extends to either: 
The drainage channel per the Proposed Sidewalk Exhibit; or 
As far west as the estimated $100,000 will go: 

The cost of the two driveways at 1850 and 2002 Scott Boulevard 
could change based on ADA sloping requirements 

Mr. Chandler explained Candlewood Suites may have been built around 2005-2006 
which predates TMED and is not actually located within the TMED. Mr. Chandler is 
unsure why the sidewalk was not required for Candlewood Suites at the time of 
construction.

Chair Rhoads explains the time limits procedure in order for everyone in attendance to 
have an opportunity to speak. 

The public hearing was opened. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, D-FY-17-01 and
Commissioner Ward made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0)
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

4

tem 3 Z-FY-17-0  – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 
rezoning from Agricultural (AG) to Single Family-One (SF-1) and on permanent 
zoning upon annexation of a tract of land consisting of a total of 86.91 +/- acres 
proposed for Single-Family One (SF-1) District, located south of FM 93, east of 
Southwood Drive and west of Boutwell Road, situated in the Redding Roberts 
Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, in Temple's southern Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ). Applicant requests postponement until the 12/19/16 P&Z 
meeting to develop a site plan and to amend the zoning request to PD-SF-
1 (Planned Development District Single-Family One).

Ms. Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner, stated since Planning advertised this item for a 
public hearing Planning and Zoning is required to open a public hearing if anyone would 
like to speak. The applicant has requested the item be postponed until the next P&Z 
meeting scheduled for December 19, 2016. 

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Ms. Lyerly reminded the Commission that whatever motion is made to include the 
postponement to the December 19, 2016 P&Z meeting. 

Commissioner Ward a motion to table Item 3, Z-FY-17-0 , and will remain opened for a 
public hearing and Commissioner Marshall made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0)
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 

tem 4 Z-FY-17-03 – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 
rezoning from the Neighborhood Services (NS) zoning district to the Planned 
Development-General Retail (PD-GR) zoning district on 7.35 +/- acres, 1-lot, 1-
block non-residential subdivision, proposed for a mini-storage facility, situated in 
the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692, Bell County, City of Temple, 
Texas, located at 5785 South 31st Street.

Ms. Dessie Redmond, Planner, explained that since delivery of the packet on December 
2, 2016, Staff has changed their recommendation of approval with conditions to PD-NS 
and  not PD-GR and stated in the staff report in the packet. 

This item is scheduled to go to City Council for first reading on January 5, 2017 and 
second reading on January 19, 2017. 

The applicant/property owner is Mr. Wes Jackson, RVOS Farm Mutual Insurance, and 
Trey Pike.

The property is currently vacant, undeveloped, and located in the RVOS Addition 
Subdivision. There are some and existing drainage easements on the site. The 
Georgetown Railroad runs along the southern portion of the subject property. 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

5

Surrounding properties include undeveloped land to the east, residential to the north, the 
Bentwood Subdivision to the west, and the Georgetown Railroad (which is inactive) 
abuts the property on the south. 

The applicant is proposing a mini-storage warehouse as defined by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) Section 11.2 – Definitions: 

n - t a e a eh se. A building or group of buildings consisting of 
individualized shelters of various sizes for rent or lease for the purpose of 
providing protection of commodities stored in the mini-storage warehouse. 

 UDC, Section 5.38 states that the unit size is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet: 
5 3 n - t a e a eh se

A mini-storage warehouse may be permitted in accordance with the use 
table in Sec. 5.1 provided that the size of each individual storage unit of a 
mini-storage warehouse is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet. 
The proposed units range in size from 25 square feet to 200 square feet; 
Some buildings are climate controlled; 
Some buildings are non-climate controlled; 
Approximately 350 total units (number of sizes yet to be determined); 
Combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), brick, split-faced 
concrete masonry units (CMUs) and accent metal paneling (visible facades as 
shown in the north and west elevations); 
*A 20 foot wide buffer along the Georgetown Railroad for future “rails to trails” 
amenity;
*39% of site is proposed to be landscaped; and 
The remaining 2.16 +/- acres are not included in this site plan and would require a 
PD amendment if developed in the future. 

(*Staff considers enhancements to the site because the proposal exceeds requirements 
by the UDC) 

Site plan shown. The proposal is split into two phases and Phase One includes an office 
space.

Ingress and egress will be located off of South 31st Street. 

Elevations and landscaping plans shown. 

In accordance with the UDC, Section 3.4.3 and 3.4.4, a Planned Development requires 
approval of a development/site plan which is binding to the project. 

In UDC, Section 3.4, a Planned Development is defined as: 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

6

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique 
development proposals, special design considerations and land use 
transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding 
areas through development plan approval.”

A PD typically includes: 
Screening/Buffering;
Landscaping; and 
Combination of Exterior Building Materials. 

The existing zoning map shows AG to the north, Single Family One (SF-1) to the south, 
NS to the west (with a PD), and SF-1 to the east.

In the Future Land Use and Character Map, the subject property is designated as the 
Auto-Urban Commercial district which provides for commercial uses and requires a 
higher landscaped surface area. The UDC requires five percent and the applicant is 
proposing 39 percent, therefore, the request is compliant with the Future Land Use and 
Character Map. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates South 31st Street as a major arterial with existing 
adequate right-of-way and will provide ingress and egress to the property. 

A six-foot wide sidewalk is required on the applicant’s side of the road and this sidewalk 
is included on the applicant’s submitted landscape plan. 

The Trails Master Plan indicates a City-wide proposed trail along the Georgetown 
Railroad. The applicant has confirmed the trees will be preserved and supplement trees 
as needed within the buffer along the railroad. This request is compliant with the 
Thoroughfare Plan and Trails Master Plan. 

Public facilities are available to the property which may require extensions.  

The applicant’s request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, 
the Thoroughfare Plan, the Trails Master Plan and Sidewalk Ordinance, UDC, Section 
3.4.5 Planned Development Criteria, and is consistent with the City’s infrastructure and 
public service capacities. 

Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed this request on November 21, 2016 to 
discuss the following: 

Site Characteristics: 
Existing easements;
Constraints;
Existing mature trees; 
Preservation of perimeter and interior trees based on species and maturity; 
Georgetown Railroad; and 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

7

“Rails to Trails” possible future amenity for the city’s trail system. 
Comparison between NS and PD-GR uses are given. 
Twenty-five notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with 
two response notices being returned in agreement and 12 response letters returned in 
disagreement. 
UDC, Section 3.3.4. - Protest, states that 20 percent or more of the area within the buffer 
accounts for property owners in disagreement of the rezoning request will trigger a 
protest. This means that a three-fourths vote by City Council is required in order for this 
action to be approved.
The total area of the buffer portion of this request is approximately 665,472 square feet; 
and the opposition area is approximately 135,238 square feet, which equals 20.322 
percent of the buffer. 
Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from NS to Planned Development 
Neighborhood Services (PD-NS) with the allowed use of a mini-storage warehouse and 
with the following conditions: 

Substantial compliance with the Development/Site Plan; 
Substantial compliance with the Landscape Plans and Elevations; 
That the remaining 2.16 +/- acres will require a separate Development/Site Plan 
review by the Planning & Zoning Commission with approval by City Council prior 
to any future development; 
Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 
A six-foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along South 31st Street prior to the 
opening of the business; 
All exterior building facades related to the mini-storage buildings shall have 
exteriors containing a combination of Exterior Insulation Finish Systems (EIFS), 
split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), brick and accent metal panels as 
shown in the Elevations submittal; 
Preservation of most trees within the subject property (perimeter and interior), 
based on variety and maturity, must be considered; 
A continuous 10- to 15-foot wide landscape buffer is required between residential 
and nonresidential uses. The buffer must be installed prior to any nonresidential 
development and maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. - Maintenance and 
Irrigation;
A continuous 20-foot wide landscape buffer is required along the Georgetown 
Railroad. This buffer must be installed prior to the completion of Phase II and 
maintained per UDC, Section 7.4.8. - Maintenance and Irrigation; 
All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 7.4 -
Landscaping;
Any fencing along South 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 
This PD runs with the land and is not affected by the transfer of property owners; 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

8

The maximum building height allowed is 30 feet (top of wall and per submittal 
elevations); and 
The applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
requirements.

Chair Rhoads asked about lighting on the project. Ms. Redmond deferred to the 
applicant for response. 
Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 
Mr. Donald Jones, 4216 Little Bend Court, Fort Worth, Texas, stated he was 
representing Mr. Trey Pike. Mr. Jones provided a brief background on this project. 
Mr. Jones has been in the storage business for 24 years and has worked all over the 
country.
When Mr. Jones was consulted about the subject property, he felt this property was most 
conducive to what he considered a good self-storage location: 1) it would accommodate 
a smaller self-storage property that would have nice curb appeal; 2) it would limit the 
growth of the business; 3) the 2.16 +/- acreage could possibly accommodate some other 
type of business; and 4) it is a multi-phase project which leaves access. 
In the design of the facility the entire back portion was intentionally left as-is. 
The applicant intends to preserve the trees on site. 
The applicant will work with the City on the future Trails and Rails project. 
Mr. Jones addressed the lighting question by stating through LED lighting, the lighting 
can be kept low enough and downward that there will be zero impact on the residential 
areas. It would not be overt just provide security.
Mr. Jones invited any of the neighbors/property owners/residents/HOAs to meet with him 
to discuss the project between tonight’s P&Z meeting and the first City Council meeting. 
Mr. Jones looks forward to working with the residents on any concerns raised. 
Brief discussion about the Waters Dairy storage project which was a totally different 
group.
Mr. Tex Burrows, 6205 Turtle Creek, Temple, Texas, asked about the difference 
between NS and PD-NS. 
Ms. Redmond clarified that a PD requires the submittal of a site plan, elevations, etc., 
which becomes binding to the property and project. 
Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, explained that this use would not be allowed in 
NS or GR unless it were tied to a PD district. The subject project would be bound to the 
elevations and the site plan if a mini-storage were to be built. Staff asked the applicant if 
they needed the GR zoning and they said no. If this project fails, the NS zoning district 
still prevails. 
Mr. Burrows lives in Deerfield Estates and is representing both his neighborhood and the 
Creeks of Deerfield. The Creeks of Deerfield created a letter and petition which included 
38 signatures against this proposal. Copies of these documents were given to P&Z. 
Mr. Burrows is on the Board of Directors of the HOA for Deerfield Estates. His main point 
tonight is the zoning that has been used by the City for this area which is NS. This 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

9

zoning was developed by the City to maintain the integrity of the neighborhoods around 
this area which include several neighborhoods/subdivisions.  
Mr. Burrows asked the Commission to maintain the integrity of the original plan with the 
NS zoning, which is the most restrictive, since GR is inappropriate and creates other 
problems.
Mr. Burrows felt that the definition given for the PD-NS may calm a lot of fears but it is 
still a concern for many residents. 
Commissioner Jones stated the subject project did not look like the standard mini-
storage building(s) people equate with and asked if the mini-storage facility itself was 
causing concerns. Mr. Burrows responded that none of the residents he spoke with prior 
to the meeting were aware of the type of mini-storage explained here tonight. It was Mr. 
Burrows’ opinion that some residents may feel better about the mini-storage facility but 
others may not just because it is a mini-storage. Mr. Burrows personally felt the concept 
was better than what was known prior to the meeting. 
The mini-storage buildings include a combination of climate-controlled units and non-
climate controlled units. 
Mr. John Shanafelt, 5934 Fawn Meadow Drive, Temple, Texas, stated his property 
backs up to the subject property. There are three other storage facilities within a mile and 
a half and he questions why another is needed. 
Mr. Shanafelt had concerns about the 25-foot setback since nothing else in the area was 
that close to the road. He also had concerns about the flat roofline and the height of the 
building.
When it rains, the subject property drains through the back yards of the residents. There 
was considerable concern about where the water would go and who would maintain it. 
Mr. Shanafelt stated putting this building with a 730-foot front wall, being 15-feet tall, and 
the corners being 30-feet tall (the height of a telephone pole), in a residential area, it is 
too close to the street, too massive on the face, and the drainage needs to be addressed 
in advance of any proposal. 
Mr. Chandler responded to the drainage issue by stating it was preliminarily reviewed 
through the DRC (which consists of City Staff) and they are aware of the issue. At 
permitting, the applicant would need to address the drainage plan requirements. 
Mr. Chandler added in regards to the setback issue, the 25-foot setback starts from 
behind the utility poles which are located in the utility easement. A lot of the front area is 
right-of-way and would not be in direct conflict. 
Ms. Susan Head, 5621 South 31st Street, Temple, Texas, stated she owns the property 
across the street from the subject property. 
Ms. Head is against the mini-storage facility and does not believe it is the best use for 
the property.  Ms. Head has lived in her home for 40 years and seen many changes in 
the area over time. 
Ms. Head is concerned that people would start using her driveway as a turnaround, 
thievery will increase, and she has never known a mini-storage to look nice. To Ms. 
Head, the design sounds fort-like with 30 foot towers, lots of fencing and concrete, and 
lots of metal. 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

10

Ms. Head feels the community should remain as it is. 
Mr. Mark Hacker, 5604 Legacy Oak, Temple, Texas, stated he is representing some of 
the neighbors and they are against this idea since it would detract from the neighborhood 
and not the best use for the land. 
Mr. Dan Mares, 5804 Turtle Creek Trail, Temple, Texas, stated he was concerned about 
the drainage situation. Mr. Mares moved to the area in 2006 and he has dealt with the 
runoff from the subject property and the railroad tracks for ten years. Mr. Mares 
explained the City did put in a small culvert on the east side of the railroad track which 
has helped some; however, there is still a lot of drainage/runoff occurring. 
Mr. Mares commented the subject property has been vacant since he moved to the area. 
Mr. Mares stated he was opposed to the storage facility and does not believe it is 
appropriate for the area. 
Mr. Paul Cox, 6004 Fawn Meadows Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he was in agreement 
with the facility, but not for three stories tall. Mr. Cox feels there is a lot less traffic coming 
in and out of the storage facility than the subdivision or the office complex.  
Mr. Cox felt the applicant would provide more security for the business than it has 
currently and did not have concerns about that. 
It was asked of the applicant if there needed to be a three-story tall building at each end 
of the facility. 
Mr. Donald Jones returned to the podium and stated the applicant is willing to make 
adjustments to any of the stated concerns and the three-story parapets façade could be 
adjusted to be smaller. 
The drainage issue was not created by the applicant but Mr. Jones can assure that the 
City will make the applicant fix the problem. The applicant/developer is already working 
with a civil engineering group out of Austin and Mr. Jones feels a detention pond is being 
designed to accommodate the issue for the entire seven acres. 
Mr. Paul Cox asked what type of barrier/fence would be along the railroad tracks and the 
storage units, the “trash” trees, and would the landscaping be done during Phase II.
Mr. Jones responded that a wrought iron (expanded tubed metal with shepherd’s hook) 
fence would be installed since it creates a barrier to keep people from crossing over the 
fence. Security is extremely important to the facility. 
The trees on the back lot would be inspected to identify the trees and what needs to be 
removed or preserved with any preserved trees accounting towards the landscaping 
agreement requirements.
The applicant is only developing the first three and a half acres and will need to work 
with the City on what they can or cannot do. This is a two-phased project. The initial 
thought is to fix the tree line immediately behind the property in the first phase and then 
phase II would include the remaining portion of the tree line; however, Mr. Jones is open 
to discussion. 
Mr. Jones confirmed there will be no outdoor storage whatsoever. Mr. Jones also 
confirmed that the applicant is not interested in having or including any truck 
rentals/sales (U-Haul, Ryder, etc.). 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

11

Ms. Susan Head returned to ask about the fencing along South 31st Street (the section 
facing the road). 
Mr. Jones responded there would be zero fencing on 31st Street since the wall (façade) 
is what they would want to show to the community and to look nice. The only fencing 
involved would be on the back portion of the subject property against the Georgetown 
Railroad section to prevent anyone from coming in the back way and close off any 
access points from the side. 
Additionally, the location of the main drive is for safety of and clear ingress and egress. 
The applicant prefers only one driveway on the entire subject property which could also 
serve as a shared common driveway if the other property is sold or developed.
Chair Rhoads clarified that the remainder 2.61 +/- acres would be untouched since it was 
a project for a later time, which would need to return to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and ultimately City Council. 
Ms. Head is against the proposal. 
There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
Staff has asked the applicant to submit an additional elevation for the front building of 
phase II (Building E) but has not received it to date. A condition for approval addresses 
the façade. All exterior building façades related to the mini-storage building shall have 
exterior combination of materials as shown in the elevation. 
Mr. Chandler clarified that this meant the public facing façade (what people would see). 
The internal units were not necessarily required to be masonry and would defer to the 
applicant to address the interior façades.
Chair Rhoads reopened the public hearing for the applicant to explain. 
Mr. Donald Jones stated the intention was to make the front façade on 31st Street as nice 
as possible. When the applicant builds the Trails and Rails portion, they want the back 
portion to be as nice as possible as well. Mr. Jones stated it would be alright with the 
applicant to do split-faced blocks in between the buildings but you generally would not do 
an EIFS-type product. In Phase II, the large building façade would be very nice since it 
will be visible from S. 31st Street.
The building on the back side by the drainage pond could be done in brick or face block 
or something similar to have a nice clean façade to the public if Trails and Rails is 
created. The three interior buildings will not have stucco, etc., but could do split-faced 
block in between the doors. 
Chair Rhoads closed the public hearing. 
Commissioner Jones offered up a motion to table the item and explained there were too 
many issues creating confusion and several unresolved matters. 
Commissioner Crisp agreed with Commissioner Jones’ comments. 
Chair Rhoads agreed with the comments made and stated growth is coming and 
inevitable in the area, as well as the rest of the City. 
Chair Rhoads reiterated the three-fourths vote will be required for approval by City 
Council due to the number of responses in disagreement of the request. 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

12

Commissioner Marshall asked if the Commission decided to table this item, is the 
Commission allowed to request to have a site drainage study/information included with 
the resubmitted elevations. Mr. Chandler confirmed the Commission is allowed to 
request this item in the motion; however, the applicant should be allowed to state how 
much time they would need to provide the information. The motion should include a 
specific date to return to the P&Z Commission. 
Mr. Chandler stated after conferring with Ms. Trudi Dill, Deputy City Attorney, it was not 
necessary to open and close a public hearing to hear the applicant speak. Applicants 
may make comments at any time during meetings. 
Mr. Jones replied with the holidays coming up and his current travel schedule, he 
requested to return to P&Z on February 6, 2017.
Mr. Chandler stated Staff would coordinate with applicant and residents to provide any 
dialogue and feedback for the applicant to make any changes prior to February 6, 2017. 

Commissioner Jones made a motion to table Item 4, Z-FY-17-03, until February 6, 2017 
Planning & Zoning meeting and directed Staff to work with the applicant and property 
owners with any dialogue, feedback, and/or meetings needed and Commissioner Crisp 
made a second. 

Motion passed:  (8:0)
Vice-Chair Fettig absent 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Leslie Evans 

December 6, 2016 Meeting Minutes, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsPublic Meeting - January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsPublic Meeting - January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsPublic Meeting - January 18, 2017 Sign-In Sheet, continued



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsSurveyor’s Sketch



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

1

Richard Wilson
Monday, March 13, 2017 11:25 AM
Dessie Redmond; Daniel
Kim Mettenbrink; Kenny Henderson
RE: Temple Storage update

Dessie,

After reviewing the drainage and reviewing the calculations provided by the developer’s engineer, we have determined
that a culvert can and will be installed under the dirt road. It is my understanding that the culvert will be installed even
if the development does not occur. The drainage swale on the north side of the tracks near the road will also be
regraded to remove the washout at the tracks.

Richard Wilson, P.E., CFM 
Deputy City Engineer 
Public Works Department\Engineering Division 
City of Temple, Texas 

Office: (254) 298-5667 

Dessie Redmond
Monday, March 13, 2017 11:08 AM

Daniel <dan.norma@sbcglobal.net>
Richard Wilson <rwilson@templetx.gov>; Kim Mettenbrink <kmettenbrink@templetx.gov>

RE: Temple Storage update

Good morning Mr. Mareš
Thank you for your feedback and comments. I have copied Richard Wilson, Deputy City Engineer, on this email as he can
provide details on the drainage comments and questions you have.

I will be including your comments in the City Council packet for the April 6 meeting. Also, at the meeting, there will be a
public hearing for this rezoning request. During that time, you can also publicly state your opinion on the project to the
City Council if you would like. If you have any questions about this, please let me know.

I’ve also copied Kim Mettenbrink who works for the Parks Department so they are aware of your request about adding
the site to the parks system.

Thank you for your time and your comments,

Dessie E. Redmond, MURP & MLA
City Planner
City of Temple, Planning Department
2 North Main Street, Suite 102
Temple, Texas 76501
254 298 5270
www.templetx.gov/planning

Richard Wilson Email



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Daniel [mailto:dan.norma@sbcglobal.net]
Friday, March 10, 2017 8:17 PM

Dessie Redmond <dredmond@templetx.gov>
Re: Temple Storage update

Thanks for the recent information. It still looks like the drainage issue has not been addressed. I hope the city of Temple
looks into putting a drainage pipe under the road on the west side of the railroad tracks. This would really help the
drainage problem.

I am very thankful the city of Temple did finally after 6 years install a drainage pipe on the east side of the
tracks. However this did not solve the issue of the water flowing over the tracks because of the buildup of soil and the
trash folks have been dumping on the west side of the tracks where the old road runs across the tracks.

I am still not convinced this is a good project. I would love for the city of Temple to purchase the property since we are
the bluebonnet capital of Texas, this would make a great addition to the parks system.

Thanks again,

Dan Mareš

Sent from my iPad

On Mar 8, 2017, at 11:00 AM, Dessie Redmond <dredmond@templetx.gov> wrote:

Good morning Mr. Mares

I wanted to let you know that the Z FY 17 03 rezoning request from Neighborhood Services (NS) to
Planned Development (PD NS) will be on the April 6 Council meeting agenda. I have attached the revised
submittals for your review. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you,
Dessie E. Redmond, MURP & MLA
City Planner
City of Temple, Planning Department
2 North Main Street, Suite 102
Temple, Texas 76501
254 298 5270
www.templetx.gov/planning

<2017-02-01 Temple Storage Perspective.jpg> 
<Z-FY-17-03 Elevations_revised.pdf> 
<Z-FY-17-03 Landscape Plans_revised.pdf> 
<Z-FY-17-03 Site Plan_revised.pdf> 
<Z-FY-17-03 Watershed Map - 100 Scale.pdf> 
<Z-FY-17-03 Watershed Map - 200 Scale.pdf> 

Richard Wilson Email, continued



//

//

OELx

OELx

OELx

OELx

OELx

OELx

O
EL
x

O
EL
x

O
EL
x

O
EL
x

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

>









R
ev
.



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsRVOS Addition Final Plat



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Site Auto Urban Commercial NS vacant
North Auto Urban Commercial AG single family residential
South Estate Residential PD SF1 single family residential
West Auto Urban Commercial PD NS vacant/retail
East Estate Residential PD SF1 single family residential



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

Attachments

Existing Proposed
NS PD NS

Minimum Lot Size n/a 155,590 sq ft
Minimum Lot Width n/a 565 ft

Front Setback 15 ft (per plat 25 ft) 25 ft
Side Setback 10 ft apprx 44 ft (to new property line)
Rear Setback 0* apprx 15 ft

Max Building Height 2.5 stories (28.75 ft)** 21 ft (COA)
Landscaping 5% of entire site 39% (old) / 29.8 % (new)
Buffer Along

Georgetown Railroad
not required 20 ft wide landscape buffer (COA)

Masonry on Facades 70% if visible from ROW
100% on all outward facing facades
(including some rear facades) (COA)

Tree Preservation not required
preservation of existing trees (interior

and perimeter) (COA)

Architectural Elements not required
corbels, pitched roof, varying roof

lines and overhangs

**UDC defines the standard height for a story as 11.5 ft.

COA = Condition of Approval

UDC Standards Comparison Table

* = See Section 4.4 Measurements & Special Cases.



04/06/17
Z-FY-17-03

AttachmentsOpposition Area (original request)

Z-
FY

-1
7-

03
s

t
n

A
ea

20
0 

ft 
B

uf
fe

r

op
po

si
tio

n
pa

rc
el

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

To
ta

l B
uf

fe
r A

re
a 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 - 
66

5,
47

2.
78

8 
sq

 ft
O

pp
os

iti
on

 A
re

a 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

20
0 

ft 
bu

ffe
r  

-  
31

9,
00

0.
93

8 
sq

 ft
O

pp
os

iti
on

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  4
7.

93
6%

   
 

G
IS

 p
ro

du
ct

s 
ar

e 
fo

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

na
l p

ur
po

se
s 

an
d 

m
ay

 
no

t h
av

e 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r o

r b
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r l

eg
al

, 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 o

r s
ur

ve
yi

ng
 p

ur
po

se
s.

 T
he

y 
do

 n
ot

 
re

pr
es

en
t a

n 
on

-th
e-

gr
ou

nd
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
t 

on
ly

 th
e 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
e 

re
la

tiv
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r f

ea
tu

re
s.

























































































































1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

(Z-FY-17-03) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 
ZONING DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-NEIGHBORHOOD 
SERVICES ZONING DISTRICT AND SITE/DEVELOPMENT PLAN ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.5718 ACRES, PROPOSED FOR A NONRESIDENTIAL 
SUBDIVISION FOR A MINI-STORAGE FACILITY, WHICH IS A REDUCED 
SCOPE FROM THE ORIGINAL APPROXIMATELY 7.35 ACRES, SITUATED 
ON A PORTION OF 1 LOT, 1 BLOCK, RVOS ADDITION, LOCATED AT 5785 
SOUTH 31ST STREET; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Neighborhood Services zoning 

district to Planned Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district and 
site/development plan on approximately 3.5718 acres, proposed for a nonresidential 
subdivision for a mini-storage facility, which is a reduced scope from the original 
approximately 7.35 acres, situated on a portion of 1-lot, 1-block, RVOS addition, located 
at 5785 South 31st Street, Temple, Texas, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit 
‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Neighborhood Services 

zoning district to Planned Development-Neighborhood Services zoning district with the 
following conditions: 

 
1. Substantial compliance with the Development/Site Plan, attached hereto 

as Exhibit B;  
2. Substantial compliance with the Landscape Plans and Elevations as 

depicted in Exhibit C; 
3. That the remaining approximately 3.776 acres will remain as is in the 

Neighborhood Services zoning district;  
4. Each individual storage unit is limited to a maximum of 2,000 cubic feet; 
5. A six foot wide sidewalk is required to be built along S. 31st Street prior 

to the opening of the business; 
6. Outward-facing building facades (as shown in Exhibit C: Outward-

Facing Building Facades Graphic) related to the mini-storage buildings 
shall have exteriors containing a combination of Exterior Insulation 
Finish Systems (EIFS), split-faced concrete masonry units (CMUs), brick 
and accent metal panels as shown in the Elevations submittal; 

7. All landscaping required by the UDC shall meet or exceed UDC, Section 
7.4 Landscaping; 

8. Any fencing along South 31st Street shall be decorative metal; 
 



2 
 

 
 

9. This PD runs with the land and is not affected by future change of 
ownership; 

10. The maximum building wall height is 21 feet (top of wall and per 
submitted elevations); 

11. Applicant shall comply with all Texas Department of Transportation 
requirements; and 

12. All lighting associated with the proposal shall be shielded to prevent light 
trespass. 

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
TABLED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 2nd day of March, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 6th day of April, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Third Reading on the 20th day of April, 2017. 
 

       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

              
____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-19: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to General Retail zoning district on 
3.91 +/- acres, Lot 1 Block 1, Fernandez Addition, located at 430 Hilliard Road, Temple, Texas. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Agricultural district to 
General Retail district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed rezoning is compliant with the Future Land Use Map’s Suburban 
Commercial District; 

2. The proposed zoning is compliant with surrounding zoning and anticipated retail and 
service uses along this section of Hilliard Road;  

3. The request is compliant with the Thoroughfare Plan; and   
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their March 6, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted six to zero for approval of the proposed rezoning from Agricultural 
(AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district, per staff’s recommendation. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Aldrich-Thomas Group, on behalf of the owner James Mendenhall, is requesting 
rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) district on 3.91 +/- acres tract of land, 
described as Lot 1, Block 1, Fernandez Addition (Exhibit A). The property is currently developed with a 
single residence.  
 
It is noteworthy that this is the second rezoning on Hilliard Road (Outer Loop) within the last year. Per 
Ordinance 2016-4786, the property across the street at 419 Hilliard Road was rezoned from Agricultural 
(AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district.  
 
While there is currently a single-family residence on the property, it is anticipated the property eventually 
will be re-developed with retail and service uses.  
 
There are a number of residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right in the GR zoning 
district. The uses allowed in the GR, include but are not limited those uses listed in the attached table. 
Non-residential development of this property may require a replat to be submitted and reviewed by the 
City 
 



04/06/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, most 
commercial uses and industrial uses. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Suburban Commercial land use district. The Suburban 
Commercial district is intended for office and retail service-related zoning districts, of which the 
requested GR-zoning is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map. While there are no immediate 
plans to develop the property for retail and service uses, if approved, the zoning would be in-place to 
accommodate future market trends to allow development along this section of the Outer Loop, which 
is north of its intersection with West Adams Avenue (FM 2305). 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from Hilliard Road, located approximately 1200 feet north of its 
intersection with West Adams Avenue. This section of Hilliard Road, also known as Research Parkway 
and the Outer Loop, is a major arterial, which requires a 6-foot sidewalk on both sides. Sidewalk 
improvements are currently in place on the east side of Hilliard, across the street from the subject 
property. A 6-foot sidewalk will be required at the Construction Plan phase along the subject property’s 
frontage. Otherwise sidewalks will be addressed at the platting stage, if replatting is required. Currently, 
there are no funded or scheduled TCIP improvement projects along this section of Hilliard Road. 
 
As an arterial, UDC Section 7.2.4 prohibits residential driveways onto an arterial. While the proposed 
rezoning would reduce the number of residential driveways onto an arterial, once developed with non-
residential uses, the current residential driveway is non-conforming. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available to the subject property through an existing 8-inch sewer line in Hilliard Road and will 
require extension to the subject from its current location. Water is available through an existing 18-inch 
waterline in Hilliard Road. Public facilities will be addressed through the subdivision plat process.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan identifies an existing City-Wide spine trail in Hilliard Road. Any needed trail 
improvements or upsizing will be addressed during the future platting process. 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Residential setbacks in the Agricultural (AG) district & non-
residential for the General Retail (GR) district are found in the attached table. Additional standards are 
shown below. 
   
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use - UDC Section 

4.4.4.F3) and, 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential uses are 
found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 

 
 



04/06/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Eight notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday March 28, 
2017 at 9:00 AM, three notices have been received in agreement.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 23, 2017, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Fernandez Addition Final Plat (Exhibit A) 
Maps 
Tables 
Returned Property Notices 
P&Z Excerpts (March 6, 2017) 
Ordinance 
  



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site: Existing SF Residential Use on Acreage  
(AG) 

 

 
 

North: Existing SF Residential Uses on Acreage  
(AG) 



 
 

East:  Existing Single Family Residential Use  
(GR, per Ord. 2016-4786) 

 

 
 

West: Undeveloped & Unplatted Land & Platted Westfield Development  
(PD-GR & MF-2) 



 
 

South: Existing SF Residential Use on Acreage 
(AG) 

 

 
 

South: Existing Service & Retail Uses  
Intersection of Hilliard Road & W. Adams Ave (FM2305) 

(GR) 



mbaker
Polygonal Line

mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



Maps 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 
 

 
 

Location Map 



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 
 

Notification Map 
 
 
 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table (GR) 
 
 

Permitted & Conditional Use Table - General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses *  Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

*  Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)                                                                
*  Duplex                                                                                    
*  Townhouse                                                                           
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
*  Family or Group Home                                                        
*  Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 
*  Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
*  Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise   
consumption, package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

*  Plumbing Shop                                                                               
*  Upholstery Shop                                                                   
*  Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                    
*  Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 
*  Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                     
*  Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or research                                                                      
*  Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses 
*  Park or Playground                                                             
*  Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 

*  Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
*  Auto Sales - New & Used (outside Lot)                         
*  Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
*  Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses *  With & Without Drive-In 

Overnight Accommodations *  Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses *  Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
*  Helistop  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Suburban Commercial AG SF Use on Acreage 
North Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped & Scattered 

SF Uses 
South Suburban Commercial  AG & GR Undeveloped & Scattered 

SF Uses 
East Suburban Commercial AG, GR & 

SF-1 
SF Residential Uses Holy 

Trinity Catholic High School 
West Suburban Commercial AG, MF-2 

& GR 
Undeveloped & Scattered 

SF Uses 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 



Development Standards 
 

 

Current  (AG)  
Residential 

Proposed (GR) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 3 Stories 

 
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or 

use -  UDC Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to 

residential uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but 
not limited to: 

* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), 

and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 



mbaker
Text Box
        RECEIVEDFEBRUARY 28, 2017







EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 6, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 3: Z-FY-17-19 -  Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district on 3.91 +/- 
acres, Lot 1 Block 1, Fernandez Addition, located at 430 Hilliard Road, Temple, 
Texas. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item was scheduled to go forward to City Council 
for first reading on April 6, 2017 and for second reading on April 20, 2017. 

Vicinity map shown. 

No specific development has been identified by the applicant. 

Zoning map shown. The subject property is currently zoned Agricultural (AG). 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the subject property as Suburban-
Commercial which supports office, retail, and services use, and supports GR zoning. 

Both water and sewer are available to serve the property with an 18-inch water line in Hilliard 
and an eight-inch sewer line in Hilliard.  

Hilliard Road is designated as a major arterial by the Thoroughfare Plan. No anticipated 
Transportation Capital Improvements Program (TCIP) are funded or scheduled along this 
section of Hilliard.  

An existing City-wide spine trail is on the east side of Hilliard. 

Site photos shown. 

Surrounding properties include single family residential uses on acreage and front Hilliard 
Road, zoned AG, is located to the north; scattered retail and service uses at the intersection of 
Hilliard Road and West Adams Avenue, zoned GR, and an existing single family residence on 
acreage, zoned AG, is located to the south; and an existing single family residential use, 
zoned GR (Ord. No. 2016-4786), is located to the east. 

Several GR allowed uses (not inclusive) are briefly covered.  

Current and proposed Development Standards are cited. 

Buffering and screening would be required. Per the Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 
7.7.4 – Buffering: 

May consist of evergreen hedges composed of five-gallon plants or larger, with a 
planted height of six-feet on 36-inch centers 



May consist of a six-foot to eight-foot high fence or wall, constructed by any number of 
allowed materials per UDC Section 7.7.5, such as: 

Wood, 
Masonry, 
Stone or pre-cast concrete 

Eight notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations, with three notices 
returned in agreement and zero notices returned in disagreement.  
The request is in compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map, the Thoroughfare 
Plan, is compatible with surrounding uses and zoning, and public facilities are available to 
serve the property.  
Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from AG district to GR district. 

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Ryan Flores, Aldrich-Thomas Group, 10715 Bridgeport Drive, Temple, Texas, stated he 
was available for any concerns or questions. 

There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Marshall made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-17-19, per Staff 
recommendation, and Commissioner Ward made a second. 

Motion passed:  (6:0) 
Vice-Chair Fettig, Commissioners Armstrong and Jones absent 

 
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

(Z-FY-17-19) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO GENERAL RETAIL ZONING DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 3.91 ACRES,  LOT 1,  BLOCK 1, FERNANDEZ 
ADDITION, LOCATED AT 430 HILLIARD ROAD, TEMPLE, TEXAS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

General Retail zoning district on approximately 3.91 acres,  Lot-1,  Block-1, Fernandez 
Addition, located at 430 Hilliard Road, Temple, Texas, as outlined in the map attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district 

to General Retail zoning district.  
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of 

April, 2017. 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of April, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
04/06/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-20:  Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Single Family-Three, General 
Retail, and Office-Two zoning districts on 81.173 +/- acres, situated in the B. Stracener Survey, Abstract 
No. 746, Bell County, Texas, located at 3131 Lower Troy Road. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its March 6, 2017, meeting the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted six to zero to recommend approval of the requested rezoning 
from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to Single Family-Three (SF-3), General Retail (GR), and Office-
Two (O-2) zoning districts. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning from Agricultural 
(AG) District to Single Family-Three (SF-3) and General Retail (GR), and Office-Two  
(O-2) zoning districts for the following reasons: 

1. Compliance with surrounding zoning and land uses; and  
2. Compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant requests this rezoning from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to Single 
Family-Three (SF-3), General Retail (GR), and Office-Two (O-2) to allow development of duplexes 
along Lower Troy Road; retail uses along NE H.K. Dodgen Loop, and single-family residential uses 
within the interior portion of the subject property. While staff generally prefers a Two-Family (2F) 
zoning designation for duplexes when property is abutting existing residential uses, the 
applicant’s subject property is appropriate for duplexes or offices in this location.  The subject 
property is currently agricultural land which spans from the east side of Lower Troy Road to the west 
side of NE H.K. Dodgen Loop.  The Union Pacific Railroad runs along the west side of Lower Troy 
Road.   
 
The applicants plan to have potential development maintained by a home owners association (H.O.A). 
If this proposed rezoning is approved, the subject property will need to go through the platting process 
prior to development. Since the subject property does not have water or sewer facilities, the 
applicant’s engineers will need to work out issues currently associated with connecting to 
existing water and sewer facilities in the vicinity.   
 

 
 
 



04/06/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the lack of water and sewer facilities for the 
subject property and surrounding properties to the north and south during the public hearing 
on March 6, 2017.  During the public hearing, the applicant’s engineer assured the Planning and Zoning 
Commission that the proposed development would have water and sewer services through connections 
to existing facilities west of Lower Troy Road.  As of March 27, 2017, the Public Works Engineering 
Division has reviewed the applicant’s proposed Utility Extension Plan and offered the following 
comments: 
 

1. The wastewater system connection to an existing 6 inch vitrified clay pipe is not 
acceptable.  The connection must be made to a larger diameter segment of the Bellaire 
Relief Sewer. 

2. The water system connection to an existing 6 inch water main is not in compliance with 
the City of Temple Water Master Plan.  The Master Plan includes a network of 8 inch 
water mains and a 12 inch water main along Loop 363.  

 
The applicant’s requested SF-3 zoning district permits single-family detached residences and related 
accessory structures and provides single-family development at urban densities in locations well 
served by public utilities and roadways.  The district should have adequate thoroughfare access and 
be relatively well connected with community and neighborhood facilities such as schools, parks, and 
shopping areas and transit services.   
 
The applicant’s requested SF-3 zoning district permits single-family detached residences and related 
accessory structures and provides single-family development at urban densities in locations well 
served by public utilities and roadways.  The district should have adequate thoroughfare access and 
be relatively well connected with community and neighborhood facilities such as schools, parks, and 
shopping areas and transit services.   
 
The applicant’s requested GR zoning district, along NE H.K. Dodgen Loop, is the standard retail 
district and allows most retails uses including retail sales, restaurants, grocery stores, department 
stores, or offices and residential uses except apartments.   
 
The GR zoning district is intended to serve larger service areas than neighborhoods. This district 
should be located at the intersection of major arterials and should provide total on-site traffic 
maneuvering such that traffic entering and exiting the facility should have room to turn, stack and park 
within the confines of the retail facility.  Adjoining zoning districts should be carefully selected to 
reduce environmental conflicts.    
 
The applicant’s requested O-2 zoning district permits a variety of low, mid and high rise office 
development.  Apartments and duplexes are allowed. Buildings in the O-2 District may be built to 
any legal height.  Office buildings over 40 feet in height must provide additional yard space.  The O-2 
zoning district is intended to allow for office uses in an area that is primarily business or high 
density residential.  This district provides for professional, financial, medical and other office 
services and may include corporate offices and major employment centers.  Uses in this district 
generally have low traffic generation characteristics and do not require high visibility to conduct 
business.   
 
 



04/06/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is within the Suburban Residential and Suburban Commercial character 
districts of the Choices ’08 City of Temple Comprehensive Plan.     
 
The property’s Suburban Commercial land use classification along the northeast tip of the 
subject property along NE H. K. Dodgen Loop is appropriate for office, retail and services uses 
adjacent to and abutting residential neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image 
and aesthetic value is to be promoted, such as at “gateways” and high-profile corridor locations.  
Therefore, it limits the floor area ratio and requires a higher landscape surface ratio than in the Auto 
Urban Commercial district.  The applicant’s requested General Retail District complies with this 
land use classification, but it does not comply with the remaining property’s Suburban 
Residential land use classification. 
 
According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, the property’s Suburban Residential land use 
classification along Lower Troy Road is characterized by mid-size single family lots, allowing for 
greater separation between dwellings and more emphasis on green space versus streets and 
driveways.  The applicant’s requested SF-3 zoning district does not comply since it provides single-
family development at urban densities.  The applicant’s requested O-2 district also does not comply 
with the Suburban Residential land use classification, but it does comply with the Thoroughfare 
Plan. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property’s west property line fronts Lower Troy Road, a designated Minor Arterial in the 
Thoroughfare Plan.  The applicant’s requested O-2 zoning district is appropriate along Minor 
Arterials.  But, single-family or two-family dwellings are not appropriate along Minor Arterials.  
The property’s east property line fronts NE H.K. Dodgen Loop, a designated Expressway in the 
Thoroughfare Plan.  The applicant’s requested GR zoning district is appropriate along 
Expressways. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
City maps do not show existing water or sewer lines on the subject property, but existing water and 
sewer facilities exist across the street in the Bellaire North Subdivision, located on the west side of the 
Union Pacific Railroad along Lower Troy Road.  Additional water lines exist south of the subject property 
along East Young Avenue and along Gun Club Road. 
 
As previously mentioned in this staff report, the Public Works Engineering Division has 
reviewed the applicant’s proposed Utility Extension Plan and offered the following comments 
on March 27, 2017: 
 

1. The wastewater system connection to an existing 6 inch vitrified clay pipe is not acceptable.  
The connection must be made to a larger diameter segment of the Bellaire Relief Sewer. 

2. The water system connection to an existing 6 inch water main is not in compliance with the 
City of Temple Water Master Plan.  The Master Plan includes a network of 8 inch water mains 
and a 12 inch water main along Loop 363.  



04/06/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
Proposed City Council Meeting Schedule 
This item is tentatively scheduled for a City Council public hearing (first reading) on April 6, 2017.  The 
second reading of City Council is tentatively scheduled for April 20, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Eighteen (18) notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were 
sent out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of Thursday, March 2, 2017, one notice has been received in favor of the proposed 
rezoning and one notice has been returned in opposition to the proposed rezoning.  A verbal response 
of opposition was received by phone from the property owner at 3109 North 12th Street. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 23, 2016, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Maps 
Development Regulations 
Surrounding Property & Uses Chart 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
Applicant’s Rezoning Exhibit 
Notification Response Letters 
Ordinance 

  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property AG 

Agricultural 
Land 
 

 

 

East AG Expressway 
 

  

 
Lower Troy RD 

Site 

Site 

NE H.K. Dodgen Loop 

NE H.K. Dodgen Loop 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

West SF-1, 
2F, AG  

Residential, 
Agricultural 
Land, & 
Undeveloped 
Land 

 

 

South AG  

Agricultural 
Land and 
Rural 
Residential  

 

Lower Troy RD 

Lower Troy RD 

Lower Troy RD 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

 

North AG Agricultural 
Land 

 

 
 

NE H.K. Dodgen Loop 

NE H.K. Dodgen Loop 

Lower Troy RD 



 

 



 

 



 

 



DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  
 

     

     

  

Proposed  (SF-3)  Current (AG) 
 

 

Minimum Lot Size 4,000 Square Feet  1 Acre 
 

 

Minimum Lot Width 40 Feet 100 Feet 
 

 

Minimum Lot Depth 100 Feet 150 Feet 
 

 

Front Setback 15 Feet 50 Feet 

 
 

Side Setback 5 Feet 15 Feet 
 

 

Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 15 Feet 
 

 

Rear Setback 10 Feet 10 Feet 
 

 

Max Building Height 2-1/2 Stories 3 Stories 
 

 

 ALH - Any Legal Height not Prohibited by other Laws  
 

 

* UDC Sect 4.4 - Measurements and Special Case  
 

      
 

     

     

  

Proposed  (O-2)  Proposed (GR) 
 

 

Minimum Lot Size 6000 N/A 
 

 

Minimum Lot Width 50 Feet N/A 
 

 

Minimum Lot Depth 100 Feet N/A 
 

 

Front Setback *25 Feet 15 Feet  

 

 

Side Setback 
10% Lot Width 

5 feet min. 10 Feet 
 

 

Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 
 

 

Rear Setback 10 Feet *0 Feet 
 

 

Max Building Height *ALH 3 Stories 
 

 

 ALH - Any Legal Height not Prohibited by other Laws  
 

 

* UDC Sect 4.4 - Measurements and Special Case  
 

      
 
 
 
 
 

  



Permitted & Conditional Use Table – Office-Two (O-2) 
Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

* Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)                                                                
*  Duplex                                                                                    
*  Townhouse                                                                           
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
* Family or Group Home                                                        
*  Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 

* Retail Shop,                                                
* Offices 
* Bank or Savings and Loans 
 * Alcoholic Beverage Sales with CUP (not package 
store) 

Commercial Uses N/A 

Industrial Uses * Petroleum or Gas Well 

Recreational Uses * Park or Playground                                                              

Vehicle Service Uses N/A 

Restaurant Uses * With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight 

Accommodations * Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses * Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
* Helistop  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Permitted & Conditional Use Table – Single Family-Three (SF-3) 
Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses * Single Family Residence (Detached)                                                                
* Industrialized Housing                                                       

Retail & Service Uses N/A 

Commercial Uses N/A 

Industrial Uses N/A  

Recreational Uses * Park or Playground                                                              

Vehicle Service Uses N/A 

Restaurant Uses N/A 
Overnight 

Accommodations N/A 

Transportation Uses *Railroad track right-of-way or team track        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  Permitted & Conditional Use Table - General Retail (GR) 
Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

* Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)                                                                
*  Duplex                                                                                    
*  Townhouse                                                                           
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
* Family or Group Home                                                        
*  Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 
* Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
* Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise 
consumption, package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 
*  Plumbing Shop                                                                               
*  Upholstery Shop                                                                   
*   Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                    
*  Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 
* Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                     
*  Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or research                                                                      
* Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses * Park or Playground                                                             
* Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 
* Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
*  Auto Sales - New & Used (outside Lot)                         
* Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
* Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses * With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight 

Accommodations * Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses * Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
* Helistop  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Surrounding Property & Uses  

Direction Future Land Use Map Zoning Current Land Use 

Site 
Suburban Commercial, and 

Suburban Residential AG Agricultural 

North Suburban Commercial AG Agricultural 

South Suburban Residential         AG Agricultural 

West 
Suburban Residential, 
Neighborhood Conservation, 
& Auto-Urban Residential 

2F, SF-1, & 
MF-1 

Undeveloped Land, 
Single-Family & Multi-

Family Residential 

East Agricultural/Rural AG Agricultural  
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following 
goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map No 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 









1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

(Z-FY-17-20) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMILY THREE, GENERAL RETAIL, AND OFFICE 
TWO ZONING DISTRICTS ON APPROXIMATELY 81.173 ACRES SITUATED 
IN THE B. STRACENER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 746, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, LOCATED AT 3131 LOWER TROY ROAD; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

Single Family Three, General Retail, and Office Two zoning districts on approximately 
81.173 acres, situated in the B. Stracener Survey, Abstract No. 746, Bell County, Texas, 
located at 3131 Lower Troy Road, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ 
and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district 

to Single Family Three, General Retail, and Office Two zoning districts.  
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of 

April, 2017. 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of April, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



f a  
 

 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
 

 
04/06/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci L. Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing amendments the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project 
Plans to align with the 2022 Master Plan for years FY 2017-2019. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented; and set 
second and final reading for April 20, 2017. 
  
ITEM SUMMARY: The Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Finance and Project Committees have met and 
discussed the 2022 Master Plan Projects. The result of the meeting is recommended changes to the 
Financing and Project Plans to continue with the execution of the 2022 Master Plan. The focus of the 
proposed amendment is for the fiscal years 2017-2019, however, state law requires a financing and 
project plan to span the life of the Zone.  
 
The Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved these amendments at its April 5, 2017 board meeting. 
 
The proposed amendment allocates funding for the following projects:  
 

• Design and construction of a Corporate airport hangar 
• Design and construction of an extension of ‘TMED’ South 1st street 
• Additional funding for construction of Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail  
• Design and Construction of a parking lot for the Pepper Creek Trail  

 
Funding for the projects is available from the combination of State and Federal Airport Grants, a tenant 
contribution for their requested upgrades to the Corporate airport hangar, deletion of the allocation for 
the Airport taxiway improvements that are not needed at the current time, moving $5,000,000 of the 
$10,000,000 allocated to Temple Independent School District to FY 2018 to align with the contractual 
obligation to make the payment, transferring project funding between bond and cash funding for 
Research Parkway, and reducing the amount of funding allocated for the construction of Veterans 
Memorial Boulevard in FY 2019. 
  
 
 



04/06/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
The following table summarizes the amendment to the Financing Plan by line item #, project description, 
funding year and amount of increase (decrease): 
 

 
 
 
 
The following is a summary of funding for the 2022 Master Plan projects: 
 
 

 
 

 
See the attached “TRZ Master Plan Project Funding (2017-2022)” for more detail on the projects.  All 
changes have been highlighted in yellow. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Line # Description FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
409 TISD-Obligation per Contract (5,000,000)$  5,000,000$   -$               
10 NPE Airport Grant Revenue 150,000$       -$               -$               
14 Miscellaneous Reimbursement 150,000$       -$               -$               

509 RAMP Grant Project (100,000)$     -$               -$               
207 Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail 1,000,000$   -$               -$               
305 Research Parkway I35 to Wendland (1,000,000)$  1,000,000$   -$               
510 Airport Hangar 1,620,000$   -$               -$               
155 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Pkwy-parking lot 150,000$       -$               -$               
466 TMED South 1st Street Design 120,000$       -$               -$               
466 TMED South 1st Street Construction 1,200,000$   -$               -$               
507 Airport Taxiway -$               (1,310,000)$  -$               
464 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II -$               -$               (2,500,000)$  

Net change in projects (2,310,000)$  4,690,000$   (2,500,000)$  

 Bond Issue
Project Description 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

Temple Industrial Park -$                     -$                    400,000$      -$                       -$                   -$                   -$                     400,000$         
Corporate Campus Park 150,000          -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -                       150,000           
Bioscience Park -                       1,000,000      -                      -                          -                      -                      -                       1,000,000        
Research Parkway/Outer Loop 400,000          14,600,000    1,000,000     -                          10,750,000   -                      -                       26,750,000      
Downtown 9,550,000       3,400,000      7,700,000     450,000            450,000        450,000        450,000          22,450,000      
TMED 1,320,000       -                      -                      3,960,000         -                      -                      -                       5,280,000        
Airport Park 1,620,000       -                      -                      -                          -                      -                      -                       1,620,000        
Public Improvements -                       -                      -                      -                          -                      5,500,000     7,000,000       12,500,000      
MASTER PLAN PROJECT 
FUNDING 13,040,000$  19,000,000$ 9,100,000$   4,410,000$       11,200,000$ 5,950,000$   7,450,000$    70,150,000$    



04/06/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Below is a table summarizing the Source and Use of funds included in the Financing 
and Project Plans.  
 

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Financing Plan 
Summary Financing Plan with Detailed Project Plan 
Summary - TRZ Master Plan Project Funding (2017 - 2022) 
TRZ Master Plan Project Funding (2017 - 2022) 
Ordinance 

  

 Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Future Years

Available FB(1) @ October 1 27,838,651$     3,988,025$      2,841,256$      5,576,198$         1,626,227$     3,075,793$     3,706,289$       

Total Source of Funds 39,486,878       16,107,145      15,303,122      15,500,830         15,651,671     16,317,253     862,639,314     
Total Debt & Operating Exp. 7,305,206         8,153,914        8,158,180        8,250,801           8,252,105       8,236,757       79,283,805       
Total Planned Project Exp. 56,032,298       9,100,000        4,410,000        11,200,000         5,950,000       7,450,000       787,061,798     
Available FB(1) @ September 30 3,988,025$       2,841,256$      5,576,198$      1,626,227$         3,075,793$     3,706,289$     -$                      

(1) - Fund Balance



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/05/17 to Zone Board Page 1 of 5
Revised

Y/E 9/30/17 Y/E 9/30/18 Y/E 9/30/19 Y/E 9/30/20 Y/E 9/30/21 Y/E 9/30/22

DESCRIPTION Year 35 Year 36 Year 37 Year 38 Year 39 Year 40

1 "Taxable Increment" 435,256,703$        382,863,680$        370,649,604$        377,916,559$        382,213,195$        427,532,778$        

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin 27,838,651$       3,988,025$         2,841,256$         5,576,198$         1,626,227$         3,075,793$         

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation 27,838,651$       3,988,025$         2,841,256$         5,576,198$         1,626,227$         3,075,793$         

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues 19,371,450         16,265,121         15,459,007         15,659,726         15,823,016         16,519,039         

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues] (290,572)             (243,977)             (231,885)             (234,896)             (237,345)             (247,786)             

8 Interest Income-Other 50,000                50,000                40,000                40,000                30,000                10,000                

10 Grant Funds 1,170,000           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway 36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                36,000                

14 Other Revenues 150,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

17 Bond Proceeds 19,000,000         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

20    Total Sources of Funds 39,486,878$       16,107,144$       15,303,122$       15,500,830$       15,651,671$       16,317,253$       

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 67,325,529$       20,095,169$       18,144,378$       21,077,028$       17,277,898$       19,393,046$       

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding 1,510,150           1,488,750           1,485,000           -                      -                      -                      

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil} 1,240,096           1,241,957           1,241,173           1,237,744           1,241,670           1,242,422           

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding} 912,200              908,350              915,950              2,497,800           2,497,550           2,494,950           

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding} 76,400                79,600                77,650                80,050                77,250                78,750                

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil} 2,034,894           2,047,694           2,048,344           2,047,944           2,046,494           2,031,494           

32 Debt Service - 2017 Issue {$19 mil} 344,583              1,452,000           1,454,500           1,451,700           1,452,200           1,452,100           

35 Paying Agent Services 1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  1,700                  

40      Subtotal-Debt Service 6,120,023           7,220,051           7,224,317           7,316,938           7,316,864           7,301,416           

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt 175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              175,000              

52 Legal/Audit 1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,300                  1,400                  

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies] 330,000              330,000              330,000              330,000              330,000              330,000              

56 Rail Maintenance 214,390              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

58 Road/Signage Maintenance 238,243              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              100,000              

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing] 200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              200,000              

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract] 26,250                27,563                27,563                27,563                28,941                28,941                

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures 1,185,183           933,863              933,863              933,863              935,241              935,341              

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES 7,305,206$         8,153,914$         8,158,180$         8,250,801$         8,252,105$         8,236,757$         

80 Funds Available for Projects 60,020,323$       11,941,256$       9,986,198$         12,826,227$       9,025,793$         11,156,289$       

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park 696,509              400,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      

200 Corporate Campus Park 1,651,520           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

250 Bioscience Park 4,814,692           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

350 Research Parkway 21,229,812         1,000,000           -                      10,750,000         -                      -                      

400 Synergy Park 501,701              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

450 Downtown 17,886,895         7,700,000           450,000              450,000              450,000              450,000              

500 TMED 7,304,245           -                      3,960,000           -                      -                      -                      

550 Airport Park 1,946,924           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

610 Public Improvements -                      -                      -                      -                      5,500,000           7,000,000           

     Subtotal-Projects 56,032,298         9,100,000           4,410,000           11,200,000         5,950,000           7,450,000           

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS 63,337,504$       17,253,914$       12,568,180$       19,450,801$       14,202,105$       15,686,757$       

700 FUND BALANCE, End 3,988,025$         2,841,256$         5,576,198$         1,626,227$         3,075,793$         3,706,289$         

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-05-17 modified proposal 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/05/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2017 Issue {$19 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Research Parkway

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 2 of 5

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032

41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50

450,142,634$          496,141,511$          537,771,984$          660,938,023$          689,548,837$          696,444,325$          703,408,769$          710,442,856$          717,547,285$          724,722,758$          

3,706,289$           2,549,157$           2,589,183$           2,759,223$           2,850,949$           3,161,901$           3,169,415$           3,385,358$           3,794,771$           3,906,806$           

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

3,706,289$           2,549,157$           2,589,183$           2,759,223$           2,850,949$           3,161,901$           3,169,415$           3,385,358$           3,794,771$           3,906,806$           

16,921,830           17,628,841           18,280,346           19,989,672           20,474,693           20,679,426           20,886,206           21,095,054           21,305,990           21,519,035           

(253,827)              (264,433)              (274,205)              (299,845)              (307,120)              (310,191)              (313,293)              (316,426)              (319,590)              (322,786)              

10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

16,714,003$        17,410,408$        18,052,141$        19,735,827$        20,213,573$        20,415,235$        20,618,913$        20,824,628$        21,032,400$        21,242,249$        

20,420,292$        19,959,565$        20,641,324$        22,495,050$        23,064,521$        23,577,135$        23,788,328$        24,209,986$        24,827,171$        25,149,056$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

2,030,094             2,026,694             2,038,413             2,051,613             2,059,113             2,061,713             2,061,713             2,069,113             2,073,513             2,084,913             

1,454,500             1,455,700             1,455,700             1,454,500             1,454,000             1,456,500             1,451,750             1,455,000             1,455,750             1,454,000             

1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    

3,485,794             3,483,594             3,495,313             3,507,313             3,514,313             3,519,413             3,514,663             3,525,313             3,530,463             3,540,113             

175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                

1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    

330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                

28,941                  30,388                  30,388                  30,388                  31,907                  31,907                  31,907                  33,502                  33,502                  33,502                  

935,341                936,788                936,788                936,788                938,307                938,307                938,307                939,902                939,902                939,902                

4,421,135$           4,420,382$           4,432,101$           4,444,101$           4,452,620$           4,457,720$           4,452,970$           4,465,215$           4,470,365$           4,480,015$           

15,999,157$        15,539,183$        16,209,223$        18,050,949$        18,611,901$        19,119,415$        19,335,358$        19,744,771$        20,356,806$        20,669,041$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

13,000,000           12,500,000           13,000,000           14,750,000           15,000,000           15,500,000           15,500,000           15,500,000           16,000,000           16,000,000           

13,450,000           12,950,000           13,450,000           15,200,000           15,450,000           15,950,000           15,950,000           15,950,000           16,450,000           16,450,000           

17,871,135$        17,370,382$        17,882,101$        19,644,101$        19,902,620$        20,407,720$        20,402,970$        20,415,215$        20,920,365$        20,930,015$        

2,549,157$           2,589,183$           2,759,223$           2,850,949$           3,161,901$           3,169,415$           3,385,358$           3,794,771$           3,906,806$           4,219,041$           

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-05-17 modified proposal 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/05/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2017 Issue {$19 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Research Parkway

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 3 of 5

2033 2034 2035 2036 2037 2038 2039 2040 2041 2042

51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60

731,969,985$          739,289,685$          746,682,582$          754,149,408$          761,690,902$          769,307,811$          777,000,889$          784,770,898$          792,618,607$          800,544,793$          

4,219,041$           4,232,799$           4,055,537$           4,594,235$           4,597,294$           4,823,108$           4,975,932$           4,851,896$           4,955,097$           4,787,809$           

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

4,219,041$           4,232,799$           4,055,537$           4,594,235$           4,597,294$           4,823,108$           4,975,932$           4,851,896$           4,955,097$           4,787,809$           

21,734,211           21,951,539           22,171,040           22,392,736           22,616,650           22,842,802           23,071,215           23,301,913           23,534,918           23,770,253           

(326,013)              (329,273)              (332,566)              (335,891)              (339,250)              (342,642)              (346,068)              (349,529)              (353,024)              (356,554)              

10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

21,454,198$        21,668,266$        21,884,474$        22,102,845$        22,323,400$        22,546,160$        22,771,147$        22,998,384$        23,227,894$        23,459,699$        

25,673,239$        25,901,064$        25,940,012$        26,697,080$        26,920,694$        27,369,268$        27,747,079$        27,850,280$        28,182,992$        28,247,508$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

2,092,913             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

1,454,750             1,452,750             1,453,000             1,455,250             1,454,250             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    1,200                    -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

3,548,863             1,453,950             1,454,200             1,456,450             1,454,250             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                

1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    

330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                330,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                

35,177                  35,177                  35,177                  36,936                  36,936                  36,936                  38,783                  38,783                  38,783                  40,722                  

941,577                941,577                941,577                943,336                943,336                943,336                945,183                945,183                945,183                947,122                

4,490,440$           2,395,527$           2,395,777$           2,399,786$           2,397,586$           943,336$              945,183$              945,183$              945,183$              947,122$              

21,182,799$        23,505,537$        23,544,235$        24,297,294$        24,523,108$        26,425,932$        26,801,896$        26,905,097$        27,237,809$        27,300,386$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

16,500,000           19,000,000           18,500,000           19,250,000           19,250,000           21,000,000           21,500,000           21,500,000           22,000,000           22,000,000           

16,950,000           19,450,000           18,950,000           19,700,000           19,700,000           21,450,000           21,950,000           21,950,000           22,450,000           22,450,000           

21,440,440$        21,845,527$        21,345,777$        22,099,786$        22,097,586$        22,393,336$        22,895,183$        22,895,183$        23,395,183$        23,397,122$        

4,232,799$           4,055,537$           4,594,235$           4,597,294$           4,823,108$           4,975,932$           4,851,896$           4,955,097$           4,787,809$           4,850,386$           

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-05-17 modified proposal 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/05/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2017 Issue {$19 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Research Parkway

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 4 of 5

2043 2044 2045 2046 2047 2048 2049 2050 2051 2052

61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70

808,550,241$          816,635,743$          824,802,101$          833,050,122$          841,380,623$          849,794,429$          858,292,373$          866,875,297$          875,544,050$          884,299,491$          

4,850,386$           5,183,512$           5,217,019$           5,450,771$           5,388,829$           5,533,234$           5,383,913$           5,445,088$           5,218,864$           5,205,121$           

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

4,850,386$           5,183,512$           5,217,019$           5,450,771$           5,388,829$           5,533,234$           5,383,913$           5,445,088$           5,218,864$           5,205,121$           

20,334,364           20,537,694           20,743,056           20,950,473           21,159,963           21,371,548           21,585,250           21,801,088           22,019,084           22,239,261           

(305,015)              (308,065)              (311,146)              (314,257)              (317,399)              (320,573)              (323,779)              (327,016)              (330,286)              (333,589)              

10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

20,075,349$        20,275,629$        20,477,910$        20,682,216$        20,888,564$        21,096,975$        21,307,471$        21,520,072$        21,734,798$        21,951,672$        

24,925,734$        25,459,141$        25,694,929$        26,132,987$        26,277,392$        26,630,209$        26,691,384$        26,965,160$        26,953,662$        27,156,793$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

175,100                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                

1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    

150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                

40,722                  40,722                  42,758                  42,758                  42,758                  44,896                  44,896                  44,896                  47,141                  47,141                  

792,222                792,122                794,158                794,158                794,158                796,296                796,296                796,296                798,541                798,541                

792,222$              792,122$              794,158$              794,158$              794,158$              796,296$              796,296$              796,296$              798,541$              798,541$              

24,133,512$        24,667,019$        24,900,771$        25,338,829$        25,483,234$        25,833,913$        25,895,088$        26,168,864$        26,155,121$        26,358,252$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

18,500,000           19,000,000           19,000,000           19,500,000           19,500,000           20,000,000           20,000,000           20,500,000           20,500,000           20,500,000           

18,950,000           19,450,000           19,450,000           19,950,000           19,950,000           20,450,000           20,450,000           20,950,000           20,950,000           20,950,000           

19,742,222$        20,242,122$        20,244,158$        20,744,158$        20,744,158$        21,246,296$        21,246,296$        21,746,296$        21,748,541$        21,748,541$        

5,183,512$           5,217,019$           5,450,771$           5,388,829$           5,533,234$           5,383,913$           5,445,088$           5,218,864$           5,205,121$           5,408,252$           

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-05-17 modified proposal 



City of Temple, Texas

TIF Reinvestment Zone #1 Financing Plan

Financing Plan - 04/05/17 to Zone Board

DESCRIPTION

1 "Taxable Increment"

1 FUND BALANCE, Begin

2     Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve

3    Fund Balance Available for Appropriation

SOURCES OF FUNDS:

4 Tax Revenues

6 Allowance for Uncollected Taxes [1.5% of Tax Revenues]

8 Interest Income-Other

10 Grant Funds

12 License Fee - Central Texas Railway

14 Other Revenues

17 Bond Proceeds

20    Total Sources of Funds

25 TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

USE OF FUNDS:

DEBT SERVICE

27 2009 Bond Refunding

28 2008 Bond Issue-Taxable {$10.365 mil}

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding}

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding}

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil}

32 Debt Service - 2017 Issue {$19 mil}

35 Paying Agent Services

40      Subtotal-Debt Service

OPERATING EXPENDITURES

50 Prof Svcs/Proj Mgmt

52 Legal/Audit

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies]

56 Rail Maintenance

58 Road/Signage Maintenance

60 Contractual Payments [TEDC - Marketing]

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract]

65      Subtotal-Operating Expenditures

70 TOTAL DEBT & OPERATING EXPENDITURES

80 Funds Available for Projects

PROJECTS

150 Temple Industrial Park

200 Corporate Campus Park

250 Bioscience Park

350 Research Parkway

400 Synergy Park

450 Downtown

500 TMED

550 Airport Park

610 Public Improvements

     Subtotal-Projects

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS

700 FUND BALANCE, End

Page 5 of 5

2053 2054 2055 2056 2057 2058 2059 2060 2061 2062

71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80

893,142,486$          902,073,910$          911,094,650$          920,205,596$          929,407,652$          938,701,729$          948,088,746$          957,569,633$          967,145,330$          976,816,783$          

5,408,252$           5,330,426$           5,471,475$           5,335,970$           5,426,145$           5,241,781$           5,287,634$           5,566,005$           5,576,621$           5,324,427$           

-                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

5,408,252$           5,330,426$           5,471,475$           5,335,970$           5,426,145$           5,241,781$           5,287,634$           5,566,005$           5,576,621$           5,324,427$           

22,461,639           22,686,241           22,913,089           23,142,206           23,373,614           23,607,336           23,843,395           24,081,814           24,322,618           24,565,830           

(336,925)              (340,294)              (343,696)              (347,133)              (350,604)              (354,110)              (357,651)              (361,227)              (364,839)              (368,487)              

10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  10,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  36,000                  

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

22,170,714$        22,391,947$        22,615,393$        22,841,073$        23,069,010$        23,299,226$        23,531,744$        23,766,587$        24,003,779$        24,243,343$        

27,578,967$        27,722,373$        28,086,868$        28,177,043$        28,495,154$        28,541,007$        28,819,378$        29,332,592$        29,580,399$        29,567,770$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                175,000                

1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    1,400                    

150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                150,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                100,000                

200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                200,000                

47,141                  49,498                  49,498                  49,498                  51,973                  51,973                  51,973                  54,572                  54,572                  54,572                  

798,541                800,898                800,898                800,898                803,373                803,373                803,373                805,972                805,972                805,972                

798,541$              800,898$              800,898$              800,898$              803,373$              803,373$              803,373$              805,972$              805,972$              805,972$              

26,780,426$        26,921,475$        27,285,970$        27,376,145$        27,691,781$        27,737,634$        28,016,005$        28,526,621$        28,774,427$        28,761,798$        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                450,000                

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

21,000,000           21,000,000           21,500,000           21,500,000           22,000,000           22,000,000           22,000,000           22,500,000           23,000,000           28,311,798           

21,450,000           21,450,000           21,950,000           21,950,000           22,450,000           22,450,000           22,450,000           22,950,000           23,450,000           28,761,798           

22,248,541$        22,250,898$        22,750,898$        22,750,898$        23,253,373$        23,253,373$        23,253,373$        23,755,972$        24,255,972$        29,567,770$        

5,330,426$           5,471,475$           5,335,970$           5,426,145$           5,241,781$           5,287,634$           5,566,005$           5,576,621$           5,324,427$           (0)$                        

FINANCING PLAN

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-05-17 modified proposal 



TIF Reinvestment Zone #1

Summary Financing Plan with Detailed Project Plan

Project Plan -  04/05/17 - to Zone Board 19,000,000$            

Bond Proceeds

Revised 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

1 Beginning Available Fund Balance, Oct 1 27,838,651$       3,988,025$              2,841,256$            5,576,198$           1,626,227$                 3,075,793$         

20 Total Sources of Funds 39,486,878         16,107,144              15,303,122            15,500,830           15,651,671                 16,317,253         

2 Adjustments to Debt Service Reserve -                               -                             -                           -                                 -                         

25 Net Available for Appropriation 67,325,529         20,095,169              18,144,378            21,077,028           17,277,898                 19,393,046         

50/52 General Administrative Expenditures 176,300              176,300                   176,300                 176,300                176,300                      176,400              

54 Zone Park Maintenance [mowing, utilities, botanical supplies] 330,000              330,000                   330,000                 330,000                330,000                      330,000              

56 Rail Maintenance 214,390              100,000                   100,000                 100,000                100,000                      100,000              

58 Road/Signage Maintenance 238,243              100,000                   100,000                 100,000                100,000                      100,000              

60 Contractual Payments (TEDC - Marketing) 200,000              200,000                   200,000                 200,000                200,000                      200,000              

62 TISD-Reimbursement [per contract] 26,250                27,563                     27,563                   27,563                  28,941                        28,941                

27 Debt Service - 2009 Issue {Refunding} 1,510,150           1,488,750                1,485,000              -                       -                             -                     

28 Debt Service - 2008 Taxable Issue {$10.365 mil} 1,240,096           1,241,957                1,241,173              1,237,744             1,241,670                   1,242,422           

29 Debt Service - 2011A Issue {Refunding} 912,200              908,350                   915,950                 2,497,800             2,497,550                   2,494,950           

30 Debt Service - 2012 Issue {Refunding} 76,400                79,600                     77,650                   80,050                  77,250                        78,750                

31 Debt Service - 2013 Issue {$25.260 mil} 2,034,894           2,047,694                2,048,344              2,047,944             2,046,494                   2,031,494           

32 Debt Service - 2017 Issue {$19 mil} 344,583              1,452,000                1,454,500              1,451,700             1,452,200                   1,452,100           

33 Paying Agent Services 1,700                  1,700                       1,700                     1,700                    1,700                          1,700                  

70 Total Debt & Operating Expenditures 7,305,206           8,153,914                8,158,180              8,250,801             8,252,105                   8,236,757           

80 Funds Available for Projects 60,020,323$       11,941,256$            9,986,198$            12,826,227$         9,025,793$                 11,156,289$       

Revised 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

TEMPLE INDUSTRIAL PARK:

101 Receiving & Delivery {R&D} Tracks 107,500              400,000                   -                         -                       -                             -                     

102 North Lucius McCelvey Extension 186,655              

108 31st Street Sidewalks Grant Match 52,354                -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

109 31st Street Sidewalks 350,000              -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

150      Total North Zone/Rail Park (including Enterprise Park) 696,509                 400,000                       -                             -                           -                                  -                         

CORPORATE CAMPUS PARK:

155 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Parkway 1,651,520           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

200      Total Corporate Campus Park 1,651,520              -                               -                             -                           -                                  -                         

BIOSCIENCE PARK:

207 Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail 3,814,692           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

207 Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail {bond funded} 1,000,000           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

250      Total Bio-Science Park 4,814,692              -                               -                             -                           -                                  -                         

RESEARCH PARKWAY

305 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) STAG grant 1,925,000           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

305 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) 2,202,056           1,000,000                -                         -                       -                             -                     

305 Research Pkwy (IH 35 to Wendland Ultimate) {bond funded} 12,500,000         -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

310 Research Pkwy (Wendland to McLane Pkwy) 1,081,176           -                               -                             -                           -                                  -                         

315 Research Pkwy (McLane Pkwy to Central Point Pkwy) 1,021,580           -                           -                             -                           -                                  -                         

320 Outer Loop (I35 South) 400,000              -                           -                             10,750,000              -                                  -                         

320 Outer Loop (I35 South) {bond funded} 2,100,000           -                           -                             -                           -                                  -                         

350      Total Research Parkway 21,229,812           1,000,000                   -                             10,750,000             -                                 -                        

SYNERGY PARK:

351 Lorraine Drive (Southeast Industrial Park) - [$1.5M total project cost] 13,975                -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

352 Entry Enhancement 487,726              -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

400      Total Synergy Park 501,701                 -                               -                             -                           -                                  -                         

DOWNTOWN:

401 Downtown Improvements {Transformation Team} 681,100              450,000                   450,000                 450,000                450,000                      450,000              

404 Santa Fe Plaza 8,039,332           1,500,000                -                         -                       -                             -                     

404 Santa Fe Plaza {bond funded} 1,900,000           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

406 Intersection Improvements at Central & North 4th Street -                     750,000                   -                         -                       -                             -                     

407 Santa Fe Market Trail 716,463              

407 Santa Fe Market Trail {bond funded} 1,500,000           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

408 MLK Festival Fields 50,000                -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

409 TISD-Obligation per Contract 5,000,000           5,000,000                -                         -                       -                             -                     

450      Total Downtown 17,886,895            7,700,000                    450,000                     450,000                   450,000                          450,000                 

TMED:

458 Loop 363 Frontage Rd (UPRR to 5th TIRZ portion) 182,935              -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

459 31st Street/Loop 363 Improvements/Monumentation 2,037,205           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

460 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st Street 2,884,670           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

461 TMED Master Plan (Health Care Campus) 20,150                -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

462 TMED Master Plan & Thoroughfare Plan 55,000                -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

464 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II 804,285              -                           3,960,000              -                       -                             -                     

465 1st Street @ Temple College Pedestrian Bridge -                     -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

466 South 1st Street 1,320,000           -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

500      Total TMED 7,304,245              -                               3,960,000                  -                           -                                  -                         

AIRPORT PARK:

507 Taxiway for Airport 63,700                -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

508 Corporate Hangar Phase II 263,224              -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

509 Airport RAMP Grant -                     -                           -                         -                       -                             -                     

510 Corporate Hangar 1,620,000           

550      Total Airport Park 1,946,924              -                               -                             -                           -                                  -                         

610 Public Improvements -                         -                               -                             -                           5,500,000                       7,000,000              

Total Planned Project Expenditures 56,032,298         9,100,000                4,410,000              11,200,000           5,950,000                   7,450,000           

700 Available Fund Balance at Year End 3,988,025$         2,841,256$              5,576,198$            1,626,227$           3,075,793$                 3,706,289$         

SUMMARY FINANCING PLAN

PROJECT PLAN

3/30/2017

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\!Financing & Project Plans\Financing & Project Plan 04-05-17 modified proposal



3/30/2017

SUMMARY TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2016 - 2022)

2013-2016 63,921,747$    FY2017-2022

Available for allocation 25,361,960$   19,374,500$   19,185,287$      12,464,306$  19,000,000$  7,953,231$      7,144,942$       7,250,029$             7,399,566$             8,080,496$             69,292,570$     

**2013 Bond Issue**  **See note** Bond Issue

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

Temple Industrial Park -$                 114,275$        7,222,395$     596,882$           -$               -$               400,000$         -$                  -$                       -$                       -$                       8,333,552$       

Corporate Campus Park 127,600           1,037,300       3,090,693       1,700,000          150,000         -                 -                   -                    -                         -                         -                         6,105,593         

Bioscience Park 245,000           1,505,000       -                 2,425,000          -                 1,000,000      -                   -                    -                         -                         -                         5,175,000         

Research Parkway 5,665,000        800,000          -                 2,925,000          400,000         14,600,000    1,000,000        -                    10,750,000             -                         -                         36,140,000       

Synergy Park -                   838,578          564,580          -                     -                 -                 -                   -                    -                         -                         -                         1,403,158         

Downtown 644,100           -                  2,389,450       4,655,400          9,550,000      3,400,000      7,700,000        450,000            450,000                  450,000                  450,000                  30,138,950       

TMED 948,738           7,975,000       5,911,540       4,005,000          1,320,000      -                 -                   3,960,000         -                         -                         -                         24,120,278       

Airport Park 170,000           1,150,000       2,186,497       465,000             1,620,000      -                 -                   -                    -                         -                         -                         5,591,497         

Public Improvements -                   -                  -                 -                     -                 -                 -                   -                    -                         5,500,000               7,000,000               12,500,000       
 MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING 7,800,438$      13,420,153$   21,365,155$   16,772,282$      13,040,000$  19,000,000$  9,100,000$      4,410,000$       11,200,000$           5,950,000$             7,450,000$             129,508,028$   

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

Favorable (Unfavorable) Balance 4,141,369$     (1,990,655)$   2,413,005$        (575,694)$      -$                   (1,146,769)$     2,734,942$       (3,949,971)$           1,449,566$             630,496$                3,706,289$       

Cumulative Favorable (Unfavorable) 4,141,369$     2,150,714$     4,563,719$        3,988,025$    3,988,025$    2,841,256$      5,576,198$       1,626,227$             3,075,793$             3,706,289$             

**Note**:  The amounts shown in FY 2017 for projects will not be the same as in the Financing Plan.  The Financing Plan is a cumulative amount that includes previous 

years allocations. The cumulative balance available at the end of FY 2017 of $3,988,025 balances to Line 700 of the Financing Plan.

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\January 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) March 2017 modified proposal 1



3/30/2017

 TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2016 - 2022)

2013-2016 63,921,747$     FY 2017-2022

Available for allocation 25,361,960$      19,374,500$      19,185,287$      12,464,306$   19,000,000$   7,953,231$       7,144,942$       7,250,029$      7,399,566$     8,080,496$     69,292,570$    

Temple Industrial Park **2013 Bond Issue**  Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

1 North Lucius McCelvey Ext. (1/2) Design -                             114,275             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  114,275           

2 North Lucius McCelvey Ext. (1/2) Construction -                             -                     2,150,491          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  2,150,491        

3 Northern Y Design 78,400               -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   78,400             

4 Northern Y Construction -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                   

5 Receiving & Delivery Tracks Preliminary Design 124,400             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   124,400           

6 Receiving & Delivery Tracks ROW -                     -                  -                  400,000            -                    -                   400,000           

7 Pepper Creek Main Stem Regional Detention Pond Construction -                             -                     1,041,129          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,041,129        

8 Property Acquisition -                             -                     4,000,000          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  4,000,000        

9 N 31st Street Sidewalks Grant Match -                             -                     30,775               44,082               -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  74,857             

10 N 31st Street Sidewalks Construction -                             -                     -                     350,000             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  350,000           

11 Berger Road Improvements -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                   

SUBTOTAL -                             114,275             7,222,395          596,882             -                  -                  400,000            -                    -                   -                  -                  8,333,552        

Corporate Campus Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

12 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Prkwy Design 93,700                       256,300             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  350,000           

13 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Prkwy ROW 33,900                       -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  33,900             

14 Pepper Creek Trail Hwy 36 to McLane Prkwy Construction -                             71,000               -                     1,700,000          150,000          -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,921,000        

15 McLane Prkwy/Research Pkwy Connection Design -                             710,000             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  710,000           

16 McLane Prkwy/Research Pkwy Connection Construction -                             -                     3,090,693          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  3,090,693        

SUBTOTAL 127,600                     1,037,300          3,090,693          1,700,000          150,000          -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  6,105,593        

Bioscience Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

17 Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail Design 245,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  245,000           

18 Cross Roads Park @ Pepper Creek Trail Construction -                             1,505,000          -                     2,425,000          -                  1,000,000       -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  4,930,000        

SUBTOTAL 245,000                     1,505,000          -                     2,425,000          -                  1,000,000       -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  5,175,000        

Research Parkway Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

19 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Design 1,610,000                  -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,610,000        

20 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland Ultimate) ROW 301,364                     -                     -                     1,000,000          -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,301,364        

21 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Grant {Little Elm Sewer} 793,636                     -                     -                     1,925,000          -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  2,718,636        

22 Research Pkwy (IH35 to Wendland At Grade) Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  12,500,000     1,000,000         -                    -                   -                  -                  13,500,000      

23 Research Pkwy (Wendland to McLane Prkwy) Design 960,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  960,000           

24 Research Pkwy (Wendland to McLane Prkwy) ROW 1,300,000                  -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,300,000        

25 Research Pkwy (Wendland to McLane Prkwy) Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

26 Research Pkwy (McLane Pkwy to Cen Pt Pkwy) Design 700,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  700,000           

27 Research Pkwy (McLane Pkwy to Cen Pt Pkwy) ROW -                             800,000             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  800,000           

28 Research Pkwy (McLane Pkwy to Cen Pt Pkwy) Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

29 Outer Loop (I35 South) Design -                             -                     -                     -                     400,000          800,000          -                    -                    750,000           -                  -                  1,950,000        

30 Outer Loop (I35 South) ROW -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  1,300,000       -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,300,000        

31 Outer Loop (I35 South) Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    10,000,000      -                  -                  10,000,000      

SUBTOTAL 5,665,000                  800,000             -                     2,925,000          400,000          14,600,000     1,000,000         -                    10,750,000      -                  -                  36,140,000      

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\January 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) March 2017 modified proposal 1



3/30/2017

 TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2016 - 2022)

Synergy Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

32 Entry Enhancement Design -                             75,000               -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  75,000             

33 Entry Enhancement Constr -                             425,000             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  425,000           

34 Lorraine Drive/Panda Drive Service Road Design -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

35 Lorraine Drive/Panda Drive Service Road Construction -                             338,578             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  338,578           

36 Lorraine Drive/Panda Drive {Panda Commitment} -                             -                     564,580             -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  564,580           

SUBTOTAL -                             838,578             564,580             -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,403,158        

Downtown **2013 Bond Issue**  Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

37 Santa Fe Plaza Design 538,600                     -                     76,400               261,400             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  876,400           

38 Santa Fe Plaza ROW -                             -                     1,750,000          1,600,000          500,000          -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  3,850,000        

39 Santa Fe Plaza Construction -                             -                     -                     1,100,000          3,600,000       1,900,000       1,500,000         -                    -                   -                  -                  8,100,000        

40 Downtown Master Plan ROW -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

41 Downtown Master Plan 105,500                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  105,500           

42 TISD-Obligation per Contract -                             -                     -                     -                     5,000,000       -                  5,000,000         -                    -                   -                  -                  10,000,000      

43 Intersection improvements at Central and N. 4th Street -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  750,000            -                    -                   -                  -                  750,000           

44 Santa Fe Market Trail Design -                             -                     190,000             -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  190,000           

45 Santa Fe Market Trail ROW -                             -                     -                     1,500,000          -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,500,000        

46 Santa Fe Market Trail Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  1,500,000       -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  1,500,000        

47 MLK Festival Fields Design -                             -                     -                     35,600               -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   35,600             

48 MLK Festival Fields Construction -                             -                     -                     14,400               -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   14,400             

49 Downtown Transformation Team -                             -                     373,050             144,000             450,000          -                  450,000            450,000            450,000           450,000          450,000          3,217,050        

50 1st Street from Avenue B to Central Avenue Design -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

51 1st Street from Avenue B to Central Avenue ROW -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

52 1st Street from Avenue B to Central Avenue Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

53 North General Bruce Drive Enhancements Study -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                   

SUBTOTAL 644,100                     -                     2,389,450          4,655,400          9,550,000       3,400,000       7,700,000         450,000            450,000           450,000          450,000          30,138,950      

TMED Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

54 Loop 363 FR  (UPRR to 5th TRZ Portion) Design 330,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  330,000           

55 Loop 363 FR  (UPRR to 5th TRZ Portion) ROW 120,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  120,000           

56 Loop 363 FR  (UPRR to 5th TRZ Portion) Construction -                             6,000,000          -                     300,000             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  6,300,000        

57 31st Street/Loop 363 Improvements/Monumentation Design 70,000                       -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  70,000             

58 31 Street/Loop 363 Improvements/Monumentation Construction -                             450,000             1,650,000          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  2,100,000        

59 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st Design 175,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  175,000           

60 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st ROW -                             1,100,000          1,125,000          180,000             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  2,405,000        

61 Ave U TMED Ave. to 1st Construction -                             -                     250,000             2,600,000          -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  2,850,000        

62 TMED Master Plan (Health Care Campus) Design 123,738                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  123,738           

63 TMED Master Plan &Thoroughfare Plan * Design 55,000                       -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  55,000             

64 Friars Creek Trail to Ave. R Trail Design 75,000                       -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  75,000             

65 Friars Creek Trail to Ave. R Trail Construction -                             425,000             36,558               -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  461,558           

66 1st Street @ Temple College Pedestrian Bridge -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

67 Friars Creek Trail Amphitheater -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

68 Ave R Intersections Construction -                             -                     2,849,982          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  2,849,982        

69 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II Design -                             -                     -                     675,000             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  675,000           

70 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II ROW -                             -                     -                     250,000             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  250,000           

71 Veteran's Memorial Blvd. Phase II Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    3,960,000         -                   -                  -                  3,960,000        

72 TMED South 1st Street Design -                             -                     -                     -                     120,000          -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  120,000           

73 TMED South 1st Street Construction -                             -                     -                     -                     1,200,000       -                  -                    -                    -                   1,200,000        

74 Bond Contingency -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  -                   

SUBTOTAL 948,738                     7,975,000          5,911,540          4,005,000          1,320,000       -                  -                    3,960,000         -                   -                  -                  24,120,278      

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\January 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) March 2017 modified proposal 2



3/30/2017

 TRZ MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING (2016 - 2022)

Airport Park Bond Issue

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

75 Airport Enhancement Projects Design 170,000                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  170,000           

76 Airport Enhancement Projects Construction -                             1,150,000          2,186,497          -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  3,336,497        

77 Taxiway for Airport {60 ft width} -                             -                     -                     90,000               -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  90,000             

78 Corporate Hangar Phase II -                             -                     -                     375,000             -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  375,000           

79 Corporate Hangar -                             -                     -                     -                     1,620,000       -                  -                    -                    -                   1,620,000        

80 Airport RAMP Grant -                             -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   -                   

SUBTOTAL 170,000                     1,150,000          2,186,497          465,000             1,620,000       -                  -                    -                    -                   -                  -                  5,591,497        

Public Improvements

Line # Project Description 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

81 Public Improvements -                             -                     -                     -                     -                  -                  -                    -                    -                   5,500,000       7,000,000       12,500,000      

 MASTER PLAN PROJECT FUNDING 7,800,438$                13,420,153$      21,365,155$      16,772,282$      13,040,000$   19,000,000$   9,100,000$       4,410,000$       11,200,000$    5,950,000$     7,450,000$     129,508,028$  

Bond Issue

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 TOTAL

Favorable (Unfavorable) Balance 4,141,369          (1,990,655)         2,413,005          (575,694)         -                  (1,146,769)        2,734,942         (3,949,971)      1,449,566       630,496          3,706,289        

Cumulative Favorable (Unfavorable) 4,141,369          2,150,714          4,563,719          3,988,025       3,988,025       2,841,256         5,576,198         1,626,227        3,075,793       3,706,289       

G:\Traci's Files\RZ # 1 (TIF)\Finance Committee\January 2017\Master Plan  Project  Funding Schedule (2017-2022) March 2017 modified proposal 3



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO.     

(Z-FY-17-20) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMILY THREE, GENERAL RETAIL, AND OFFICE 
TWO ZONING DISTRICTS ON APPROXIMATELY 81.173 ACRES SITUATED 
IN THE B. STRACENER SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 746, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, LOCATED AT 3131 LOWER TROY ROAD; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

Single Family Three, General Retail, and Office Two zoning districts on approximately 
81.173 acres, situated in the B. Stracener Survey, Abstract No. 746, Bell County, Texas, 
located at 3131 Lower Troy Road, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ 
and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district 

to Single Family Three, General Retail, and Office Two zoning districts.  
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 6th day of 

April, 2017. 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 20th day of April, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
04/06/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: I-FY-17-02 – Consider adopting a resolution approving an appeal of standards 
to Sec. 6.7 of the Unified Development Code related to I-35 Corridor Overlay Zoning District in Freeway 
Retail/Commercial Sub District requirements for landscaping, lighting and architecture for a 
redeveloped car dealership (new Garlyn Shelton BMW) at 5420 Midway Drive. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their March 20, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously, six to zero, to recommend approval of the appeal 
as presented by staff. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the appeal as submitted based on the 
following reason: 

• Applicant has been working closely with staff to develop a compromise that would meet the 
needs of the corporate requirements from BMW, while also meeting the intent of the I-35 Corridor 
Overlay to beautify the corridor. The proposed development represents a substantial 
improvement using I-35 Overlay architectural and landscape standards when applied to the 
redevelopment of the current auto dealership site. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: Applicant is redeveloping an existing car dealership (Garlyn Shelton Nissan) through 
showroom demolition and new construction into a new BMW dealership. Due to corporate BMW 
mandated building design requirements, an appeal is requested for a number of the I-35 Corridor 
Overlay requirements shown below (justification shown in parentheses).  
 

1. Sec. 6.7.5.E.1 Total of 15 percent of total site must be landscaped, must consist of approved 
plants covering 100 percent of required landscaped area (Landscaping on site equals 13%, with 
additional TXDOT right of way landscaped and irrigated totaling 6% for total of 19%) 

2. Sec. 6.7.5.E.6: Foundation plantings are required along 70% of length of façade (Project meets 
the intent but the proposed landscaping is buffering the perimeter, rather than the foundation to 
allow maximum showroom visibility) 

3. Sec. 6.7.5.E.8.d: Minimum 60 percent of required trees must be evergreen (Proposed crepe 
myrtles) 

4. Sec. 6.7.5.E.8.e: A minimum 20 percent of required landscape buffer must have native grass 
beds or wildflowers (Propose to use river rock instead) 

 



04/06/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
5. Sec. 6.7.5.E.8.f: Two to four-foot berms need to cover a minimum of 50% of landscape buffer 

area (would limit visibility of their inventory) 
6. Sec. 6.7.5.E.9.a: Parking or vehicle use area must be screened by shrubs, berms or walls or a 

combination thereof (partial compliance for purposes of vehicle display) 
7. Sec. 6.7.5.K.2.a: Maximum allowable total lumens required 80,000 per net acre (partial 

compliance with full cut off lumens proposed) 
8. Sec. 6.7.9.D.2.c: Building entrances must be articulated and defined for strong entry presence, 

offset by 6 feet (request BMW corporate mandated building design) 
9. Sec. 6.7.9.D.2.d: Architecture: tri-partite design/defined base, middle and top required (does not 

comply with BMW mandated corporate design of mostly glass showroom) 
10. Sec. 6.7.9.D.2.f: Windows must be a minimum of 40% up to a maximum of 80% windows on 

each building elevation (request for BMW corporate mandated building design) 
11. Sec. 6.7.9.D.3.b: Structures must be generally earth tone in hue (request BMW corporate design 

of white) 
12. Sec. 6.7.9.D.3.d: No single building material may cover more than 80 percent of the front of any 

building (request BMW mandated corporate design) 
13. Sec. 6.7.9.E.2: Parking Lot Islands for Vehicle Sales: evergreen shrubs (5-gallon minimum) must 

completely fill the island area (partial compliance, proposed to include mulch for several)  
 

The proposal complies with the following standards: 
• Locating service bays to the side or rear (not visible from roadway) 
• Side and rear landscaping buffer requirements 
• All luminaires (lights) must be full cut-off (to prevent light trespass) 
• Areas not covered by building or pavement are landscaped (river rock included) 

 
I-35 Corridor Overlay code amendments scheduled for review by P&Z on April 17th would make a 
number of the exceptions requested above, compliant. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Application  
I-35 Corridor Overlay Checklist 
Landscape Plan 
Elevations 
Vicinity Aerial Map 
BMW Building Examples and Photos 
Resolution 
 



City of Tempie Universal Appiication

(/nぐOmp/ete opp/icαtion5 WiIl not be o``epted)

□ sketch PIan

□ pIatVacation

□ MinororAmendingPIat

□ preIiminary Piat

□ FinaI Plat

ロvariance (Boa「d of Adjustment)

口Abandonment

□ Rezoning

□ conditional Use Permit (CUP)

□ pianned DeveIopment (PD)

□ pDSitePian

塩I-35 Appeai

口I-35Site Plan Review

□ TMEDSite PIan Review

口TMED Variances/Warrants

βev.ユ0-20一重6

□ Appeal of Administrative Decision

口Residential Masonry Exception

口Nonresidentiai Masonry Exception

口Park, Fac冊ty orSt「eet Renaming

□ cost sharing Offsite Pa巾cipation

口Exception

□ st「eet use License (SUし)

1St and 3rd ove「IayAppeal

口ResidentiaI　　　函commercial　　　□　property pIatted　　　口Property Not Piatted　　口調

Project Address (しocation):

S) Tax ID# (Requi「ed):

7ク弓`容

OutbIock (if not platted):

SIide榊

Proposed Zoning

APPしICANT / CONTACT INFORMATION: /This wiI/ be the p′imo′y `OntOCt; P/eose ensu′e emαiI odd′e簿応

雲tY玉叶‾Add,。SS: l0Zラ　⊂2n

霊議書豊島茜蕎
之写 量産害

竺:坤?!ケ容色?P’　闘:皇室年アブg・勧77●

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATiON:

口DEVEしOPER　□ ENGINEER　□ suRVEYOR INFORMATION:  /P/eoseensu′eemi/oddress is leg肋e)





PLANNING DEPARTMENT CHECKLIST I-35 OVERLAY PROJECTS 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Address    ________________________________  Frontage  ft.        Building ______  sq.ft. 

Proposed Use __ Sub-District FREEWAY RETAIL  

 Planned Development  Conditional Use Permit   General  

 
 

I-35 Requirements 
Freeway Retail/Commercial 

Sub-District 
Current Status 

Standard  
Met 

Mitigation/ 
Rationale/ Staff 

Comment 
Site Plan Review (General) 

Required 

Tree Preservation (General) 

Required    

Dimensional and Use  Requirements 

Is the use allowed in the district?    
Does the Project meet dimensional 
requirements 

  
 

Parking (General) 

    
Curb and gutter, 6” in height,  required 
around perimeter and all parking 
islands. 

  
 

Parking aisles must be designed to be 
perpendicular to the front of the 
building. 

  
 

Parking areas must be planned so that 
vehicles are not required to back out of 
parking spaces directly into a public or 
private street 

  

 

Parking lots must be designed to 
preserve the maximum amount of 
existing trees on site as possible 

  
 

Parking spaces that face/adjacent to a 
building must utilize wheel stops  

   

Wheel stops are required adjacent to all 
landscaped areas  
Wheel stops are required adjacent to all 
sidewalks, except for raised sidewalks 
at least 6 feet in width (8 feet if parking 
spaces front both sides)  

   

No parking is allowed in the landscape 
buffer 

   

Required parking ratios- UDC 7.4.4 
  

 

Screening and Wall Standards 

No storage in connexes, shipping 
containers or portable buildings 

   

Garage and service bays must be 
located to rear of building or on side 
not visible to traffic flow on abutting 
side of I-35. If visible to on-coming 

   



I-35 Requirements 
Freeway Retail/Commercial 

Sub-District 
Current Status 

Standard  
Met 

Mitigation/ 
Rationale/ Staff 

Comment 
traffic flow, service bays must be 
screened by a matching masonry wing 
wall or an opaque landscape screen – 
with3” caliper trees and 5 gal. shrubs.  

Loading zones and mechanical 
equipment must not be clearly visible 
at eye level from any public street or 
located within 100’ of any public street, 
unless screen is provided. 

   

Public utility stations must be screened 
with a masonry wall 

   

A min. 6’ matching masonry wall must 
be constructed between non-
residential/multi-family use and 
residential use or zoning district. 

   

Refuse storage/compacters/vehicle 
loading and unloading must not be 
clearly visible at eye level from any 
public street or located within 100’ of 
any public street. Vehicle loading and 
unloading zones must not be visible 
and screened with matching solid 
masonry wall earthen berms or 6’ 
opaque landscaping. Refuse must be 
enclosed on three sides in solid wall of 
wood or masonry to match building 
with  eight foot self closing gate. 

   

All ground mounted service equipment 
must be located at the rear of buildings 
(unless rear faces I-35), integrated into 
the building envelope, or enclosed 
service area. If visible, must have 100% 
opaque screening one foot higher than 
equipment being screened. 

   

Landscaping 

Areas not covered by building or 
pavement must be landscaped 

   

Landscape Area 15% (Irrigated)    

Drainage facilities are not allowed in 
the landscape areas 

   

Vegetation must be used to soften the 
appearance of walls – min 5 gal.shrubs 
planted every 30“ on center.  

   

Foundation plantings, within a planting 
area min 6’ in width, required along 
70% of the length of any visible façade.  

   



I-35 Requirements 
Freeway Retail/Commercial 

Sub-District 
Current Status 

Standard  
Met 

Mitigation/ 
Rationale/ Staff 

Comment 
Landscape buffer- One min. 3” caliper 
canopy tree must be planted for every 
30’ of frontage along public ROW. If 
power lines are present four 
ornamental trees may be substituted 
for one canopy tree 

  

 

Required landscape buffer trees must 
be planted in clusters not intervals 

   

Required landscape buffer must have a 
minimum of 60% evergreen trees  

   

20% Required landscape buffer must 
have native grass beds or wildflowers 

   

Landscape buffer berms not less than 
24 inches covering 50% of landscape 
buffer area  

   

Parking lot, fuel pumps, and vehicle 
drive-thru window must be  screened 
by hedge row 2.5 to 4’ high for all 
parking areas visible from public view 

   

Meandering sidewalk required if Trails 
Master Plan identifies one adjacent in 
accordance with city sidewalks 
standards for classification 

  

 

Interior parking islands 1 per every 10 
spaces minimum 170 sq ft (1 3” tree 
required in each) 

  
 

Terminal parking islands at the end of 
each row minimum 360 sq ft (2- 3” 
caliper  tree required in each)(non-
inventory).  

   

Median islands minimum 10’ in width 
must be located after every third 
parking bay ( 3” tree required every 30’) 

   

Landscape must be drought tolerant 
and accent building features, 
entryways, and driveways. 

   

Landscaping (Vehicle Sales) 

Parking lot islands must be located at 
the end of inventory aisles, span the 
aisle (both sides)  (minimum depth of 
ten feet)  

  

 

Evergreen shrubs –minimum 5 gallon – 
must completely fill island 

   

Architectural 

Development must be sited as to 
maximize street presence. 

  
 

Location and placement of buildings 
must reflect consideration for roadway 

  
 



I-35 Requirements 
Freeway Retail/Commercial 

Sub-District 
Current Status 

Standard  
Met 

Mitigation/ 
Rationale/ Staff 

Comment 
access, existing vegetation and 
surrounding development. 

Must 2:1 slope from residential 
property line if building is non-
residential 

  
 

All buildings must be architecturally 
finished on all sides with same 
materials, detailing and features. 
Facades not visible from the street may 
reflect only similar colors if screened 
with single row of trees- 30’ offset; 50% 
canopy; 10 foot landscape edge.  

  

 

Building entrances must be articulated 
and defined to present a strong entry 
presence. Must be inset or offset by 
min 6’. 

  

 

All buildings must incorporate no less 
than 3 architectural elements > 50,000 
must incorporate 5 elements 

  
 

All buildings must be designed and 
constructed in tri-partite architecture.  

  
 

All retail buildings with facades greater 
than 200’ must incorporate wall plane 
projections or recesses that are at least 
6’ deep. Projections and recesses must 
be at least 25 percent of length of the 
façade. 

  

 

Windows must be a minimum of 40%  
up to a maximum of 80% or each 
building elevation.  

  
 

Color of structures must be earth-tone 
in hue. 

  
 

No more than three materials for 
facades of buildings 

  
 

No single building material may cover 
more than 80% of the front of any 
building.  

  
 

Windows must not be glazed or re-
glazed with mirrored or reflective glass. 

  
 

Vandal resistant building components 
must be incorporated. 

  
 

Approved primary and accent building 
materials must be from the approved 
building materials list. Primary 
materials 70%-90% ; Accent 10%-30% 

  

 

Lighting 

All luminaries of 1800 or more lumens 
must be full-cutoff as installed. (For 
luminaries under 1800 the bulb must be 

  
 



I-35 Requirements 
Freeway Retail/Commercial 

Sub-District 
Current Status 

Standard  
Met 

Mitigation/ 
Rationale/ Staff 

Comment 
frosted glass or behind translucent 
cover 

Exterior lighting must have soft indirect 
illuminations concealed behind 
landscape or utilize lighting fixtures 
that produce no direct glare. 

 
 

 

On-site lighting must be used for 
entries, walkways, and parking areas. 
Down wall washing only. No flood 
lighting. 

 
 

 

Security lighting must be used to avoid 
glare and must direct  light toward 
building or storage. 

 
 

 

Max 80 lumens per net acre with full 
cut-off lighting 

 
 

 

Lights mounted on underside of roof 
15’ or more from any roof edge count ½ 
toward total lumens. 

 
 

 

Lighting  must be focused and promote 
safety. 

 
 

 

Outdoor lighting fixtures must be max 
30’ in height/ 

 
 

 

No blinking, flashing, moving, or 
mercury vapor lighting allowed. 

 
 

 

 



Revisions

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 S
TA

TU
S

LS1.1

G
A

R
LY

N
 S

H
EL

TO
N

B
M

W
N

EW
 S

IT
E 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T

SI
TE

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 P

LA
N

PLANT SCHEDULE





B

D

D

F

E E E

B

E

A A

SCALE: 1/8" = 1' - 0"

SOUTH (FRONT) ELEVATION

1

KEYED NOTES - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

SCALE: 1/8" = 1' - 0"

NORTH (BACK) ELEVATION

2

SCALE: 1/8" = 1' - 0"

EAST ELEVATION

3

SCALE: 1/8" = 1' - 0"

WEST ELEVATION

4

Issued for Permit

and Construction

Larry Neal

Lic. No. 12539

11/10/16



 



Examples of BMW Corporate Design Nationwide 

 Kansas City  

California 

Grapevine, Texas 

Texas 



 

 

New York City 
CityCity 

Santa Clara 
CityCity 



 

 

View of previous dealership  
from I-35 Frontage Rd 

View of previous dealership 
from Midway  Rd 
 Rd 



1 
 

  
RESOLUTION NO.     

[PLANNING NO. I-FY-17-02] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AN APPEAL OF STANDARDS TO SECTION 6.7 OF THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE RELATED TO I-35 CORRIDOR OVERLAY 
ZONING DISTRICT IN FREEWAY RETAIL/COMMERCIAL SUB DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS FOR LANDSCAPING, LIGHTING, AND ARCHITECTURE 
FOR A REDEVELOPED CAR DEALERSHIP AT 5420 MIDWAY DRIVE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, the applicant is redeveloping an existing car dealership (Garlyn Shelton Nissan) 
through showroom demolition and new construction into a new BMW dealership - due to corporate 
BMW mandated building design requirements, an appeal is requested for a number of the I-35 
Corridor Overlay requirements outlined below: 

 
1. Sec. 6.7.5.E.1: A total of 15% of the total site must be landscaped and must consist of 

approved plants covering 100% of required landscaped area; 
2. Sec. 6.7.5.E.6: Foundation plantings are required along 70% of length of façade; 
3. Sec. 6.7.5.E.8.d: A minimum of 60% of required trees must be evergreen; 
4. Sec. 6.7.5.E.8.e: A minimum of 20% of required landscape buffer must have native 

grass beds or wildflowers; 
5. Sec. 6.7.5.E.8.f: Two to four-foot berms need to cover a minimum of 50% of landscape 

buffer area; 
6. Sec. 6.7.5.E.9.a: Parking or vehicle use area must be screened by shrubs, berms or walls 

or a combination thereof; 
7. Sec. 6.7.5.K.2.a: Maximum allowable total lumens required 80,000 per net acre; 
8. Sec. 6.7.9.D.2.c: Building entrances must be articulated and defined for strong entry 

presence, offset by 6 feet; 
9. Sec. 6.7.9.D.2.d: Architecture: tri-partite design/defined base, middle and top required; 
10. Sec. 6.7.9.D.2.f: Windows must be a minimum of 40% up to a maximum of 80% 

windows on each building elevation; 
11. Sec. 6.7.9.D.3.b: Structures must be generally earth tone in hue; 
12. Sec. 6.7.9.D.3.d: No single building material may cover more than 80 percent of the 

front of any building; 
13. Sec. 6.7.9.E.2: Parking Lot Islands for Vehicle Sales: evergreen shrubs;  

 
 Whereas, at its March 20, 2017 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
considered the appeal and approved the appeal as presented by Staff; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

approve this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2: The City Council approves an appeal of standards to Section 6.7 of the Unified 
Development Code related to I-35 Corridor Overlay Zoning District in Freeway Retail/Commercial 
Sub District requirements for landscaping, lighting and architecture, as set forth in more detail 
above, for a redeveloped car dealership (new Garlyn Shelton BMW) at 5420 Midway Drive. 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 6th day of April, 2017. 

  
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
               
        DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of four properties necessary for the construction of the proposed Santa Fe Market Trail/MLK Fields festival grounds and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchases...
	Staff is seeking authorization to complete the purchase of the following properties and pay necessary closing costs, in an estimated amount of $105,000, payment of relocation benefits in the estimated amount of $32,000, as well as releasing approximat...
	204 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #27862)
	208 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #98288)
	214 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #126317)
	220 South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive (Bell CAD ID #12648).
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 11 vehicles from various vendors, in the amount of $274,380.17:
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a First Amendment to the Development Agreement between the City of Temple and John Earl Fielding to allow a subdivision of property without requiring voluntary annexation.
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution suspending the April 21, 2017 effective date of Oncor Electric Delivery Company’s requested rate change and approving cooperation with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor to hire legal an...
	UITEM DESCRIPTIONU: Consider adopting a resolution appointing Brynn Myers as the interim City Manager and setting compensation for the position.
	04/06/17
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	ATTACHMENTS:
	UDEPARTMENT / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan. A summary table of the CP compliance is located the attachments: Comprehensive Plan ...
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 3
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 3
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	Item #7
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 3
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	04/06/17
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner
	04/06/17
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	04/06/17
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	04/06/17
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing amendments the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing and Project Plans to align with the 2022 Master Plan for years FY 2017-2019.
	Emergency Generator at City Hall - BA -council approval.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Microsoft -Budget Adjustment Form.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Summit Fitness Center -Budget Adjustment - Drainage and Legal Renovation #2.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Summit Fitness Center -Budget Adjustment - Drainage and Legal Renovation #2.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	I-FY-17-02 Combined Attachments.pdf
	1 Application
	img002
	bav

	2 Checklist ih 35 requirements reply
	3 1666 LANDSCAPING plan 3-7-17
	4 elevation
	5 elevations BMW Source 10-12-16-A4.1REV
	6 Area Map
	7 Combined Examples of Corporate Design
	Examples of BMW Corporate Design Nationwide
	Examples of BMW Corporate Design Nationwide2

	8 VIews of Previous Nissan Dealership


	Building: 22,910
	Planned Development: Off
	Conditional Use Permit: Off
	General: On
	Standard Met: 
	Required: 
	Required_2: 
	Parking GeneralRow1_4: 
	Is the use allowed in the district: 
	Does the Project meet dimensional requirements: 
	Parking GeneralRow1_2: 
	Parking GeneralRow1_3: 
	Parking GeneralRow1: 
	Curb and gutter 6 in height required around perimeter and all parking islands: 
	Parking aisles must be designed to be perpendicular to the front of the building: 
	Parking areas must be planned so that vehicles are not required to back out of parking spaces directly into a public or private street: 
	Parking lots must be designed to preserve the maximum amount of existing trees on site as possible: 
	Wheel stops are required adjacent to all landscaped areas Wheel stops are required adjacent to all sidewalks except for raised sidewalks at least 6 feet in width 8 feet if parking spaces front both sides: Wheel stops needed
	Parking spaces that faceadjacent to a building must utilize wheel stops: Wheel stops needed
	No parking is allowed in the landscape buffer: 
	Required parking ratiosUDC 744: 
	No storage in connexes shipping containers or portable buildings: 
	Garage and service bays must be located to rear of building or on side not visible to traffic flow on abutting side of I35 If visible to oncoming: 
	Text1: 5420 Midway
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: Met
	Text9: 
	Text10: met
	Text11: Yes
	Text12: 
	Text13: Met
	Text14: N/A
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: will provide
	Text18: 
	Text19: will provide
	Text20: met
	Text21: 
	Text22: met
	Text23: 
	Text24: met
	Text25: 
	Text26: Garage is on right side of building which is screened from I35
	Text27: 
	Text48: 600'
	Standard Mettraffic flow service bays must be screened by a matching masonry wing wall or an opaque landscape screen  with3 caliper trees and 5 gal shrubs: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff Comment min 6 matching masonry wall must be constructed between non residentialmultifamily use and residential use or zoning district: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentPublic utility stations must be screened with a masonry wall: 
	Standard MetPublic utility stations must be screened with a masonry wall: met
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentLoading zones and mechanical equipment must not be clearly visible at eye level from any public street or located within 100 of any public street unless screen is provided: 
	Standard MetLoading zones and mechanical equipment must not be clearly visible at eye level from any public street or located within 100 of any public street unless screen is provided: n/a
	Mitigation Rationale Staff Commenttraffic flow service bays must be screened by a matching masonry wing wall or an opaque landscape screen  with3 caliper trees and 5 gal shrubs: 
	Current Statustraffic flow service bays must be screened by a matching masonry wing wall or an opaque landscape screen  with3 caliper trees and 5 gal shrubs: 
	Standard Met min 6 matching masonry wall must be constructed between non residentialmultifamily use and residential use or zoning district: n/a
	Current StatusLoading zones and mechanical equipment must not be clearly visible at eye level from any public street or located within 100 of any public street unless screen is provided: 
	Current StatusPublic utility stations must be screened with a masonry wall: 
	Current Status min 6 matching masonry wall must be constructed between non residentialmultifamily use and residential use or zoning district: 
	Current StatusRefuse storagecompactersvehicle loading and unloading must not be clearly visible at eye level from any public street or located within 100 of any public street Vehicle loading and unloading zones must not be visible and screened with matching solid masonry wall earthen berms or 6 opaque landscaping Refuse must be enclosed on three sides in solid wall of wood or masonry to match building with  eight foot self closing gate: did not see refuse location on site plan.  Need to confirm that one will not be utilized
	Standard MetRefuse storagecompactersvehicle loading and unloading must not be clearly visible at eye level from any public street or located within 100 of any public street Vehicle loading and unloading zones must not be visible and screened with matching solid masonry wall earthen berms or 6 opaque landscaping Refuse must be enclosed on three sides in solid wall of wood or masonry to match building with  eight foot self closing gate: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentRefuse storagecompactersvehicle loading and unloading must not be clearly visible at eye level from any public street or located within 100 of any public street Vehicle loading and unloading zones must not be visible and screened with matching solid masonry wall earthen berms or 6 opaque landscaping Refuse must be enclosed on three sides in solid wall of wood or masonry to match building with  eight foot self closing gate: Will be located on Civil
	Current StatusAll ground mounted service equipment must be located at the rear of buildings unless rear faces I35 integrated into the building envelope or enclosed service area If visible must have 100 opaque screening one foot higher than equipment being screened: 
	Areas not covered by building or pavement must be landscaped: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentAll ground mounted service equipment must be located at the rear of buildings unless rear faces I35 integrated into the building envelope or enclosed service area If visible must have 100 opaque screening one foot higher than equipment being screened: 
	Standard MetAll ground mounted service equipment must be located at the rear of buildings unless rear faces I35 integrated into the building envelope or enclosed service area If visible must have 100 opaque screening one foot higher than equipment being screened: met
	Landscape Area 15 Irrigated: currently at 13.5%
	Drainage facilities are not allowed in the landscape areas: 
	Foundation plantings within a planting area min 6 in width required along 70 of the length of any visible façade: no foundation plantings
	Vegetation must be used to soften the appearance of walls  min 5 galshrubs planted every 30 on center: no foundation plantings
	Text28: met
	Text29: 
	Text30: 
	Text31: met
	Text32: Due to small property footprint we request approval since we will do some planting on the TXDOT ROW
	Text33: 
	Text34: 
	Text35: Variance to allow no foundation planting because of the floor to ceiling windows and corporate design guidelines
	Text36: 
	Text37: variance to allow no foundation planting because of floor to ceiling windows and corporate design guidlines
	Standard MetLandscape bufferOne min 3 caliper canopy tree must be planted for every 30 of frontage along public ROW If power lines are present four ornamental trees may be substituted for one canopy tree: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentParking lot fuel pumps and vehicle drivethru window must be screened by hedge row 25 to 4 high for all parking areas visible from public view: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentLandscape buffer berms not less than 24 inches covering 50 of landscape buffer area: Variance to eliminate buffer berms
	Mitigation Rationale Staff Comment20 Required landscape buffer must have native grass beds or wildflowers: variance to keep river rock river rock
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentRequired landscape buffer must have a minimum of 60 evergreen trees: variance to reduce the 60% to 20%
	Standard MetRequired landscape buffer must have a minimum of 60 evergreen trees: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentRequired landscape buffer trees must be planted in clusters not intervals: Will cluster trees, some will be located in TXDOT ROW
	Standard MetRequired landscape buffer trees must be planted in clusters not intervals: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentLandscape bufferOne min 3 caliper canopy tree must be planted for every 30 of frontage along public ROW If power lines are present four ornamental trees may be substituted for one canopy tree: 
	Current StatusLandscape bufferOne min 3 caliper canopy tree must be planted for every 30 of frontage along public ROW If power lines are present four ornamental trees may be substituted for one canopy tree: Crepe Myrtles proposed
	Standard MetParking lot fuel pumps and vehicle drivethru window must be screened by hedge row 25 to 4 high for all parking areas visible from public view: n/a
	Standard MetLandscape buffer berms not less than 24 inches covering 50 of landscape buffer area: 
	Standard Met20 Required landscape buffer must have native grass beds or wildflowers: 
	Current StatusRequired landscape buffer must have a minimum of 60 evergreen trees: Crepe Myrtles proposed
	Current StatusRequired landscape buffer trees must be planted in clusters not intervals: intervals
	Current StatusLandscape buffer berms not less than 24 inches covering 50 of landscape buffer area: no buffer or berms proposed
	Current Status20 Required landscape buffer must have native grass beds or wildflowers: River Stone proposed
	Current StatusMeandering sidewalk required if Trails Master Plan identifies one adjacent in accordance with city sidewalks standards for classification: 
	Current StatusParking lot fuel pumps and vehicle drivethru window must be screened by hedge row 25 to 4 high for all parking areas visible from public view: 
	Current StatusTerminal parking islands at the end of each row minimum 360 sq ft 23 caliper  tree required in eachnon inventory: 
	Current StatusInterior parking islands 1 per every 10 spaces minimum 170 sq ft 1 3 tree required in each: 
	Current StatusMedian islands minimum 10 in width must be located after every third parking bay  3 tree required every 30: 
	Standard MetInterior parking islands 1 per every 10 spaces minimum 170 sq ft 1 3 tree required in each: n/a vehicle sales
	Standard MetMeandering sidewalk required if Trails Master Plan identifies one adjacent in accordance with city sidewalks standards for classification: met
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentMeandering sidewalk required if Trails Master Plan identifies one adjacent in accordance with city sidewalks standards for classification: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentInterior parking islands 1 per every 10 spaces minimum 170 sq ft 1 3 tree required in each: 
	Standard MetTerminal parking islands at the end of each row minimum 360 sq ft 23 caliper  tree required in eachnon inventory: n/a vehicle sales
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentTerminal parking islands at the end of each row minimum 360 sq ft 23 caliper  tree required in eachnon inventory: 
	Standard MetMedian islands minimum 10 in width must be located after every third parking bay  3 tree required every 30: n/a vehicle sales
	Current StatusLandscape must be drought tolerant and accent building features entryways and driveways: 
	Standard MetLandscape must be drought tolerant and accent building features entryways and driveways: met
	Parking lot islands must be located at the end of inventory aisles span the aisle both sides minimum depth of ten feet: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentLandscape must be drought tolerant and accent building features entryways and driveways: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentMedian islands minimum 10 in width must be located after every third parking bay  3 tree required every 30: 
	Evergreen shrubs minimum 5 gallon  must completely fill island: 3 gallon proposed
	Development must be sited as to maximize street presence: 
	Location and placement of buildings must reflect consideration for roadway: 
	Text38: met
	Text39: 
	Text40: 
	Text41:  will use 5 gallon
	Text42: met
	Text43: 
	Text44: met
	Text45: 
	Standard MetMust 21 slope from residential property line if building is non residential: n/a
	Current Statusaccess existing vegetation and surrounding development: 
	Standard Metaccess existing vegetation and surrounding development: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentBuilding entrances must be articulated and defined to present a strong entry presence Must be inset or offset by min 6: variance to allow construction of BMWimage building
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentAll buildings must be architecturally finished on all sides with same materials detailing and features Facades not visible from the street may reflect only similar colors if screened with single row of trees30 offset50 canopy 10 foot landscape edge: 
	Standard MetAll buildings must be architecturally finished on all sides with same materials detailing and features Facades not visible from the street may reflect only similar colors if screened with single row of trees30 offset50 canopy 10 foot landscape edge: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentMust 21 slope from residential property line if building is non residential: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff Commentaccess existing vegetation and surrounding development: 
	Current StatusMust 21 slope from residential property line if building is non residential: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentAll buildings must be designed and constructed in tripartite architecture: variance to allow construction of BMW corporate image building
	Standard MetAll buildings must be designed and constructed in tripartite architecture: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentAll buildings must incorporate no less than 3 architectural elements  50000 must incorporate 5 elements: 
	Standard MetAll buildings must incorporate no less than 3 architectural elements  50000 must incorporate 5 elements: n/a
	Standard MetBuilding entrances must be articulated and defined to present a strong entry presence Must be inset or offset by min 6: 
	Current StatusAll buildings must be architecturally finished on all sides with same materials detailing and features Facades not visible from the street may reflect only similar colors if screened with single row of trees30 offset50 canopy 10 foot landscape edge: Appears to meet. Need more information to confirm
	Current StatusBuilding entrances must be articulated and defined to present a strong entry presence Must be inset or offset by min 6: Does not meet.6.7.9.D.2(c)
	Current StatusAll buildings must incorporate no less than 3 architectural elements  50000 must incorporate 5 elements: 
	Current StatusAll buildings must be designed and constructed in tripartite architecture: proposed does not meet 6.7.9.D.2(d)
	Standard MetAll retail buildings with facades greater than 200 must incorporate wall plane projections or recesses that are at least 6 deep Projections and recesses must be at least 25 percent of length of the façade: n/a148.11'
	Current StatusAll retail buildings with facades greater than 200 must incorporate wall plane projections or recesses that are at least 6 deep Projections and recesses must be at least 25 percent of length of the façade: 
	Current StatusColor of structures must be earthtone in hue: Need colors
	Current StatusWindows must be a minimum of 40 up to a maximum of 80 or each building elevation: need calculations6.7.9.D.2(f)
	Current StatusNo single building material may cover more than 80 of the front of any building: Need masonry calculations to confirm
	Current StatusNo more than three materials for facades of buildings: 
	Current StatusVandal resistant building components must be incorporated: Need confirmation
	Current StatusWindows must not be glazed or re glazed with mirrored or reflective glass: Need confirmation 6.7.9.D.3(e)
	Standard MetNo more than three materials for facades of buildings: met - tilt wall, EFIS, Windows
	Standard MetColor of structures must be earthtone in hue: 
	Standard MetWindows must be a minimum of 40 up to a maximum of 80 or each building elevation: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentAll retail buildings with facades greater than 200 must incorporate wall plane projections or recesses that are at least 6 deep Projections and recesses must be at least 25 percent of length of the façade: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentWindows must be a minimum of 40 up to a maximum of 80 or each building elevation: variance to all for corporate window design
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentColor of structures must be earthtone in hue: variance to allow white corporate color
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentNo more than three materials for facades of buildings: 
	Standard MetNo single building material may cover more than 80 of the front of any building: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentNo single building material may cover more than 80 of the front of any building: variance to allow for corporate design
	Standard MetWindows must not be glazed or re glazed with mirrored or reflective glass: 
	Standard MetVandal resistant building components must be incorporated: 
	Current StatusApproved primary and accent building materials must be from the approved building materials list Primary materials 7090  Accent 1030: Need masonry calculations
	All luminaries of 1800 or more lumens must be fullcutoff as installed For luminaries under 1800 the bulb must be: Need confirmation
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentApproved primary and accent building materials must be from the approved building materials list Primary materials 7090  Accent 1030: variance to comply with corporate design
	Standard MetApproved primary and accent building materials must be from the approved building materials list Primary materials 7090  Accent 1030: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentVandal resistant building components must be incorporated: will confirm
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentWindows must not be glazed or re glazed with mirrored or reflective glass: no mirrored glass to be used
	Text46: 
	Text47: Complete exterior lighting is being design to comply with overlay and city requirements
	Current Statusfrosted glass or behind translucent cover: 
	Standard Metfrosted glass or behind translucent cover: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff Commentfrosted glass or behind translucent cover: 
	Current StatusExterior lighting must have soft indirect illuminations concealed behind landscape or utilize lighting fixtures that produce no direct glare: Need confirmation
	Standard MetExterior lighting must have soft indirect illuminations concealed behind landscape or utilize lighting fixtures that produce no direct glare: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentExterior lighting must have soft indirect illuminations concealed behind landscape or utilize lighting fixtures that produce no direct glare: to comply
	Current StatusOnsite lighting must be used for entries walkways and parking areas Down wall washing only No flood lighting: Need confirmation
	Standard MetOnsite lighting must be used for entries walkways and parking areas Down wall washing only No flood lighting: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentOnsite lighting must be used for entries walkways and parking areas Down wall washing only No flood lighting: to comply
	Current StatusSecurity lighting must be used to avoid glare and must direct light toward building or storage: Need confirmation
	Standard MetSecurity lighting must be used to avoid glare and must direct light toward building or storage: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentSecurity lighting must be used to avoid glare and must direct light toward building or storage: to comply
	Current StatusMax 80 lumens per net acre with full cutoff lighting: Need confirmation
	Standard MetMax 80 lumens per net acre with full cutoff lighting: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentMax 80 lumens per net acre with full cutoff lighting: to comply
	Current StatusLights mounted on underside of roof 15 or more from any roof edge count ½ toward total lumens: Need confirmation
	Standard MetLights mounted on underside of roof 15 or more from any roof edge count ½ toward total lumens: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentLights mounted on underside of roof 15 or more from any roof edge count ½ toward total lumens: to comply
	Current StatusLighting  must be focused and promote safety: Need confirmation
	Standard MetLighting  must be focused and promote safety: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentLighting  must be focused and promote safety: to comply
	Current StatusOutdoor lighting fixtures must be max 30 in height: Need confirmation
	Standard MetOutdoor lighting fixtures must be max 30 in height: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentOutdoor lighting fixtures must be max 30 in height: to comply
	Current StatusNo blinking flashing moving or mercury vapor lighting allowed: Need confirmation
	Standard MetNo blinking flashing moving or mercury vapor lighting allowed: 
	Mitigation Rationale Staff CommentNo blinking flashing moving or mercury vapor lighting allowed: to comply


